


DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
70 S B

31 March 30 June

Countries 2025 2024 Y-0-Y

and Regions 20254 20245 Changes

BRRME 3H31H 65308 BREEE

Mainland China' A [ g ' 99 72 +27
Self-operated Shops Hong Kong SAR, China? Bl & 45 AT &2 6 5 +1
BERE Macau SAR, China® BRI BT &S

-ﬂ__
Mainland P33t

Licensed Shops
! P Overseas 1E5p

amhE

' Mainland China: Hereafter refers to as “Mainland” S Fith © £1& 7824 TRt
2 Hong Kong SAR, China: Hereafter refers to as “Hong Kong” tREIE B4FRIITHE © HBBAIEH)
8 Macau SAR, China: Hereafter refers to as “Macau” FRERFI4FFIITHE © FEEA R

DISTRIBUTION NETWORK IN MAINLAND
P30 SE AR A

As at 31 March 2025 Total No. of shops [EfH488 . 231 (+18)

2025537311 Total No. of Licensees & % & 48 2 84(-)
Total No. of Provinces # 42 #{ 22(+1)
Total No. of Municipalities B & 48 % 3(-)
Total No. of Cities 1 48 # 87(+7)

Self-operated Shops Licensed Shcps
BE bR IS

No. of Shops No. of Shops No. of Shops
EHEF

Tier | —# 48(+11) (+3) 88(+14) 10(-)
Tier Il =48 35(+12) 18(-10) 53(+2) 13(-4)
Tier Il =42 3(2) 40(4) 43(6) 25(+:3)
Tier IV & below FU4R K T 13(+6) 34(+2) 47(+8) 39(+8)

(caz | wn| was|  mew| o)

N . BERE RIE
. 'Il?r Il . %ES;EI China

. ‘|T|e'r IV & below Eastern China Northern China 23158 52(+15) 55(-9) 107(+6) 8() 2() 42(+5)
MmaRR AT RE Central China £ & 12(+2) 25(+3) 37(+5) 6(-) -() 18(+1)
Southern China E#E 124+2) 4(1) 53(+1) 40 - 14()
Eastern China £XE 23(+8) 11(2) 34(+6) 4(+1) 1) 13(+1)

] The percentages refer to the contribution to the total no. of shops in

Mainland B 73 EE AR EZ[E 8 B S S A8 2 (Gt
] Figures in brackets refer to the change between 31 March 2025 and

30 June 2024 FEIERBIE F £20255E3H31 B £2120244E6 5308 Z EH
215



OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
=EREE
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REVENUE AND PROFIT ANALYSIS | WA B @I

Revenue and Segment Profit/(Loss) by Market
IR 8 28R A B 523 8hiaF,(§518)

Segment
Loss Margin

53 BRASIREE

Revenue

WA

Segment Loss
FEBESIR
Hong Kong, Macau &

Overseas
R RBS

@1) 27%

loss increased

Segment by 382% 22 p.p.
Revenue  Loss Changes +16%  E51RI8I1882%  -22fEE &
WA DEBRSIE
Mainland
Hong Kong, Macau and P 562 (85) -15%
Oversgas . .
SRRl loss increased
. by 68% -4 p.p.
Mainland > _
B H B Changes 16 [NRSLV NN 77 e - = o
Overall
=g 712 (126) -18%
loss increased
by 113% -8 p.p.
Changes %1k +18%  E5FRIEN1113% -81B &5 7%
Revenue and Segment Profit/(Loss) by Business
FEBEFHRA BB EF,(8518)
4%
(7%)
5% Segment Segment
(5%) (Loss)/ (Loss)/Profit
Profit Margin
Revenue | 45 (§518) 588 (B518)
KA bt /iR
91% ..
(88%) Retailing
~——— Qs 645 (132) -20%
Loss increased
by 93% -8 p.p.
o Changes #15 +21% E58121193% -81E 5 578
evenue
Wholesaling
Retailing . 2z 38 @) -11%
TE Loss decreased
Wholesaling by 20% +5 p.p.
Changes %£#1E +16% E1E /' 20% +618] & 784
Licensing . .
IEERS . Licensing
RIS 29 10 34%
-3 p.p.
Changes -26% -32% -3 & 578
[OEE
2Ee 712 (126) -18%
Loss increased
by 113% -8 p.p.
Changes #15 +18%  EiHEHEI113% -8 & 578

Remarks F :
. Comparative for the year ended 30 June 2024 (‘FY2024") in the above doughnut charts are shown in brackets
M EIREBIEST A A E20245F6 5308 LLFE (12024044 ) Z LB BT

. Adjusted Segment Profit/(Loss) refers to segment profit/(loss) excluding gold hedging losses
AN EHF] (B518) ERIRES I RBEBRZ HIERN (518)
J Represent a non-HKFRS financial measure

EIFERMBREERNM B E

Adjusted
Segment (Loss)/

Profit*
RS
(E548) @Fe

®)
Turned from profit
of HK$5m to loss
HaFI5E B BT

52

Turned around from
loss of HK$10m
HIEHR1F 5 BT
BSmr

44

Turned around from
loss of HK$5m
R85 & BT
B F

Adjusted Segment
Profit*
BIRE SRR

34

Turned around from
loss of HK$15m
HEHR1 T 5 BT
ESmF

0

Loss decreased
by 92%
E5157%.0°92%

10
-32%

44

Turned around

from loss of HK$5m
HIET185 5 & BT
B2 m A

Adjusted
Segment
(Loss)/Profit
Margin*
IREDE
(#548)
bt E

-5%

-9p.p.
-9MEEH 57 &

9%

+11 p.p.
+1 118 & 573 %

6%

+7 P.p.
+718 B 73 %

Adjusted
Segment
Profit/(Loss)
Margin*
PEREF,
(E548) =+

5%

+8 p.p.
+81E B 57 %

-1%

+12 p.p.
+1218 B 53 #

34%
-3 p.p.
-SMEEF 57

6%

+7 p.p.
+718 B 53 %




OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
=EREE

REVENUE AND PROFIT ANALYSIS (continved) | WA B& DT @

Sales' and Gross Profit? by Product
RERISHHEE REN

Gross Gross
Profit Margin
84%
(80%) EA ERE

Gold & Platinum =& K& #H3E 33%
+10 p.p.
16% Changes #15 +26% +78%  +101E1 85 &5
(20%)
Fixed Price Jewellery /& B & &fi 111 47 42%
+2 p.p.
Sales  Gross Profit -0% +5% +2/E§ﬁ\":¥ﬁ
- we =7 Overall #f2 683 235 34%
Ol atinum
BERAS . . +8 p.p.
g;;dﬁ g%ce Jewellery . +21% +56% +81E & 7

g Sales = Revenue - Licensing Income
SHE = A - RIBEFBBA
e Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit — Gross Profit of Licensing Business
EF = LREEF - mEEBEF
Gold & Platinum refers to gold & platinum products sold by weight basing on international market
price, i.e. at non-fixed price

B RHERIEREERTSERZESHENESRNEER BIIFER

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2024 in the above chart
are shown in brackets 5

3 L EERAR2024 F 2 LR E T

RETAIL SALES PERFORMANCE | ZEHERIR

For the Nine Months Ended 31 March 2025
B E2025F3A31HIENEA

SSS Y-0-Y Revenue Changes
FIEHE

-10% 219
7% 25%
25% 2%
219 «249%
129 «30%
359 119
7% «20%
5% «249%
7% %

Same Store Sales (“SSS”) represented a comparison of sales of the same self-operated shop having full day operations in the comparable periods and such data did not include
sales of licensed shops

FEHE (FEHE) »FR—HEEERIEEHRAB TR EENHEBELLE FRERL T 2ERRENHER



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MR E

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE | Ri#53RIR

9 months ended
31 March 2025

#HZF20255 FY2024 Y-0-Y Changes
HK$M B & 7T 3H31H1E9EA 20244F B 4F REEE

Revenue' A +18%

Gross Profit' £ 249 170 +46%
Operating Loss' & & 518" (164) (181) +25%
Adjusted Operating Loss (exclude Gold Hedging Loss)'" 2
RABLERE BMr=ESE R 2 6 (77) -108%
Loss for the Period/Year 7,/ E R E512 (200) (209) -4%
Loss Attributable to Equity Holders # #5155 A FE{5E518 (95) (135) -30%
< 35% 28% +7 p.p.EE D E
-23% -22% -1 p.pEEDE
ng Margin (exclude Gold Hedging Loss)" 2
EHTER) 12 1% -13% +14 p.pfEE 7B
< -28% -35% +7 p.pEEDE
EBITDA? R&THI 8~ MRIE T & R SH AT &R A (115) (94) +23%
EBITDA Margin? SR 5t#] 8 ~ #2718 ~ #7858 e 85 Al 2 1) =2 -16% -15% -1 p.pEEDEE
Adjusted EBITDA
RBEARFIERIB IE RS RF] (145) (116) +25%
Adjusted EBITDA Margin
AR A B RIE B RIB AR -20% -19% -1 ppfEEDE
Total Operating Expenses to Revenue Ratio?
AR R = (U A EE =2 37% 43% -6 p.p.fBE D&
Effective Tax Rate ZFEH= -1% 2% -3 p.pEEDE
Gold Hedging Loss =& %4518 170 54 +214%
" Including continuing operations only
EEERFREEED

2 Represent non-HKFRS measures

IR B BREEAFE
KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS | ETZER#E61Z
As at 31 March 2025 As at 30 June 2024
T 12025%3831H F20245E6830H

1,070 728
Average Inventory Turnover Days' F¥77 SEEH" 550 554

Closing Inventory Turnover Days? Hik 77 & & 88 B2 654 640
Cash and Bank Balances IR KR 1745 6% 53 32
Bank Borrowings & Gold loans $R{TEM k=& EE 715 498
& 694 498
(662) (466)

Adjusted Net Cash/(Borrowing) &E:E%2]R 2/ (B 32 32 1%

-156% -148% -8 p.pfEEDE

556% 537% +19p.pfEEDE

22% 43% 21 ppfAEDE

Return on Total Assets’ A8 [0 3R X7 -6% -12% +6 p.pEE D

Current Ratio 7&hHE = 58% 55% +3ppEEDE

" (Opening Inventory + Closing Inventory) -+ 2 < COGS * Number of Days for the Year
(HAIEE + IRES) 2 HERAEREHR
2 Closing Inventory <+ COGS* Number of Days for the Year
HARGEE-HERAFREHR
3 Net Cash/(Borrowings) = Cash and Bank Balances — Bank Borrowing
BRE/ (BR) = RERBITEHRITER
4 Adjusted Net Cash/(Borrowings) = Cash and Bank Balances — Bank Borrowing — Gold Loans
BRE (BR) = RERBTEHRITERN-—SSEE
°  Net Cash/(Borrowings) + Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
FRE (BN - RABDRBEFEAREERKRHE
5 (Long-term Liabilities + Short-term Liabilities) -+ Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
(REAEME + RBERE) - ZATG B ABGBERR#E
7 Loss Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company - Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
RATREFFE NGRS - RABRERFE ABLE A RHE
8  Loss Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company =+ (Long-term Assets + Current Assets)
TAT DA AEGEEE - (RPEERBERE)
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CORPORATE PROFILE
==/

SRR

e

3DG Jewellery is a jewellery retail brand in Hong
Kong, China. The brand is mainly engaged in
design, product development, trademark licensing
and retailing of gem-set jewellery products and
gold and platinum jewellery, it also provides
customized corporate gift services. Currently, 3DG
Jewellery has established a retail network in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and Thailand, with a total of
nearly 300 shops. With its unique product charm
and “8DG Prestige Service”, the brand has won
the recognition of consumers, and its brand image
is deeply recognized and affirmed.

SEBHBATESEHETESN TEHE
B EEIERR e S SR E G
SR BRI HTE O 28 2 R  HEE
HEEE  REN R RS S 1
$IF300R T E T o RIELU BN ER B
DCHEHBREAT N BENEH &

s
EZREMEE Z
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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WONG Ho Lung, Danny & &3
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer &= & 1T B4 £

2 3DG Holdings (International) Limited & EZ £ H (BE) HREA



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
FERS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of 3DG Holdings (International) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group” or “We”), | hereby present the Group’s annual results
for the nine months ended 31 March 2025 (‘FY2025” or the
“Period”).

Throughout the Period, the surge in multiple central banks’
gold reserves, alongside sustained geopolitical tensions and
trade disputes globally, has contributed to elevating gold prices
to record levels. Despite facing various challenges, including
macroeconomic uncertainties and cautious consumer sentiment,
the Group benefited from the implementation of its retail network
expansion strategies following the acquisition by Luk Fook
Holdings (International) Limited (“Luk Fook”) which took place in
January 2024.

For the 9 months of FY2025, the Group’s revenue reached
HK$712 million, reflecting a 18% increase compared to the 12
months of FY2024. Gross margin increased by 7 p.p. to 35%.
Operating loss increased by 25% to HK$164 million, mainly
attributed to hedging losses caused by the surge in gold price,
which impacted the fair values of the gold loans. Excluding
the impact of gold hedging losses, the operating loss turned
around to an operating profit of HK$6 million. Loss for the period
decreased by 4% to HK$200 million, while loss for the period
attributable to equity holders reduced by 30% to HK$95 million.

Excluding the impact of gold hedging losses, Mainland, including
retailing, licensing, e-commerce and its overall business, turned
around from a loss-making position to profitability.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had a global network of 238
shops (30 June 2024: 219 shops), with business spanning across
Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland and Thailand.

OUTLOOK

The growing reserves of gold in various central banks, combined
with ongoing geopolitical tensions and trade disputes globally,
have pushed gold prices to unprecedented levels. Furthermore,
factors such as macroeconomic uncertainties, a sustained decline
in consumer sentiment, and weakened Renminbi have had a
notable impact on the Group’s sales performance during the
Period.

BRER

KANERXSEZEER (B BRAE (4
A8 REKWBAD (4R HEH) 3 1K
ffi)) »EILIREAEEEE202543831H Lt
HEA (T202584 5 1 o (A HARE)) 2 2 %4

RAHRE > SR RITES BRI 0Lt
BARBFHBERUKEXEZZK B
BEBEAZALBEKT REDHEEL
BRABRHERNBEESERB ~&
BNERER/NEBER @K BRAE (1754
H2024F 1B NBERR BT EREE
RRREE -

R20258 FE M@ A » REBURAZET. 1288
70 B20248 FE+ @ BB MN18% o EF =
EIN7E S DB E35% © £ & EE RIS N25% E
1.64BE T TEHRNESERT R EE
SERNATE BB EEEE M6t
RESHAPEENTEE IKREEIEEES
BERKE R 6EB BT ABEEIERD4%
E2EBT MERTE ARG ABEEER
/D30%ZE9,5008 B 7T ©

WA REEHPEENTE AAEE
TE mEES BEFEBREEREEH SR
BRI RS R EA -

R2025F3H31H  ZAEBNEIKFPLE LS
238[ (2024FE6H30R : 21979 [Sif > (75E
K78~ BP9~ it e 2= 6 o

AR

LERTESHETEIG N N LRFEN
GEARREBREXEZFHRELER
EFEAFTRARIKT - IE5h > R R BT
B VHEBREMBETRREARBREZERASR
HEAERRARBANHEERRENES

o,
FEo
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
FERS

Although gold prices have climbed to historic peaks, there are
signs that consumers are adjusting to higher gold prices, which
should facilitate a return to normal sales levels. The Mainland
government’s efforts to stimulate domestic demand signal
a positive trend for the gradual recovery of the market. As
macroeconomic conditions and consumer sentiment improve,
our businesses in the region are poised to keep building on their
growth momentum, bolstered by renewed consumer confidence.
Given these encouraging factors, the Group is confident in its mid-
to long-term prospects and will continue to expand its footprint in
the Mainland market.

Thanks to the robust financial backing from Luk Fook, the
Group is steadfast in its commitment to advancing its corporate
strategies, vision, mission, and values, leveraging a strategic
framework that has contributed to Luk Fook’s commercial
success. The Group will further expand its retail network by
opening self-operated stores in Hong Kong and Mainland.
Furthermore, it will continue to revitalise its licensing efforts and
scale up the e-commerce business in Mainland. The Group is
optimistic about the substantial growth opportunities in overseas
markets and remains committed to expand its international
presence.

The Group’s three-year corporate strategy focuses on three
key areas: Market Expansion, Brand Revamp, and Product
Differentiation. This strategic focus aims to help driving steady
future business growth of the Group.

The Group will continue to expand its business in Mainland
through a combination of self-operated and licensed shops, as
well as e-commerce. By leveraging Luk Fook’s robust distribution
network and well-established licensing partnerships, the Group is
revitalizing its licensing operations in the Mainland. Furthermore,
the Group is continuously enhancing its e-commerce presence
and strengthening collaborations with various online platforms.
Recognizing the significant spending power of young consumers
on these platforms, the Group will actively promote affordable
luxury jewellery to broaden its appeal within this demographic.
As part of its broader market expansion strategy, the Group is
actively pursuing retailing and licensing opportunities in regions
beyond Mainland and Hong Kong. This initiative aims to promote
the brand’s influence by leveraging regional growth in targeted
markets.

BETBECBAZEELRS KT BPRRE
mOHBELERRSNEE BRBNE
EE BV E KT - AR DR B AE 1R
e mBETEENEEBE - BEREL
BRIESOHERNNAES A HEEEOE
BB 2EEANZMENEFEEE
BRFERDBE -HRNZELARENAR
AEBHHEPRPABNIIEME D Wik S
ERERE A IS AR E -

FaR A BEENETR  AEERES
BROESHHEERB B EokEE
B RGN EIEEEMMARBER &
EERE—TRERRETEM/E EEBRAM
FIaR B &L o tEIh > TRF M 1S Pt R Sa b2
EBRBEAREFEHEGRE - XEEHE
SIHZABRIEREBRRERE TEH
NRERER -

eSS DEESS T P3PS £1-
B HHEE REEBRESER HE
B 3 84 5 1 B B H B A R I R E S B T
HiEE-

AEEREREZBEES mEIEREFH
BEHIVEREAMET - BRE/NBBRAN
DEBERRENREETZBHER &
EE%%EK@WW%%ﬁFEWF$$H

NERERERABETEHES  LMRER
Hﬁt”AMAW AEBRPBFEHEE
EEEFEHENBREY  RILRIRIEHEE
HEXREEH UMBEAEEFEETEHRHNR
51 -ERHEREZHIGHERBI—I7
FEBERGBSRKAMREBLUIMETE
RomEEHNKSE LBEEREEBERRT
WEBRR VREOEREERMTZES

4 3DG Holdings (International) Limited & EZ £ H (EE) HRAE



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
FERS

The Group is continuously enhancing its brand image and
positioning. The Group is committed to improving product quality
assurance, elevating service standards, and optimizing support
for our licensees to better meet market demands. Our store
image has been refreshed to reflect a vibrant new identity. The
redesigned store features a harmonious blend of warm peach
fuzz tones, bronze, and light beige, creating a comfortable
and enjoyable shopping experience while leaving a stylish and
memorable impression of 3DG Jewellery. Additionally, the brand
has creatively integrated the new theme concept of “Stylish
Femme” into the decor, showcasing a range of fashionable and
diverse female styles. This is complemented by personalized
jewellery, aimed at providing consumers with fashion inspiration
and fulfilling their varied shopping preferences.

Our company is pursuing a multi-faceted product differentiation
strategy aimed at enhancing brand value and expanding our
product appeal to a broader audience. This includes exploring
advanced and innovative craftsmanship techniques, as well as
collaborating with selected intellectual property (IP) partners to co-
create exclusive collections. At the same time, we are reassessing
our pricing strategy to better align with our brand positioning and
the differentiated product offerings.

To strengthen its competitive advantage, the Group will enhance
operational efficiency through synergy by utilizing Luk Fook’s
systems and infrastructure, including supply chain management,
process automation, big data management, and data analytics.
Additionally, the Group is committed to maximizing employee
productivity by fostering a culture of continuous improvement and
innovation.

| would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all our staff
members, shareholders, customers, business partners and other
stakeholders for their unfaltering support and contributions to the
Group. Going forward, the Group will adhere to steady growth
measures, strengthen its competitive advantages and further
enhance its position in the market.

By order of the Board
WONG Ho Lung, Danny
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 June 2025

AEBAHRAMETERRENM FSEBE
NREERBEERS RERBEEURE
IEH RIEEBI SR UEFtmETIHHER -
ZANEELREBRARA—H BEETWE
N R - EMRETE R MBAT
RS HIBRERE BERTE
MRNEYREE ANAEESKER TE
MM THVENR < IE5h > AR B EIRRE
FRIERMARBENRELEI TERS &
RH—RHEE 2RSS BEEE
ANEREH > EEAHEBERERBER W
BRENEEYRET

FRABEHTZHTHERERERE BF
RAREEBEREAERRIINEEEZHN
2R HBERRAERAITN T2 I
SR ENHERIPSIFBHERAISEERAR
5o EE  HFIEAE ST EERE  UE
MomBEURERCERES-

REEGZFED AEERANRANBHRAR
RERRMN QIEHEREE REFHE
ARBBEEERBED T BBMRENERA
EEMme It AEBTERNNBBESH
BRNERAIFHNXE UBRABETEESE
REKFo

FEEE2BERMNET RE -BEE EBY
HNMEMBFNENRNOIFNER > T AE
IEHUROHERE  AEBR B FIREE
R ZEHRFED  E—PRRAHT S
fio

AEEG,
FERITEAE

=
Bi'%ﬁ

&7 2025F6H24H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

vail

EEE W

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue

A

HKST12MEE #5T - 18%

Operating Loss

RERR

Hk$164MEE BT I@

Loss for the Period

ISR

Gold Hedging Losses
P

Hk$170MBEE BT IM

Adjusted Operating Profit
(exclude 9old hedging losses)

RIAREREE AT EneEehi5E

NAFER

HK$OME & BT

Adjusted Loss for the Period

HAM SR

HK$200MBE & # T lm

Loss Attributable to Equity Holders

HK$SOMBE BT

(exclude gold hedging losses)

BRI E ARSI csumEa s isa)

1 81%

Total Number of Shops

e AEILESHR [ESRAE 8

HK$9OSME & T M

—  The change refers to comparison between 31 March 2025 and 30 June 2024

- Excluding gold hedging losses, the adjusted operating profit was HK$6m,
representing a turnaround from the adjusted operating loss of HK$77m in
Fy2024

—  Businesses which turned around from loss to profit (excluding gold hedging
losses) during the period: Mainland China retailing, e-commerce and licensing

businesses

Results

The surge in multiple central banks’ gold reserves, alongside
sustained geopolitical tensions and trade disputes globally, has
contributed to elevating gold prices to record levels during the
nine months ended 31 March 2025 (the “Period”). Despite facing
various challenges, including macroeconomic uncertainties and
cautious consumer sentiment, the Group benefited from the
implementation of its retail network expansion strategies following
the acquisition by Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (“Luk
Fook”) which took place in January 2024. As a result, total
revenue for the period increased by 18% to HK$711,541,000
(year ended 30 June 2024: HK$604,517,000). Additionally, the
Group’s overall gross margin improved by 7 p.p. to 35% (year
ended 30 June 2024: 28%), leading to a 46% rise in gross profit,
which reached HK$248,612,000 (year ended 30 June 2024:
HK$170,277,000).

238

—  #1535202553831H £22024F6 5300 Z B EE &

— EBEWRESHIEE CHAERCEEANAERE
7T KB PR2024 R A B B B A& E5 187, 7008 B 7T
BREEAR

— RERNEBEARNER (GHRESETER) | FE
AEZE -BTEBROEERS

ZTERTESHEERL N EHEBUERE
FEZRUREHES IR ERESER
REE2025FE3831HIENEA (TdsHAR )
R T E B 4L 8K o RE W H = R AT 8
RHEEMEESESEBE AERNZ
BRAEEER (BB BRARE (IRE\) &
C24F 1AM EEEERERNSER/LE
BREE AL B BU AL IN18%E
711,541,00058 70 (B, E2024F6830H IEF
£ : 604,517,000587T) © b9k » REBMAIEEEE
EMENES7TEEDEHEISS (BiE2024F
6H30HLLFEE : 28%) » S EF) L F46%E
248,612,000 ¢ (B E202456H30H LLFE
FE :170,277,000587T) ©

6 3DG Holdings (International) Limited £ Z & & H (%) BRAR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE T

The surge in gold prices resulted in a gold hedging loss of
HK$169,968,000 for the Period (year ended 30 June 2024:
$54,128,000). Consequently, the operating loss rose significantly
by 25% to HK$164,110,000 (year ended 30 June 2024:
HK$131,025,000), with the operating loss margin slightly
increased to 23% (year ended 30 June 2024: 22%). On the other
hand, the Group’s finance costs reduced substantially by 63%
to HK$32,754,000 (year ended 30 June 2024: HK$88,077,000)
with the financial assistance arrangements from Luk Fook. Overall,
loss for the Period decreased by 4% to HK$199,686,000 (year
ended 30 June 2024: HK$208,746,000), while the net loss
margin reduced by 7 p.p. to 28% (year ended 30 June 2024:
35%). Excluding the impact of gold hedging losses, the adjusted
operating profit would be HK$5,858,000 (year ended 30 June
2024 adjusted operating loss of HK$76,897,000), representing
a turnaround from a loss-making position to profitability, while
the adjusted loss for the Period would be HK$29,718,000 (year
ended 30 June 2024: HK$154,618,000), reflecting a reduction
of 81%. The businesses which turned around from loss-making
position to profitability (excluding gold hedging losses) included
Mainland China retailing, e-commerce and licensing. Furthermore,
loss attributable to equity holders of the Group decreased by 30%
to HK$94,864,000 (year ended 30 June 2024: HK$135,316,000).

Overview

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had a global network of 238
shops (2024: 219 shops), with business spanning across Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland and Thailand.

Distribution Network

Countries

and Regions
ElR Rt E
Mainland P93
Hong Kong &%
Macau ;%P5

Sub-total /it -ﬂ_

Self-operated Shops
BEE

. Mainland P93
Licensed Shops Overseas 84

31 March

TEAAENAPBEESH B IE
169,968,000 7 (8 E£2024E6830H L4
£ : 54,128,000/ 7T) o Al > KEFHE AR
L F25%ZF 164,110,000 7T (B E202446
H30HLEFEFE : 131,025,000 7T) @ & &
BEREM EFHFE23% (B E2024F6830H 1E
FE 122%) o B—FHE EANENTHERN
ZH T REEBNPTHEBKNIBRLE3%E
32,754,0007% 7C (B E2024F6H30H LEFE
88,077,000 T) - BiEM = > AHAE BB R
4%% 199,686,000 70 (B F2024FE6H30H
LESEFE 1 208,746,00078 70) » M5 k5 1B 2B
DTEBE D RE28% (B E202456H30H LEHF
£ :35%) Wil EEEH AEENFE K
IR EH 1 45,858,000 7T (B E20244F
6H30H IEFE | KK E F51876,897,000
B7T) ’Eﬂaaiéﬂaﬁk/ﬂ%%ﬁﬂ T A #A 75 A9
KB ESEE £29,718,00078 70 (B E20244F
6H30R LLEE : 154,618,000 7T) @ BIEA
81% AR (MMrEEH TEIR) HERS
BETEAMSE - EFEEmBEER I
S REBMERSE ABMGEEIBRDI0NE
94,864,000/ 7T (B £2024F6H30H LEFE .
135,316,00078 7T) °

=

R2025% 383 1B REBNEIRALELES
2388 (20244 : 219M) [E# EFEREE
EPY S POt K7 ZR 6 o

Sy HARAR

30 June
2024
20244
6830H

2025
20254
3831H

99
6 5 +1

Y-o-Y
Changes
BESE

141

m 8 &
I T T Y
I S T 2 N W N N
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRSSO

Revenue and Segment Loss by Business

BREBHSHMA RS EESR

4%
(7%)

RN

5%
(5%)

91%
(88%)

Revenue
WA
Retailing
1 H
Wholesaling

a3
Licensing
Rl .

* Comparative figures for FY2024 in the above chart are shown in brackets ~ * _EE{ESER A20243 F 2 LR # T

Adjusted

Segment

Segment Profit/(Loss)

Segment (Loss)/ | (Loss)/Profit Adjusted Segment Margin'

Profit Margin Profit/(Loss)' R

Revenue S B | 2 () RRERE A EpiEF

HK$M BB #7t A gl /R ml (§548) ' (#548)
Retailing & 645 (132) -20% 34 5%

Turned around
Loss increased from loss of HK$15m

by 93% -8p.p.  HERITSEEET +8 p.p.

Changes 1 +21% EEEM93%  -SEE & LE Pyl +81E B 7%

Wholesaling #t 2 38 @) 1% 0 1%
Loss decreased Loss decreased

by 20% +5 p.p. by 92% +12 p.p.

Changes 1 +16% EEEL20%  +olEESE 18 92% +12(8 B 5%

Licensing fi& 75 29 10 34% 10 34%

-3 p.p. -3 p.p.

Changes Z:1E -26% -32%  -BlEEZE -32% Bl & 572

Overall 48 712 (126) -18% 44 6%
Turned around
Loss increased from loss of HK$5m

by 113% -8 p.p. 151855 3 2T +7 p.o.

Changes 215 +18% EHEEN113%  -SlEE5% vl +7181 5 5784

L Adjusted Segment Profit/(Loss) refers to segment profit/(loss) excluding gold KEENEET (B8 MRS EREEN D
hedging losses EEF] (B518)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE 5T s DT

During the Period, retailing business was the main source of
revenue of the Group. The Group’s retailing revenue increased
by 21% to HK$644,359,000 (year ended 30 June 2024:
HK$532,209,000), accounting for 91% (year ended 30 June
2024: 88%) of the Group’s total revenue, while its segment loss
was widened to HK$131,560,000 (year ended 30 June 2024:
HK$68,269,000) with segment loss margin of 20% (year ended
30 June 2024: 13%). Excluding the gold hedging losses attributed
to the retail segment, its adjusted segment result turned around
from a loss to a profit of HK$34,613,000 (year ended 30 June
2024 adjusted segment loss*: HK$15,130,000) and the adjusted
segment profit margin* would be 5% (2024 adjusted segment loss
margin“: 3%).

The Group’s wholesaling revenue increased by 16% to
HK$38,067,000 (2024: HK$32,894,000), accounting for 5%
(2024: 5%) of the Group’s total revenue, while its segment
loss was HK$4,109,000 (2024 segment loss: HK$5,119,000)
with segment loss margin of 11% (2024 segment loss margin:
16%). Excluding the gold hedging losses attributed to the
wholesaling business, this adjusted segment loss would amount
to HK$314,000, (2024 adjusted segment loss: HK$4,130,000)
resulting in an adjusted segment loss margin of 1% (2024
adjusted segment loss margin: 13%).

During the Period, the licensing income decreased by 26% to
HK$29,115,000 (2024: HK$39,414,000), accounting for 4%
(2024: 7%) of the Group’s total revenue, while its segment profit
margin was 34% (2024: 36%), with its segment profit decreased
to HK$9,799,000 (2024 segment profit: HK$14,357,000).

# Represent a non-HKFRS financial measure.

REABERN ZTEXEBABEIERNTE
WARBE - AEEBNZTEWAEM21%E
644,359,000 7T (Bi 22024568301 L&
E 1 532,209,000/ 7T) » 1h AR E B AR A BI91%

(B E2024F6H30H ILFFE 1 88%) »MHESD
ZRRE5IEHE A E 131,560,000 70 (B E20244FE6
HB30H LEFEE 1 68,269,000 7T) » ) 2REIER
#20% (B E2024FE6830H LEFE 1 13%) ©
WA REED PRGN E S H HEIE - 8
HEBEDEEELEESE AR E34,613,000
BT (B E2024F6H30H LEFEALHED
518+ 15,130,000/ 7T) » MAR AT 7 2 F)E
K& A5% (EZE2024F6H300 LEEELHE
DEBEEIBFR 3%) o

AR EE BRI HE B WA B N16% 238,067,000
70 (20244F : 32,894,000/ 7T) @ {h A E 4R
T ABI5% (20244 : 5%) » AN EEES
4,109,000 7T (20245 73 EFE548 © 5,119,000
BIT) 0 DEBEGERA11% (2024F 5 258
E116%) o WAt RMBELIFEENES
o518 B HA AR S IR 181 A314,000
BTt (20245 KBTI ELESIE © 4,130,00078
7T0) > MASFAE D EEIRER 1% (202458
FEEDEEEIBE D 13%) ©

RABEAR REEFBRARL26%E
29,115,000 75 (20244 : 39,414,000 7T)
EAREBE AR A BI4% (20244F : 7%) » TME D
ZRF IR A34% (20244 : 36%) » EDER#H
R EQ9,799,000/8 7T (2024 F 7 @ F
14,357,000 7T) ©

’ IEREBMHREEANNMFHE-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRSSO

Sales’ and Gross Profit? by Product

RERBDHNHE REFN

84%
(80%)

16%
 (20%)

Sales  Gross Profit

HE E=7
Gold & Platinum?®
K2R H N
Fixed Price Jewellery
EEEEH .
* Comparative figures for FY2024 in the above chart are shown in brackets ¥ FEESRAR2024 FE 2 LEER BT

HK$M Sales Gross Profit Gross Margin
BE#ET HE EH EfE
572

Gold & Platinum =% A% 188 33%
+10 p.p.
Changes 12 ##1E +26% +78% +1018 & 7784
Fixed Price Jewellery E1&E &f 111 47 42%
+2 p.p.
Changes %424k -0% +6% +21E B 7%
Overall 58 683 235 34%
+8 p.p.
Changes 1&F £ +21% +56% +818 &5 58,
' Sales = Revenue - Licensing Income TOHE = WA - REEEBKA
2 Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit — Gross Profit of Licensing Business 2 ER -EE5ERN - RBERER
3 Gold & Platinum refers to gold & platinum products sold by weight basing on 3 B RN EIERERERHEERREEHENES
international market price, i.e. at non-fixed price EiasED BIIEE®E
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

vaR)il

BEEE W

During the Period, the average international gold price in USD per
ounce increased by around 34%. Nevertheless, as the Group has
expanded its distribution network as part of its strategic initiatives,
sales of gold and platinum products increased by 26% to
HK$571,908,000 (year ended 30 June 2024: HK$454,420,000),
accounting for 84% (year ended 30 June 2024: 80%) of the
overall sales amount (revenue of the Group minus licensing
income). Its gross margin increased by 10 p.p. to 33% (year
ended 30 June 2024: 23%) mainly because of the rise in gold
prices. Gross profit of gold and platinum products therefore
increased by 78% to HK$187,585,000 (year ended 30 June
2024: HK$105,439,000), accounting for 80% (year ended 30
June 2024: 73%) of the overall gross profit (gross profit of the
Group minus gross profit of licensing business).

On the other hand, the sales of fixed price jewellery products
remained at HK$110,518,000 (year ended 30 June 2024:
HK$110,683,000), accounting for 16% (year ended 30 June
2024: 20%) of the overall sales amount (revenue of the Group
minus licensing income). Gross margin of fixed price jewellery
products increased by 2 p.p. to 42% (year ended 30 June 2024:
40%) with its gross profit increased by 5% to HK$46,770,000
(year ended 30 June 2024: HK$44,564,000), accounting for 20%
(year ended 30 June 2024: 27%) of the overall gross profit (gross
profit of the Group minus gross profit of licensing business).

During the Period, the overall Same Store Sales' of the Group
was -10% (year ended 30 June 2024: -10%). SSS for gold and
platinum products was -7% (year ended 30 June 2024: -7%), and
-25% (year ended 30 June 2024: -21%) for fixed price jewellery
products.

! Same Store Sales (“SSS”) represented a comparison of sales of the same
self-operated shop having full day operations in the comparable periods
and such data did not include sales of licensed shops and Mainland’s
e-commerce business.

RABER ERFEHSE (ER8RET)
L154934% - BE UL » A A E B IREEE B
MEERADHEAEL B ERNE
E I N26%E571,908,00078 7T (B £2024
F6H30H LEFEE © 454,420,000 7T) » (L%
BEIHER (AERWAREREERBA) B
84% (EiZE2024F6H30HLEEE 1 80%) - &
EFMEEIMOE T D EEI3% (B E2024%5
6H30HIEEE :23%) » TERAAEEL
FroHIE e KNS ERMNERNIEM78%E
187,585,00078 7T (B 202468300 LE&
£ 1 105,439,000/ 70) * BB ER] (REE LR
BEFMREREEFKERN) B980% (B E2024
F6H30HLIEEE 1 73%) ©

S—FE TEEMERNEEEHESN
110,518,000 ¢ (B 2024568300 LE&
1 110,683,000 7T) 7K » (L 22 BEGH € 28 (7
EEWARERBEFBRKRA) N16% (BE
2024F6H30H IEFEFE 1 20%) o EEE & E
BEFFIZME T D REEA2% (B E20245F
6H30H LEEE 1 40%) > HEF|B] EAS%E
46,770,0007 70 (B E2024F6H30H LEFE
44,564,000787T) > LEEFEEF (REBEFH
MR EFFEF]) B920% (B ZE2024FE6830H LE
FE 27%) o

RAHEA AEEEEREHE A-10%
(B E2024F6H30HLEEE -10%) o =%
R ERNEISHEAR-7% (B E20245F6
B30HILEEE -7%) > M EEEMERNE
[EIHERIA-25% (B £2024FE6H30H LEE
B -21%) o

! FEHE (REHE) 2B —FEEEER A LRE

RETEHEENHERLLE ARBELFEE
mREE RN E F ARG ER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE MR

BUSINESS REVIEW FE#5ElEE

Revenue and Segment Loss by Market

BB E 2 HA RS BEE

21%
(22%) / Segment
Revenue Loss
KA DEBRSE

Hong Kong, Macau,

Overseas .

EH RPIR I

i H BN

* Comparative figures for FY2024 in the above chart are shown in brackets * _FEIESRRNA20248 E 2 LB #MFE

Adjusted
Segment
(Loss)/Profit

Adjusted Segment Margin’

Segment (Loss)/Profit! | #R:EEHE

Revenue Segment Loss | Loss Margin IBRERE (&548)

YA DR | DEBIRE (§548) /izad il E

Hong Kong, Macau & Overseas 150 (41) -27% () -5%

BB VB KB Turned from profit
loss increased of HK$5m to loss
by 382% 22 p.p. Rz 5 e & BT -9p.p.
Changes 215 +15% E75180382% 22185 5% BB RS
Mainland P33 562 (85) -15% 52 9%
Turned around
loss increased from loss of HK$10m
by 68% -4 p.p. HERTTF&EET +11 p.0.
Changes 215 +18% E51518 1168 % -8 F 7785 BEauF  +11EE9%
Overall 258 712 (126) -18% 44 6%
Turned around
loss increased from loss of HK$5m
by 113% -8p.p. HETHRE B & BT +7 p.p.
Changes 215 +18% E5HEIE113% =R BEER  +TEESE
! Adjusted Segment (Loss)/Profit refers to segment (loss)/profit excluding 1 RAEAEE (F518) I BFIERIGES Y PEEs DI
gold hedging losses (B518) /iaA)
“ Represent a non-HKFRS financial measure. i IEEE B BREEN NS E-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE MR

Hong Kong, Macau and Overseas

FE BRI RE

95%
(88%)

Revenue
WA
Retailing
78 N
Wholesaling
ik

Licensing
Rl .

* Comparative figures for FY2024 in the above chart are shown in brackets * EEESRAA2024 EZ LERE T

Adjusted
Segment Segment
(Loss)/Profit (Loss)/Profit

Segment (Loss)/ Margin Adjusted Segment Margin'

Profit S Ep (Loss)/Profit" | #R:EEEDER

Revenue 2B (B518) (&518) RS (#548) /

HK$M B& &7t WA bl mfE (&518) i@ et
Retailing & 142 (46) -32% (13)
Loss increased Loss increased

by 91% -11 p.p. by 27%
Changes £ +24% EREm91% 1118558 EHRIE 1027 % -
Wholesaling #it 2% 3 0 3% 0 3%
NA NA NA NA NA
Changes 215 TEH TEH TEH TEH THEH
Licensing fahR 275 5 5 99% 5 99%
’ -1 p.p. -1 p.p.
Changes £Z1E -67% 67%  -MEF5E 67%  -1EAESE
Overall 242 150 1) -27% 8) -6%
Turned from profit
Loss increased of HK$5m to loss
by 382% -22 p.p. 576 E B ETT -10 p.p.
Changes 1 +15% EIEI8I0582%  -221E1E 5% BREE 1005 5%
1 Adjusted Segment (Loss)/Profit refers to segment (loss)/profit excluding gold KBRS E (B518) mFIEMisE S E HERND
hedging losses 26 (E518) iamA
& Represent a non-HKFRS financial measure. & IEEE AV B REEL W EAE o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

vail

BEEE W

Hong Kong, Macau and Overseas

Hong Kong and Macau

The Hong Kong and Macau markets continue to be affected by
changes in the consumption patterns of outbound travellers and
mainland tourists. According to the retail sales data released by
the Census and Statistics Department of Hong Kong, the sales
value of jewellery, watches and clocks, and valuable gifts from July
2024 to March 2025 decreased by 15% over the corresponding
period last year. Nevertheless, as the Group has expanded its
retail network in Hong Kong and Macau, the retailing revenue
increased 24% to HK$141,932,000 (year ended 30 June 2024:
HK$114,602,000) during the Period. As at 31 March 2025, the
Group operated 6 self-operated shops (30 June 2024: 5 self-
operated shops) in Hong Kong and none (30 June 2024: 1 self-
operated shop) in Macau.

Overseas

During the Period, the Group has started its network expansion
initiatives in overseas markets. In November 2024, the Group has
launched its first licensed shop in Thailand.

Overall speaking, revenue from the Hong Kong, Macau and
overseas markets increased by 15% to HK$149,845,000 (year
ended 30 June 2024: HK$130,304,000) during the Period,
accounting for 21% (year ended 30 June 2024: 22%) of the
Group's total revenue. Its segment loss was HK$40,891,000 (year
ended 30 June 2024 segment loss: HK$8,484,000) with segment
loss margin of 27% (year ended 30 June 2024: 5%). Excluding
the gold hedging losses incurred, its adjusted segment loss*
would be HK$8,080,000 (year ended 30 June 2024 adjusted
segment profit”: HK$5,182,000), and the adjusted segment
loss margin® would be 6% (year ended 30 June 2024: adjusted
segment profit margin®: 4%).

The overall SSS in the Hong Kong and Macau markets was -21%
(year ended 30 June 2024: -2%). SSS for gold and platinum
products was -12% (year ended 30 June 2024: -2%), and -35%
(year ended 30 June 2024 -1%) for fixed price jewellery products.

# Represent a non-HKFRS financial measure.

E#& R KRB

EARRM
EBRBFITIBEES D INEIRE K A ik
BHERAEBENEE RESERTES
KM EHIE > 12024478 E2025%3 8 HA
M i BN RERYNEEEREER
R D15% o BEWIL AR AEBEREN
EBRRFANSERLSE RAPRANSE
A NN24% % 141,932,00058 7T (B, £2024
F6H30HLEEE 114,602,000 7T) o
20255331 H  AEBEAST AL EcH B E S
(2024565300 : 5B EE) R EPIN HE
KEHEE (202468308  1BBZE) ©

=y

RAPER ZREBE DB THIHRBEE
MEIEEREE T2024F 118 AE BN RER
RE B MRS

BEEms RNAPEBR REEE BRMK
BN IZBIUR A SE 1N15% 2 149,845,00078 70

(B E£2024%6H30H LEEE 130,304,000
BrT) AR EBEBERAN21% (B E2024
FEHS0HALILEEE 1 22%) - HDHEES
40,891,000 7T (B E2024F6 5308 L FEE
DEBEFIR | 8,484,000/ 7T) » DI EIBEA27%

(B ZE2024F6H30H LEFEE  5%) o g5t
KREFEEN S HHEE > I HLHE DI
[E518"1#% 748,080,000/ 7t (Bl E202496830H
IEFER RS EEF] 5,182,000/ 7T) » M
KBRS IEEEE H6% (B E20245F68
0B LEFELAREDIAEE 4%) o

BERRBEFPTBNEEREHES-21% (&
FE2024F6830B IEFE 1-2%) > B KiAE
EmNEIEHEA-12% EZE2024F6830H
IEEE -2%)  MEBEMERNEEHER
#-35% (B E2024F6H30H LEFE (-1%) ©

' BBV B RS EANNMHE-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE MR

Mainland
Pasth
4%
(5%)
-\
6%
(7%)
90%
(88%)
Revenue
KA
Retailin:
=z~ W
Wholesaling
Fiin24
Licensing
T .
* Comparative figures for FY2024 in the above chart are shown in brackets * FEFETEARA20240 F 2 LEE HF

Adjusted
Segment Segment
(Loss)/Profit Profit/(Loss)

Margin Margin'

Segment S Adjusted Segment | #EFEH P

Revenue (Loss)/Profit (#518) / Profit!* Vit il

WA | 2 (E538) /iaF Al E B SRR (H548) =

Retailing & 503 (86) 48

Turned around
Loss increased from loss of HK$5m

by 94% -6 p.0. HE#RsE & BT +11 p.p.

Changes &L +20% EHEIE94%  -6lA5 & BEEH 11155 %

Wholesaling #t 2% 35 (@) -12% 0 -1%
Loss decreased +4 p.p. Loss decreased by

by 18% 90% +12 p.p.

Changes £k +8% EERL18%  +EE 5% EHERL90%  +12185 5%

Licensing frif 75 24 5 19% 4 19%
Turned around Turned around from
from loss of HK$1m loss of HK$1m

HEHE1 B EET +25 p.p. HER1BEET +25 p.p.

Changes %1 +1% BEAEF 2505 58 BELNF] 055 58

Overall Z&5& 562 (85) -15% 52 9%
Turned around
Loss increased from loss of HK$10m

by 68% -4 p.p. HEHR1TFEET +11 p.p.

Changes £k +18% EFR1868% — -4EESE EEEF  +11EE 5%

1 Adjusted Segment Profit/(Loss) refers to segment profit/(loss) excluding gold KABS IR, (B518) SRS H HERN D
hedging losses EaF] (E518)

il Represent a non-HKFRS financial measure. # IEIER B E LR TR 2o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

vail

BEEE W

Mainland

As the Group has started to broaden its distribution network
in Mainland, the retailing revenue increased by 20% to
HK$502,427,000 (year ended 30 June 2024: HK$417,607,000),
accounting for 90% (year ended 30 June 2024: 88%) of Mainland
market's revenue and 71% (year ended 30 June 2024: 69%)
of the Group’s total. Its segment loss was HK$85,387,000
(year ended 30 June 2024 segment loss: HK$44,083,000)
with segment loss margin of 17% (year ended 30 June 2024
segment loss margin: 11%). The overall SSS in Mainland was
-7% (year ended 30 June 2024: -8%). The SSS for its gold and
platinum products was -5% (year ended 30 June 2024: -4%),
and -17% (year ended 30 June 2024: -27%) for its fixed price
jewellery products. Excluding the gold hedging losses attributed,
its adjusted segment result” turned around from a loss to a profit
of HK$47,975,000 (year ended 30 June 2024 adjusted segment
loss”: HK$4,610,000) and the adjusted segment profit margin®
would be 10% (year ended 30 June 2024 adjusted segment loss
margin®: 1%).

The revenue of the wholesaling business increased by 8% to
HK$35,405,000 (year ended 30 June 2024: HK$32,894,000),
which accounted for 6% (year ended 30 June 2024: 7%) of
Mainland market’s revenue and 5% (year ended 30 June 2024:
5%) of the Group’s total. Its segment loss decreased by 18%
to HK$4,196,000 (year ended 30 June 2024 segment loss:
HK$5,119,000), with segment loss margin at 12% (year ended 30
June 2024 segment loss margin: 16%). Excluding gold hedging
losses attributed to the wholesaling business, this adjusted
segment loss* would reduce to HK$401,000 (year ended 30 June
2024 adjusted segment loss*: HK$4,130,000), resulting in an
adjusted segment loss margin of 1% (year ended 30 June 2024
adjusted segment loss margin®: 13%).

Licensing income in the Mainland market increased by 1% to
HK$23,864,000 (year ended 30 June 2024: HK$23,712,000),
which accounted for 4% (year ended 30 June 2024: 5%) of
Mainland market’s revenue and 3% (year ended 30 June 2024:
4%) of the Group’s total. Its segment result turned around from
a loss to a profit of HK$4,604,000 (year ended 30 June 2024
segment loss: HK$1,345,000), with segment profit margin was
19% (year ended 30 June 2024 segment loss margin: 6%).

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had a total of 231 shops (30
June 2024: 213 shops) in Mainland, including 132 licensed shops
(80 June 2024: 141 licensed shops) and 99 self-operated shops
(80 June 2024: 72 self-operated shops).

# Represent a non-HKFRS financial measure

it
HRASEEERGBIEAER A2 HA
48 BE R AL NN20%ZE502,427,00058 75 (&
F2024F 68300 LEFE [ 417,607,0008
70) (AR TIB U A I90% (B ZE202445E68
30HIEEE @ 88%) MASE B AR BN AR
71% (BiZE2024F6H330HLEEE 1 69%) o &
D 2B 518 485,387,000 7T (B, 2024468
30B LEFE © 44,083,000 7T) » D EPEER
217% (B E2024F6830HEFE 1 11%) ©
R EEREE S E A-7% (B E2024FE6H
S0BLEEFE (-8%) - HESKATERNE
[EHHEB-5% (B E2024F6830H LFE :
4%)  TMEBEMERNBEHERNB-17%
(B FE2024F6H30H LEEFE 1-27%) ° i A5t
REGESETEER WEEHAESBEE
BB A B B 47,975,000 70 (Bl 20244
6H30H EEEKBEHILEIE 4,610,000
BIT) o MAAHESBFABEERBAR10% EHE
2024F 630 IE FELFBE D BB AT IR ="
1%) ©

HE 25 2 FEUR AR I18% = 35,405,000 70 (B
FE2024F6830H LEFE © 32,894,000/ 7T)
(5B A BIC% (i ZFE2024F6830H Lk
FE I 7%) RAEBRPBBMARNS% (B
F202456H30HLEFE 1 5%) - HOEBiEs1E
L 18%%E4,196,00078 70 (B FE20248E6H30
HIEFEE :5,119,00087T) » DEEGEXA
12% (B E2024%6830H LEEE © 16%) °
WAt R B EFEEN RS H AR A
HZ BRI R 18R £401,0008 7T (B
ZFE2024FE6H30H L FEELRBEHILE A
4,130,000/ 7T) @ MEFE D BEEER S
1% (B E2024F6H30H LEF EL BN EBA
B 13%) o

W REEFBRALENI%E
23,864,000 7T (B E2024F6H30H LEFE ¢
23,712,000 7T) » (AR B A 4% (B
F2024F6830H LEEE  5%) RAERERK
HARSABUR A B93% (B ZE 2024568300 LEE
E:4%) c HD I B EE A8 E4,604,000
BT (B ZE2024F6H30H EFE NS ©
1,345,000 70) » 2 EFEER19% (BE
2024F6830H LEFEDEEIEE [ 6%) ©

202538318 AEEN M HEF 231/
540 (2024468308 : 21335 8H) > B13F132
RS AR E (202468300 141 MEE) &
QOB BE 5 (202456/830H : 72 BEE) ©

' IEIFEBMBRSENNMHAE-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEY MR

FY2025 Mainland E-commerce Business Performance

20258 E M EFEIERIR

Sales by Product
RERBDNIHEE

5%
(3%

Gold & Platinum
HERHAE

Fixed Price Jewellery
EEE

Comparative figures for FY2024 in the above chart ~ *  EEIIESERA20248 F£ 2 LEBH T
are shown in brackets

A

HKD136 million +68%
136E BB T Changes 215
RMB127 million +68%
ARB12TEET Changes £15
TIHEE?

RMB3,293 +32%
AE#3,2937¢ Changes %16

Contribution to Mainland Retailing Revenue':

Pt EEUA

27% +8 p.p. EE 7B
Contribution to Group’s Retailing Revenue':

HEBTERA:

21% +6 p.p. BE D
T Sales of self-operated shops and e-commerce 1 B E R E T RSy E
business e FHEEOSEER

2 ASP included value-added tax (VAT)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the Period, revenue of e-commerce business from
Mainland increased 68% to HK$136,279,000 (year ended 30
June 2024: HK$81,085,000), accounting for 27% (year ended 30
June 2024: 19%) of the retailing revenue in Mainland and 21%
(year ended 30 June 2024: 15%) of the Group’s retailing revenue.
Sales of gold and platinum products accounted for 95% (year
ended 30 June 2024: 97%) of its sales mix and 5% (year ended
30 June 2024: 3%) for its fixed price jewellery products.

Overall speaking, revenue from the Mainland market increased
18% to HK$561,696,000 (year ended 30 June 2024:
HK$474,213,000), accounting for 79% (year ended 30 June
2024: 78%) of the Group’s total revenue. lts segment loss
increased to HK$84,979,000 (year ended 30 June 2024 segment
loss: HK$50,547,000), with segment loss margin of 15% (year
ended 30 June 2024 segment loss margin: 11%). Excluding
the gold hedging losses attributed to the Mainland market, its
adjusted segment result* would turn around from a loss to a profit
of HK$52,178,000 (year ended 30 June 2024 adjusted segment
loss*: HK$10,085,000) and the adjusted segment profit margin®
would be 9% (year ended 30 June 2024 adjusted segment loss
margin®: 2%).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Non-HKFRS Financial Measure

To supplement the consolidated results of the Group prepared
in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards (‘HKFRS”),
certain non-HKFRS financial measures, adjusted operating profit/
(loss), adjusted loss for the period/year, adjusted segment profit/
(loss), adjusted segment profit/(loss) margin, EBITDA, EBITDA
margin and total operating expenses to revenue ratio have
been presented in this announcement. The management of the
Group believes that such non-HKFRS financial measures provide
investors with clearer view on the Group’s financial results, and
with useful supplementary information to assess the performance
of the Group’s strategic operations by excluding the impact of
certain non-cash items. Nevertheless, the use of this non-HKFRS
financial measure has limitations as an analytical tool. These
unaudited non-HKFRS financial measures should be considered in
addition to, not as a substitute for, analysis of the Group’s financial
performance prepared in accordance with HKFRS. In addition,
these non-HKFRS financial measures may be defined differently
from similar terms used by other companies.

# Represent a non-HKFRS financial measure.

PRAEARIA PO EE F B 75 S IS UL A LS 1068%
%186,279,0008 7t (B £2024F6830H 1k
FE 181,085,000 7T) » HRMBEWAD
27% (B E2024F6H30H LEFEE © 19%) KIS
EEZEWAN21% (B E2024546830H b
FE15%) cms KIS ERNHELEH
EHEMB% (B E2024FE6830H EFEE :
97%) > HEEEMERRHS% (B E20245F
6H30BLEEE 1 3%) ©

BREM=  REAMTIZHOWAEINI8%E
561,696,000/ ¢ (B E202456H30H LLF
FE 474,213,000/ 7T) > 1h A& EAB W AR
79% (B E2024FE6H30HIEEE 1 78%) o H
P ERES IR N ZE 84,979,000 7T (B E£20244F
68 30H IEEE 2 EPEIE ¢ 50,547,000787T) »
DEEIBERA15% (B E2024F6H30H LEFE
ENIEER 1 11%) HAst RRthmHiIEAE
ENESHEAFEE I ELBEEDIEEE
HE AR ESL2, 178,000 7T (B, £2024F6 8
308 IEFELFAE D EEIE" 10,085,000/
7T0) * MASAR DRI EE B9% (EE2024
F6HI0H IEFELFAEDIPEIBER 2%) ©

MAFE 1R

FERMBRSEAMBHE

BRI EREREEABMBRSENRER
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Al (ERAMBHWRSEN) M8 KR
Biggar/ (518 KRBHFREER
RABDEER, (B5R) ERBDE &R
/ (B1R) B REtHENE TEREHA
BH REFE MBS TERBHNRNE
DU M BRI RALER) EREAETRE
Sl AEBEEBMRE ZFFEBMBTRE
ZRP B ERREERHEEMNEEE
MHER LRHEEBIVEIRER bJEBM
BRETHRERENEE FTHEEERE
MERRE A EARFHFEBMBTRS
EHHMBAEFRONIAEEERRME =
EREBZIFEBMBREERNM B EE
REBRBEBYHREENRRNEEER
MBRBEOFBIMIT > MIFB N E I
ZEERMBREENMBHENEER
SERE M AT FTABVELEARBFI R -
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s cash and bank balances
amounted to HK$53,340,000 (30 June 2024: HK$31,918,000).
Excluded loans from fellow subsidiaries and gold loans from
a fellow subsidiary, net cash was HK$31,533,000 (30 June
2024: HK$31,918,000). The debt-to-equity ratio was 556%
(80 June 2024: 537%), being the ratio of total liabilities of
HK$2,357,097,000 (30 June 2024: HK$1,687,569,000) against
total shareholders’ deficit of HK$423,872,000 (30 June 2024:
HK$314,505,000). As at 31 March 2025, the Group utilised
banking facilities of approximately HK$21,807,000 (30 June 2024:
Nil). The Group’s income and expenditure streams are mainly
denominated in Renminbi.

Inventory

(Turnover Days)

(BB E%)

Gold & Platinum
=x KMiAE 397

Fixed Price Jewellery

EEEE 1,473
Overall

B2e 550

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s inventory increased by 47%
to HK$1,069,901,000 (30 June 2024: HK$728,097,000). The
average inventory turnover days were 550 days (year ended
30 June 2024: 554 days), among which the average inventory
turnover days of gold and platinum products were 397 days (year
ended 30 June 2024: 350 days). The average inventory turnover
days of fixed price jewellery products were 1,473 days (year
ended 30 June 2024: 1,632 days).

The inventory turnover days calculated basing on closing inventory
were 654 days (year ended 30 June 2024: 640 days) with the
closing inventory turnover days of gold and platinum products
being 500 days (year ended 30 June 2024: 431 days) and 1,586
days (year ended 30 June 2024: 1,746 days) for fixed price
jewellery products.

RBEERMEER

R2025%3A31H A&EBEHNIRE &IRIT
4582 453,340,00078 7t (2024683001 :
31,918,000/ 70)  MrERMBAB ZEM
E—HBERHNBABZESER  FREE
31,533,000 75 (202446 530H : 31,918,000
B7t) c BEEEIEEAS556% (2024F6H30
H :537%) > tbTh 3% 48 & (52,357,097,00074 7T
(202468308 : 1,687,569,0003% 70) H8%
f% S5 5 AL 4B £B423,872,0005 7T (202446830
H : 314,505,00078 75) Z LEBIstE ° 5220254
3H31H > AEEEAIRTTRIE 421,807,000
BT (202468308 ) o NEE WK IE
BFEUARKGE-

=8

Average Inventory Closing Inventory
Fi9ESE HMEREE

9 mths ended
31 Mar 2025
#H F2025F Changes
3831HI1E9fEAR b= (o

9 mths ended
31 Mar 2025

# F20255F
3A31HL9ER

Changes
24t

500 +69
1,586 -160
-4 654 +14

2202538310 AEBMMESEMN47%
%1,069,901,000% 7t (2024£E6H30A :
728,097,000/ 7T) MFEHEFERAHHE A
5500 (B{ZE2024FE6830H LEEE @ 554H) »
HPhBEMRASERZFHEERER#A
397H (HZE2024FE6H308 (EEE : 350R) °
EEEMER FHEEFEAHEA1,473
B @ E2024%F68308 LEFE : 1,632H) ©

MEREFEAE 2 EEREH#4A654H (&
F20245F6H30HIEEE  640H) > EFREE
KiAEERNWEREERE R #4008 (&
F2024F6H30HIEEE  431H) » EEEHEH
ERZBXREEAEHHKE]A1,5860 (EE
20246 H30H IEFFE © 1,746H) ©

Annual Report 2024/25 3§ 19



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

vail

BEEE W

Capital Expenditure
During the Period, the Group’s capital expenditures amounted
to approximately HK$30,645,000 (year ended 30 June 2024:
HK$26,215,000), including the leasehold improvements, furniture,
fixtures and equipment.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s total commitments amounted
to HK$19,000 (30 June 2024: HK$509,000).

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantee

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had provided corporate financial
guarantees of HK$400,000,000 to banks in respect of the
aggregate banking facilities granted to its intermediate holding
company. As at 30 June 2024, the Group had provided corporate
financial guarantees of HK$550,000,000 in respect of the
aggregate banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries.

As at 31 March 2025, no loss allowance was recognised (30
June 2024: Nil) under the expected credit loss model in respect of
such corporate financial guarantee in the Company’s statement of
financial position whereas no financial impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 March 2025 and 30 June 2024, save as disclosed
above, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities.

Human Capital Policy

As at 31 March 2025, the number of employees of the Group
was 1,158 (30 June 2024: 978). The management reviews
and examines the remuneration policies on a regular basis to
ensure that fair rewards and compensation are provided to
our employees. Remuneration packages are determined with
reference to comparable market rates whiles bonuses and other
rewards are linked to the performances of the Group and the
employees. This policy aims to motivate employees with monetary
incentives to work together to enhance the Group’s business
performance.

¢k

R AHAR » AN B B AR A %930,645,0008
7t (B E2024FE6H30H LEEFE © 26,215,00078
7T0)  BIEEMERE BRI EBRRENR
Zl_(o

B KR
R2025FE3831H  REBNKIELEIES
19,0007 7T (2024468 30H : 509,000/ 7T) ©

R BARIER

RIE_RE=-A=+—H > x&EBEHE
HBiZER AR T ZIRTRELEBIRIT
H B AT M #51E17400,000,0008 50 R - &
ZHWEXNA=TH AEEEREAENBA
B FZIRTRELBHA AN MBIER
550,000,000 7T, ©

12025438310 RERHEEHBEELN

RAERBDPHBIR R RL ERZ A BT HER
B EEE (202468308 | &) » HiRE

MHBBRRIEYBZE-

202593831 H &2024FE6H30H » I £ X
WEEN FEBITEEREANARERE-
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20254383 1H  AEBNE T AHA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OUTLOOK

The growing reserves of gold in central banks, combined with
ongoing geopolitical tensions and trade disputes globally, have
pushed gold prices to unprecedented levels. Furthermore, factors
such as macroeconomic uncertainties, a sustained decline in
consumer sentiment, and weakened Renminbi have had a notable
impact on the Group’s sales performance during the Period.

Although gold prices have climbed to historic peaks, there are
signs that consumers are adjusting to higher gold prices, which
should facilitate a return to normal sales levels. The Mainland
government’s efforts to stimulate domestic demand signal
a positive trend for the gradual recovery of the market. As
macroeconomic conditions and consumer sentiment improve,
our businesses in the region are poised to keep building on their
growth momentum, bolstered by renewed consumer confidence.
Given these encouraging factors, the Group is confident in its
mid— to long-term prospects and will continue to expand its
footprint in the Mainland market.

Thanks to the robust financial backing from Luk Fook, the
Group is steadfast in its commitment to advancing its corporate
strategies, vision, mission, and values, leveraging a strategic
framework that has contributed to Luk Fook’s commercial
success. The Group will further expand its retail network by
opening self-operated stores in Hong Kong and Mainland.
Furthermore, it will continue to revitalise its licensing efforts and
scale up the e-commerce business in Mainland. The Group is
optimistic about the substantial growth opportunities in overseas
markets and remains committed to expand its international
presence.

The Group’s three-year corporate strategy focuses on three
key areas: Market Expansion, Brand Revamp, and Product
Differentiation. This strategic focus aims to drive future business
growth of the Group.

A=

RAITH < A S I 0 > 0 5 A RO AR X
AERREBREXESF R RS ERE
ERFIPRARABBIKF o IS > RERAE T EARR
HEEMFETHRRARBREZFREZ 5
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~OHBEEEERRSNEE BREAME
ERERHE KT - AMBFRDRAARFE 15
wEMBEEIEENERBE BERERKL
BIRIEMHERNNNE  THEBEELE
BHHI T ~EERZMENEFEEE
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ERER AT IS AR E -
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Market Expansion RS

FERERERI
FOCUS ON PRODUCT
DIFFERENTIATION

FiERmEEE
FOCUS ON
BRAND REVAMP

Y BEAMTIBRE
BYRE FOCUS ON MARKET
STEADY GROWTH EXPANSION
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Mainland Market Expansion

The Group will continue to expand its business in Mainland
through a combination of self-operated and licensed shops, as
well as e-commerce. By leveraging Luk Fook’s robust distribution
network and well-established licensing partnerships, the Group is
revitalizing its licensing operations in the Mainland. Furthermore,
the Group is continuously enhancing its e-commerce presence
and strengthen collaborations with various online platforms.
Recognizing the significant spending power of young consumers
on these platforms, the Group will actively promote affordable
luxury jewellery to broaden its appeal within this demographic.
As part of its broader market expansion strategy, the Group is
actively pursuing licensing opportunities in regions beyond China
and Hong Kong. This initiative aims to facilitate the regional growth
of its brand presence by forming licensing alliance in targeted
markets.

Brand Revamp

The Group is continuously enhancing its brand image and
positioning. The Group is committed to improving product quality
assurance, elevating service standards, and optimising support
for our licensees to better meet market demands. Our store
image has been refreshed to reflect a vibrant new identity. The
redesigned store features a harmonious blend of warm peach
fuzz tones, bronze, and light beige, creating a comfortable
and enjoyable shopping experience while leaving a stylish and
memorable impression of 3DG Jewellery. Additionally, the brand
has creatively integrated the new theme concept of “Stylish
Femme” into the decor, showcasing a range of fashionable and
diverse female styles. This is complemented by personalized
jewellery, aimed at providing consumers with fashion inspiration
and fulfilling their varied shopping preferences.

Product Differentiation

QOur company is pursuing a multi-faceted product differentiation
strategy aimed at enhancing brand value and expanding our
product appeal to a broader audience. This includes exploring
advanced and innovative craftsmanship techniques, as well as
collaborating with select intellectual property (IP) partners to co-
create exclusive collections. At the same time, we are reassessing
our pricing strategy to better align with our brand positioning and
the differentiated product offerings.
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Operational Efficiency

To strengthen its competitive advantage, the Group will enhance
operational efficiency through synergy by utilizing Luk Fook’s
systems and infrastructure, including supply chain management,
process automation, big data management, and data analytics.
Additionally, the Group is committed to maximizing employee
productivity by fostering a culture of continuous improvement and
innovation.

AWARDS AND ACHIEVEMENTS

The Group has also achieved industry awards as recognition for
brand excellence and for its efforts in promoting service excellence
in the jewellery retail sector.

- “CAPITAL — Services Awards 2024 — Jewellery”
- “In-house Counsel Awards — Winner (Employment and
Labor)” by China Business Law Journal

- “The Outstanding Corporate Strategy Awards 2024” by East
Week

= “MPW Elite Award 2023”

- “Hong Kong Q-Mark Service Scheme” by the Hong Kong
Q-Mark Council

= “CAPITAL — ESG Awards 2024”

- “Hong Kong Happy Shopping Festival — Courtesy Store
(World-wide Top Trend)” by Hong Kong Retail Management
Association

- “2024 Quality Service Retailer of the Year of Flagship
Stores — Bronze Award” by Hong Kong Retail Management
Association

REERFED AEBRINBANEBHNRR
RERR QEEEREE CREEHE
AREBEERMEDNT BBWRNERS
EEMme I AEBTERNNBEBESH
BNERAFNXE UBRABTEREE
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FEETRESEERRE 5EHEHHN
BIEREHGETE R EEEERBAE
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— (B3 - eFXEBAE-BEFEHE
B (BRRZE)

—  (RIET) — M H b ERAE KE22024 )
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ENEE)
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MAJOR EVENTS
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July 78 2024
Awarded the “Services Awards 2024 — Jewellery” by Capital.
S ESIREE (CAPITALE A FESS ) 1835 (A B AR ARTE K 8E2024 | ©

September 98 2024
Awarded “The Outstanding Corporate Strategy Awards 2024” by East Week.
SEELRBE(RET) BEE M H B EREA122024 o

September 98 2024
Awarded the “MPW Elite Award 2023” by Ming Pao Weekly.
SESBREE (BRIRE T ) 185N 2023 2 R IKE BT AR ALE o

September 98 2024

Organized “The Gilded Seal: Golden Carriage Glorious Parade” at Kingbuy
Center in Foshan, The Central in Nanjing and InTime Department Store in
Lu’an of PRC. A
EESHENFEBELUEREBEP O -ERPRESRAZREZEEE7T *
SIS FERERKE '

October 10H 2024

Organized a new shop opening and “Love Lane” Collection” Roadshow at
New-Mart Shopping Plaza in Dalian of PRC
EESRBERPEAEN BN RS TSR EAENIENEREEHE
MERERZIRTIK R
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October 10A 2024 - RARSR

“« : » - u iC PR o r"
Awarded the “Hong Kong Q-Mark Service Scheme” by the Hong Kong [t "“ ek """‘"'“"‘“”""
Q-Mark Council. '
SRR EERBEBEESEEESEQEEERSTERE

October 108 2024

Awarded the “ESG Awards 2024” by CAPITAL.

SEEHERE(CAPITAL BAMF)EENBEHEROEEAKE
2024 | °

) HKRMA
December 128 2024

Awarded the “Hong Kong Happy Shopping Festival — Courtesy Store
(World-wide Top Trend)” by Hong Kong Retail Management Association.
TEGREE(EESEEERE)EETEARLOEYEH2024 - THR1E
i (B EEAER) ) ©

2024 BABRABSHE December 128 2024

Awarded the “2024 Quality Service Retailer of the Year of Flagship Stores -
Bronze Award” by Hong Kong Retail Management Association.
TEELBEE(EETEEERT)- [ 2024REEBERBFZERH(FERES)
HAEE] o

January 18 2025

Organized a “Style by You, KELLY All Around” Shop Opening Ceremony and
Meet-and-Greet at Central Emporium in Nanjing of PRC.
EESHRBERPERERAREBRITREHN s KELLYRIZ I S EEHERR
RREREERERSMBE REE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
AND BOARD COMMITTEES

EEEREEZEENEE
As at 31 March 2025
20253 831H

Board of Directors

4

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny!
(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

=P baviaal
(FEFET )

Ms. CHEUNG Irene!

RIEIS L

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung'

FI5kEL L

Dr. CHAN So Kuen!

BREBEL

Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline®
BEB LT

Mr. SZE Yeung Kuen?®

Mo s

Mr. CHAN Raymond?®

FRENSC S

Dr. LAM Ki Wai, Lianne®
maEa=ELe

Dr. CHOW Kwoon Ho, Simon?®
AR

Remarks 5% :
1 Executive Director fT& %
2 Non-executive Director JFHITHES

3 Independent Non-executive Director %17 JFHITE S

Audit Committee

BRZEAY
Mr. SZE Yeung Kuen?® (Chairman)
MERLES (F/E)
Mr. CHAN Raymond?®
BREN S SRS
Dr. LAM Ki Wai, Lianne®
ME LS

Dr. CHOW Kwoon Ho, Simon?
AERELe

Nomination Committee
RBZEE
Dr. LAM Ki Wai, Lianne® (Chairman)
mE2EL (FE)
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny’
=Wt e
Ms. CHEUNG lIrene!
SRIEIS L L
Mr. SZE Yeung Kuen?®
k=g das
Mr. CHAN Raymond?®
PR S S A2
Dr. CHOW Kwoon Ho, Simon?
AR

Remuneration Committee
) = e

Mr. CHAN Raymond?® (Chairman)
PRENSC LA (F/2)

Mr. SZE Yeung Kuen?®
iR Pa

Dr. LAM Ki Wai, Lianne®
ME=ELS

Dr. CHOW Kwoon Ho, Simon?
ARRELe
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRS

The Board of the Company recognises that sound and
effective corporate governance practices and procedures,
with an emphasis on integrity, transparency, accountability and
independence, are essential to enhance the shareholders’ value
and safeguard the shareholders’ interests. The Company is
committed to maintaining a good corporate governance standard
and endeavours to ensure that its businesses are conducted in
accordance with all applicable rules and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

Shareholders

FABMEZTGRA TRATEMNE -BEH
E-BEERBIMZBERT BREREMZ
EEEARRKEFHREARREERRRE
RREDBESEEZ - AAFAEERRFER
XEARE U NHBFRERMEERRA
RIEHIETES

EEERRE

BRER

Board of Directors

Exg

Company
Secretary
REWE

Management
EIEE

Nomination Remuneration
Committee Committee

R2ZEEE HIMEESS

Internal Audit

PRI it

D External Auditor

LS SNEERLBUER

Risk Management and
Sustainability Committee

RREER A
BRREET
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE AND GOVERNANCE CULTURE

The Group firmly believes that to achieve its corporate vision
of “promoting the Group’s brand to become widely recognized
and ingrained in the hearts of the public”, it must act with
integrity, transparency, and a sense of responsibility. The Board
of Directors, as the core of the Group’s governance structure,
takes on a leadership role in formulating the Group’s mission and
strategic direction, thereby providing guidance for the conduct of
employees and ensuring that the Company’s vision, values, and
business strategies are aligned with its corporate culture.

Corporate Values
Attitude: People-oriented, treating others with respect

Innovation: Innovative development, continuous improvement,
pursuit of excellence

Unity: Gathering elite talent, fostering mutual trust and
encouragement, achieving success through collective effort

The Board of Directors ensures that these values are integrated
throughout the Group, shaping our corporate culture. At the
same time, we believe that strong governance is the foundation
for achieving long-term and stable development. Therefore, we
have established a robust governance framework, stringent risk
management practices, and an effective internal control system
to promote sustainable business development and to plan the
Group’s business strategies, thereby creating long-term value for
all stakeholders.

TtEREARNXE

KREBREMEBLER BERRBEEERRE
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EEEER
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in the Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the Period, except for the
following deviation:

Code Provision C.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual, so that there is a clear division of
responsibilities for the management of the Board and the day-to-
day management of the Group’s business to ensure a balance of
power and authority.

In view of the increasing trend of business deriving from the
Mainland market, it is believed that Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny
being the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
will further enhance the business development of the Group in
the Mainland market due to its norms on “status parity” when
future business negotiations are conducted in Mainland. Besides,
members of the Board also include qualified professionals and
other prominent and experienced individuals from the community.
The Board considers that the existing Board composition, with
the support of Board Committees, can ensure a balance of power
and authority. The Board will nevertheless review this structure
from time to time and will consider the segregation of the two
roles at when appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors is aware of any
information that would reasonably indicate that the Company is
not, or was not for any part of the Period in compliance with the
CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as a code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiry of all directors, they confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the
Period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(i)

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive directors,
one non-executive director and four independent non-
executive directors. They include persons with a wealth of
practical experiences in the jewellery industry, accountancy
profession, legal profession, securities industry and
sustainable development. The Board possesses a
balance of skills, experiences and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.
The composition of our Board complies with Rules
3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The current
members of the Board are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny
(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. CHEUNG lrene

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Director
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. SZE Yeung Kuen

Mr. CHAN Raymond

Dr. LAM Ki Wai, Lianne

Dr. CHOW Kwoon Ho, Simon

The biographical details of the directors are set out in the
section of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 66 to 71 of this Annual Report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) EEE (..ﬁ)
(i) Attendance Records at the Board, Board i) EFEeTR -EFHZETEEREE
Committees and General Meetings ﬁk@Z-’i‘nruEﬁ
The attendance records of the individual directors at BEERNABERETZEEE Y
the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, B EBEZZESER RLZETEE
Remuneration Committee and general meetings during the HINEETGEMREAGT ZHFELE
Period are set out as follows: FHWMT
No. of Meetings Attended/Held
e/ BTEERY
Annual
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Directors £ EXE BiKEET ReEET  HFHMEST RREEAD
Executive Directors ﬁl TEE
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Chairman ~ &758E4C 4% 33 N/A 18R 11 N/A 18R 11
& Chief Executive Officer) (ZERTHARE)
Ms. CHEUNG lrene RIEB L 33 N/A B R 11 N/A R R 11
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung InBit 3/3 N/A R N/A R N/A 158 11
Dr. CHAN So Kuen BREEEL 3/3 N/A R iR N/A R iR N/A R iR il
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline BEBRZT 3/3 N/A R N/A R N/A 158 11
Independent Non-executive BiESTESR
Directors
Mr. SZE Yeung Kuen EE#LE 3/3 3/3 11 11 il
Mr. CHAN Raymond BREIS T4 33 3/3 il il il
Dr. LAM Ki Wai, Lianne HaEEt 3/3 3/3 11 11 il
Dr. CHOW Kwoon Ho, Simon BREsEL 3/3 3/3 11 11 11

During the Period, the Chairman held a meeting with the
Independent Non-executive Directors without presence of other
directors.

(iii)

32

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of
the Company within a framework of prudent and effective
controls which enables risks to be assessed and managed.
The Board controls the business but delegates day-to-day
responsibilities to the executive management. The Board
sets the Company’s strategic aims, values and standards
and ensures that its obligations to its shareholders and other
stakeholders are understood and fulfilled by the members of
the Board.

The Company has a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decision. The Board gives clear
directions to the management as to the matters that must
be approved by the Board before decisions are made on
behalf of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Board Responsibilities and Delegation
(Continued)

All the directors of the Company have full and timely access
to all relevant information and have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that all proper Board procedures,
applicable rules and regulations are followed. All the
directors including the independent non-executive directors
may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense in carrying out
their functions, upon making request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
regularly.

Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company confirms that the Board has received from
each of the independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. SZE Yeung Kuen, Mr. CHAN Raymond, Dr. LAM Ki
Wai, Lianne, and Dr. CHOW Kwoon Ho, Simon, an annual
confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and, having taken into account
the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules in
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors, the Company considers that all independent non-
executive directors are independent.

During the Period and up to the date of this Annual Report,
the Board had at all times met the requirements under (i)
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with
at least one of them possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise; and (i) Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules which
requires that the independent non-executive directors
represent at least one-third of the board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

v)

34

Mechanism for the Board to Obtain Independent
Views and Opinions

The Company has established the following mechanisms
to ensure independent views and input are available to the
Board:—

(i) The Company adopts a vigorous selection process for
independent non-executive directors. The Nomination
Committee comprehensively evaluates candidates’
backgrounds, external appointments, skills, potential
conflicts of interest, to ensure their independence and
objectivity in decision-making.

(i) At least one-third of the Board must be represented
by independent non-executive directors. Each director
remains committed to dedicating sufficient time and
contribution to the Company.

(i)  The board structure is effective and appropriate taking
into consideration the proportion of independent
non-executive directors, annual independence
confirmations, and their non-involvement in daily
operations.

(iv)  The independent non-executive directors meet with
the Chairman in a closed door-meeting at least once
annually and they can interact with the management
and other Directors including the Chairman through
formal and informal means.

(v} Independent professional advice is also available to
all Directors whenever necessary at the Company’s
expense.

(v  With strong capabilities, extensive experience,
diverse backgrounds, and professional knowledge,
independent non-executive directors share valuable
insights with the Board to ensure optimal corporate
governance and protect shareholder interests.

The Board has reviewed the implementation of these
mechanisms and determined that they remain effective.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Directors’ Relationship

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material or connected
relationship between members of the Board.

Re-election of Directors

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting(s)
(“AGM(s)”) in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Directors’ Ongoing Development

All directors have the opportunities to receive professional
training programmes arranged by the Company during their
terms of appointment which cover the topics of corporate
governance, updates on the Listing Rules and other
regulatory developments at the expense of the Company.
Directors are encouraged by the Company to participate in
the relevant continuous professional training to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has also
engaged consultants to provide the training programmes.

During the Period, the Company arranged two seminars
covering the topics of cyber security and generative Al.
The current directors’ training records during the Period are
summarised as follows:

EXE (@

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

EERRF

BAERFIEESN EEEREZH
FEEAFNOENH ¥% - RBRE
thE AR REREH o

EEESR
EREFARBELRATZATMA R
AABIRRBFEAE ((RRBEKXE))

tHmESRAEESE T
EFNNER

%E%%Tﬁﬁmﬂﬁwﬁﬁ% A
AAETHNEEEN TERERE
e LR R REMEEE
B BRBARATEE FATREE
S RARRAESEEEIIUERKREN
REZMBRIXAE X LFIEFEFIE
PR M E SRR M

REME ARARERITMRASNE
NEHRERRZERENATLEEZ
B NAHERN RAEEFIEIIER
BT

Training on regulatory development,
directors profession or duties,
or other relevant topics

EREESR - ESEEgRESE

Directors S o B fth+H B R _E R 3
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny =SB SE 4

(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (/1 TIEAEZE)
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Mr. SZE Yeung Kuen MERLE 4
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Dr. LAM Ki Wai, Lianne MEa=EL v
Dr. CHOW Kwoon Ho, Simon BAEsEL 4
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The Chairman leads the Board in the formulation of strategies and
in the achievement of objectives and ensures that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings
and receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a
timely manner. The Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the
authority and responsible for running the Company’s business,
implementing the Company’s strategies in achieving business
objectives. Both the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
positions are currently held by Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, an
executive director. The Board believes that the current governance
structure, with one person serving as both the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer and the majority of the Board being non-
executive directors, provides an effective balance of power and
authority for the management of the Company and is in the best
interest of the Company at the present stage.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the non-executive directors are appointed for a term of not
more than three years, and the appointments are renewable from
time to time, subject to retirement by rotation at AGMs.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, including
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, for overseeing the respective aspects
of the Group’s affairs.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense
in appropriate circumstances.

(i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. SZE Yeung Kuen,
with three other members namely Mr. CHAN Raymond,
Dr. LAM Ki Wai, Lianne, and Dr. CHOW Kwoon Ho, Simon.
All Committee members are independent non-executive
directors, exceeding the requirement of a majority of
independent non-executive directors by the Listing Rules. In
compliance with the requirements of Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21
of the Listing Rules, the majority of the members possess
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The written terms
of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(i)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Period.
The major work performed by the Audit Committee during
the Period included (a) reviewing of, inter alia, the interim
and annual financial statements, the interim and annual
reports, the Sustainability Report, the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
the disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report, the
corporate governance and compliance status of the CG
Code, the internal audit plan and functions of the Group and
the continuing connected transactions of the Group; and (b)
making recommendation to the Board for the appointment
of the new external auditor.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Period have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee is of the view that the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Period comply with
the applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules,
and that sufficient disclosures have been made.

The Company believes that a clear appreciation of the
separate roles of the management, the external auditor
and Audit Committee members is crucial to the effective
functioning of an audit committee. The Board is responsible
for selecting appropriate accounting policies and the
preparation of the financial statements. The external auditor
is responsible for auditing and attesting to the Group’s
financial statements and evaluating the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, to the extent
that they consider necessary to support their audit report.
The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the entire
process.

The major functions and duties of the Audit Committee
include:

o reviewing the Group’s interim and annual financial
statements, the interim and annual reports and the
Sustainability Report before submission to the Board
for approval;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(i)

38

Audit Committee (Continued)

o reviewing the financial reporting obligations and
considering any matters raised by the Group’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or external auditor;

o reviewing and monitoring the independence and
objectivity of the external auditor, and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards;

o approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditor and making recommendations
on the appointment, re-appointment or removal of
external auditor;

° reviewing the internal audit programme and ensuring
that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and effective, and considering any major findings of
risk management and internal control matters;

° reviewing the financial control, risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and ensuring
that the management has discharged its duty to
establish and maintain effective risk management
and internal control systems, and patrticularly, the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions as well as those relating to the
issuer’s Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) performance and reporting; and

o reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and the Company’s compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements.

As at 31 March 2025, the arrangements for employees and
stakeholders of the Group to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, risk management,
internal control or other matters and the whistleblowing
procedures are in place.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(ii)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Dr. Lam Ki Wai,
Lianne, being an independent non-executive director, with
five other members namely Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny,
Ms. CHEUNG Irene, Mr. SZE Yeung Kuen, Mr. CHAN
Raymond, and Dr. CHOW Kwoon Ho, Simon. The Chairman
of this Committee and three out of six members are
independent non-executive directors, which is in compliance
with the requirement of the Listing Rules that a majority
of the members should be independent non-executive
directors. The written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

During the Period, the Nomination Committee held
one meeting to (a) assess the independence of the
independent non-executive directors; (b) review the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board,
Board Diversity Policy and Nomination Policy; and (c) make
recommendation to the Board on the retirement and rotation
plan of the directors.

The principal role and responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee mainly include giving full consideration to
succession planning for directors and senior management,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive directors. In order to achieve a
balanced and appropriately qualified Board, the Nomination
Committee is also responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition, including the skills, knowledge,
diversity and experience of the Board, and advising the
Board as to any changes that may be required. The
Nomination Committee has the authority given by the
Board to seek external professional advice in the selection
and recommendation for directorship, if necessary, to fulffil
the requirements for professional knowledge and industry
experience of any proposed candidates.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(ii)

40

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy sets out the criteria, procedures and
processes to be adopted when considering candidates to
be appointed or re-appointed as directors of the Company.
The Nomination Committee would select the candidates
based on the objective criteria, including but not limited to
qualifications, skills, experience, independence, age, culture,
ethnicity and gender. The Nomination Committee would also
take into account whether the candidate can demonstrate
his/her commitment, competence and integrity required
for the position, and in case of independent non-executive
directors, the independence requirements under the Listing
Rules and their time commitment to the Company. The
Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the
Nomination Policy and would review and recommend any
revisions to the Board for consideration and approval, when
necessary, to enhance effectiveness.

Board Diversity

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board level as
an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage.
As such, the Company continued to adopt the board
diversity policy during the Period. In achieving a truly diverse
Board, candidates with different talents, skills, knowledge,
length of service and professional experience, cultural and
educational background, age, gender and other qualities
may be selected as members of the Board. Selection of
candidates is based on a range of diversity criteria. The
ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution which
would be brought by the candidates to the Board if he/
she is selected as a director. The Nomination Committee is
of the view that the current composition of the Board has
achieved the objectives set out in the above board diversity

policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(ii)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Board Diversity (Continued)

The Board is composed of members from a diverse
background. It includes an executive director and an
independent non-executive director who are qualified
accountants, as well as another executive director and
another independent non-executive director who are
qualified solicitors. The directors have extensive experience
in the retail jewellery business, finance and accounting,
legal, business strategy, securities and investment,
public relation and marketing, branding, and exposure or
experience in various countries including Mainland, etc.
They are members, or committee or panel members of
various industry bodies or public service. The Directors
bring a wealth of diverse experience to the Board, which is
conducive to the business development and growth of the
Company.

In terms of board gender diversity, the Company excels
in gender equality as more than half of the Board of
Directors are women. The Board is of the view that it is not
necessary to set numerical targets and timeline for board
gender diversity for the time being. However, the Board
is committed to maintaining an appropriate percentage of
female members, which shall be no less than 30% at all
times. The Board also places tremendous emphasis on
diversity (including gender diversity) across all levels of the
Group and maintain a workforce with balance of male and
female staff members. Details of the diversified talent team
including gender diversity in the workforce are disclosed in
our Sustainability Report.
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Board Composition & Areas of Diversity

Age Group
FE 4R
11.2%
=
44.4%
44.4%
40-49 50-59 260
40FE495% 50ZE595% 60BR B £
Designation
W
44.4%
. 44 4%
11.2%
Executive Non-executive Independent
Director Director Non-executive
BWITES FEHITES Director

BIFHITES

EFgNBHEERETCHE

Gender

45

44.4%

55.6%

Male Female

B oy

Length of Services of Non-executive Directors
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100% ~
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<2
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(iii)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. CHAN
Raymond, being an independent non-executive director,
with three other members namely, Mr. SZE Yeung Kuen,
Dr. LAM Ki Wai, Lianne and Dr. CHOW Kwoon Ho,
Simon. The Chairman of this Committee and all members
are independent non-executive directors, meeting the
requirement of a majority of independent non-executive
directors stipulated in the Listing Rules. The written terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee have been
adopted by the Board and are posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The principal role and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee mainly include making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy, structure and
packages for all remuneration of directors and senior
management; reviewing and approving performance-
based remuneration and the terms of service contracts
of the directors and senior management, reviewing and
approving the compensation payable in connection with
any loss or termination of office or appointment of directors
and senior management, overseeing any major changes
in employee benefits structures throughout the Company
or the Group; and reviewing the on-going appropriateness
of the remuneration policy. No director or member of the
senior management determined his/her own remuneration
package.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during
the Period to review the remuneration policies and make
recommendation for the Board’s approval of the annual
salary increments for the calendar year of 2025 and the
discretionary year-end bonus for the calendar year of 2024
for general staff.

Details of directors’ emoluments, five highest paid
individuals and remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band during the Period are set out in Note
14 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 147 to
152 of this Annual Report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, was
as follows:

2R ==
BRISMNE LM E SRR E G S B SR
HBEHRIFBHREZMS OO

2025

HK$'000

FHET

Audit services BETARTS 1,780
Non-audit services* JEBE TR 220
Total st 2,000

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to financial
reporting are stated in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

The non-audit services mainly include the professional services rendered
in connection with interim financial statements and continuing connected
transactions.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of each financial period, which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at the end of the
financial period and of the results and cash flows of the Group for
the Period. In the Company'’s interim and annual reports which are
issued within the time limits stipulated by the Listing Rules, the
Board presents a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment
of the Company’s performance, position and prospects.
The published consolidated financial statements adopt, and
consistently apply, suitable accounting policies complying with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The Board ensures that the Company maintains sound and
effective risk management and internal control to safeguard the
shareholders’ interests and the Company’s assets. The Audit
Committee, with the assistance of the Group’s Internal Audit
function (the “Group IA”), regularly reviews the effectiveness of
the Company’s risk management and internal control systems.
The Group IA directly reports to the Audit Committee.

The Board establishes monitoring and procedural guidelines for
considering how it will apply the financial reporting and internal
control principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship
with the Company’s external auditor. The Audit Committee
established by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules has
clear terms of reference.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

In order to achieve enhancement of corporate governance of
the Company, the Board has undertaken and delegated to the
Audit Committee to constantly review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and the directors, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report. During the Period, the Audit
Committee performed the duties relating to corporate governance
matters as aforementioned.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Period, the company secretary of the Company
undertook over 15 hours of professional training to update his
skills and knowledge, which exceeded the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board is responsible for the Company’s systems of risk
management and internal control and for reviewing their
effectiveness annually through the Audit Committee.

The risk management and internal control systems are aligned
with the Internal Control Integrated Framework of the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission
(“COS0”), which comprises 17 principles under 5 components,
including Control Environment, Risk Assessment, Control
Activities, Information and Communication and Monitoring
Activities.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee has received the risk management and
internal control evaluation reports submitted by Group IA. The
reports summarised information relating to the work carried out in
the following areas:

° the results of selective testing of internal control procedures,
assets, and financial records of the Company;

° a general evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems installed by the Company; and

° an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed during the
Period.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

The Audit Committee has reviewed the aforementioned reports
and discussed with the management.

The Audit Committee recognised that an evaluation of the risk
management system and an examination of the internal control
system on an annual basis have been adequately executed by
Group IA during the Period. The Audit Committee acknowledged
that the management has been progressively implementing
adequate and effective risk management and internal control
systems in order to ensure the effective functioning of the
Company’s operations.

Risk Management and Sustainability Committee

The Group set up the Risk Management and Sustainability
Committee in September 2024, which comprises the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer, three executive directors (including
Ms. CHEUNG Irene, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung and Dr. CHAN So
Kuen) and a senior executive of the Group. The aim of Risk
Management and Sustainability Committee include establishing
and improving the risk management system, ensuring timely
identification and management of risks for the achievement of
corporate objectives, so as to advise and assist the Board on the
strategies and implementation of the Group’s sustainability, and
the assessment of the associated risks.

The Risk Management and Sustainability Committee is
responsible for (including but not limited to): () reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code regarding risk
management requirements; (i) coordinating staff training, which
includes risk management principles, assessment methodology
and its implementation; (i) assigning personnel to support
departments to perform risk assessment for newly established
business or projects, if necessary; (iv) formulating sustainable
development strategy and approach; (v) monitoring and evaluating
the implementation of sustainable development policies and
measures; and (vi) identifying sustainability risks. This committee
reports directly to the Audit Committee.

During the Period, the Risk Management and Sustainability
Committee held one meeting to discuss and review, inter alia,
reports on the effectiveness of risk management processes,
reports on departmental risk assessment, the implementation
progress of the Group’s corporate strategies and KPI targets and
sustainability working report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Risk Management Framework

The Company’s risk management framework provides a
systematic and disciplined approach to risk management process,
which is embedded in the system of internal controls as an
integral part of corporate governance. The risk management
framework helps sustain business success, creates value for
stakeholders and supports the Board in discharging its corporate
governance responsibilities by proactively identifying, addressing
and managing key risks within the Group. Departments &
Management as risk owners take direct risk management
responsibilities and reports to the Risk Management and
Sustainability Committee.
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A summary of the risk management framework of the Company is 7’2 B Y& i B IR 2R B RGN a0 R AP
shown as below:
RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
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Board of Directors Bis
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Risk Management and Sustainability
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)

Risk Management Framework (Continued)

Board of Directors

o Setting the basic tone and culture of risk management
across the Group;

° Approving the criteria of risk assessment;

o Approving major decisions affecting the Group’s risk profile
Or exposure;

° Approving changes to key elements of the risk management
procedures;

° Approving the Group’s risk management and sustainability
policy; and

° Monitoring significant risks
Audit Committee
° Reviewing the risk management and internal control

systems of the Group; and

° Ensuring that effective systems of risk management and
internal control are established by the management
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Risk Management Framework (Continued)

Risk Management and Sustainability Committee

Recommending the Group’s risk tolerance level and risk
criteria;

Approving standard risk management templates including
forms and tools;

Approving risk registers;

Reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code
regarding risk management requirements;

Appointing risk owners;

Appointing staff to support departments to conduct risk
assessments on new business and projects;

Conducting review on procedures and policies of risk
management;

Reporting, if any, significant risks to Audit Committee in a
timely manner;

Coordinating staff training;

Proposing and recommending on the Group’s sustainability
objectives, strategies, policies and framework;

Overseeing and monitoring the Group’s ESG reporting and
the implementation of the Group’s ESG-related policies and
initiatives;

Reviewing and evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of
the measures relating to the Group’s ESG;

Overseeing the setting and achievement of targets under
the Group’s sustainability strategies; and

Identifying and evaluating the Group’s ESG related risks and
opportunities
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL [RESEIBRNEPESIE (B)

(Continued)
Risk Management Framework (Continued) BAREREE (@
Departments & Management R EERE

Departments and the management are responsible for the ZFFIREIEEESHRBSHEANNERERD
identification and assessment of risks within their areas of & :
responsibility:

Objective Setting and Categorisation BER T REEE

e Strategy; o IRES;

e Operation; o EIE;

e Financial reporting; and o  UHER; &

. Compliance o =y

Risk Identification Va3 2l

e The Group provides examples of risk factors; and o AEEREREHREREHG; &
e Risks should be relevant to strategies and objectives o [RABHREKBERR
Risk Analysis BEE 7T

e Considering existing control measures; o  ERIBHEEEEN;

. Using a consistent risk scoring criteria; and s  KE#H—RERERTESEL; K
e Assessing the residual risks o FHERIREE

Risk Treatment [ [ =

e Choosing a risk treatment strategy; o  EIZR[REHEKE;

e Establishing a treatment plan; and o  FINEHHE K

e Appointing risk owners e ZHERABEEA
Effectiveness of Monitoring and Reporting B R EIR AL

e Monitoring and reporting risks periodically; and e THIRZEKERERR &

e Setting up an emergent risk reporting mechanism o RUREREBERTIE

50 3DG Holdings (International) Limited £ Z &£ H (F %) AR AF



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ﬂé$ /l:l #Ei

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Review Processes of the Effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The management and the Risk Management and Sustainability
Committee review the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems. Group IA also conducts independent
audit of the effectiveness of these systems. Separate reports are
submitted to the Audit Committee for its review and appraisal.
A final report will be submitted to the Board for assessing the
effectiveness of the systems.

If any material internal control defects are found, the Audit
Committee will discuss them with the management. Group A will
follow up and the management will classify the defects as “severe”
risk, where appropriate, in the risk management system and
formulate further measures to resolve or prevent such defects.

Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company acknowledges its responsibilities under Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules and the overriding
principle that inside information should be announced promptly.
The Company has established a policy for the disclosure of inside
information (the “Inside Information Disclosure Policy”) with
close regard to the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information
issued by the Securities and Futures Commissions. The Inside
Information Disclosure Policy includes, among other things: (a)
only designated persons are authorised to communicate the
Company’s corporate matters with investors, analysts, the media
or other members of the investment community; (b) directors or
senior management shall report to the Chief Executive Officer any
potential/suspected inside information as soon as practicable for
him to consult (if appropriate) the Board thereafter for determining
the nature of developments and, if required, making appropriate
disclosure; (c) disclosure of inside information must be made
in a manner that can provide for equal, timely and effective
access by the public to the disclosed inside information; and (d)
inside information must be kept strictly confidential until a public
announcement is made and shall be disseminated in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules before it is released via
other means.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Anti-Corruption and Whistleblowing Policies

Integrity, fairness and justice are the three pillars of the operation
of our Group, and business ethics and integrity are regarded as
our core values. We have developed a robust anti-corruption
system, strictly complying with applicable laws and regulations
regarding anti-bribery and corruption in every regions, as well
as industrial standards, in order to prevent corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud, money laundering and other illegal behaviours. In
terms of whistleblowing policy, we actively encourage employees,
customers, suppliers and partners to report any suspected
behaviours that are against business ethics and illegal behaviours,
with all reported cases being investigated in a rigorous and timely
manner. Details of the anti-corruption and whistleblowing policies
are disclosed in the Company’s Sustainability Report.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit is an independent function undertaken by Group
IA which reports administratively to the Company’s management
and functionally to the Audit Committee. Group IA is authorised to
obtain all information necessary to accomplish internal audit work.

The Board has conducted an annual review to ensure the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit, financial reporting functions as well as in relation to the
Company’s ESG performance and reporting.

A risk-based audit approach has been adopted by Group IA.
Internal control reviews are conducted regularly to closely monitor
any business or operation changes. Regular audit tests are
carried out to ensure key controls are in operation. Group IA also
conducts other projects and investigative work as required.

Any significant internal audit findings are discussed with respective
department heads to reach a consensus on the next steps,
which would be subsequently followed up, in order to ensure a
satisfactory level of control.

In each semi-annual work plan, manning levels of Group IA are
reported to the Audit Committee. A summary of the internal
audit activities and audit results are also submitted to the Audit
Committee twice a year. The Audit Committee will review and
assure the adequacy of resources of the internal audit team.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall have the right to submit a written requisition requiring a SGM
to be called by the Board. The written requisition () must state the
purposes of the SGM; and (i) must be signed by the requisitionists
and deposited at the registered office of the Company, and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or
more requisitionists.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM, the
requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them may convene a SGM, but
any SGM so convened shall not be held after expiration of three
months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. A SGM
convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in any SGM to be convened
by the Board.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general
meeting

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, either any number of shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders,
or not less than 100 shareholders, can request the Company in
writing to () give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next AGM notice of any resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (i) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company (contact details are
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information”) with
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one
week before the meeting in case of any other requisition.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose for
election as a director have been posted on the website of the
Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to promoting and maintaining
effective communication with the shareholders. A Shareholder
Communication Policy has been adopted to ensure that the
shareholders of the Company and, where appropriate, the
investment community are provided with readily available, equal
and timely access to balanced and comprehensible information
about the Company in order to enable the shareholders of the
Company to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to
allow them and the investment community to engage actively with
the Company. The Shareholder Communication Policy is reviewed
annually to ensure its effectiveness.

With the following multiple channels for communications with
shareholders and stakeholders in place, the Board is satisfied that
the Shareholders Communication Policy is still appropriate and
effective:—

(@ Interim and annual results, interim and annual reports
and other corporate communications of the Company
(“Corporate Communications”)"°® are published in a
timely manner on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company in accordance with the Listing Rules;

(b)  General meetings are convened to facilitate constructive
communication between the Company and the
Shareholders;

(c) Board members, including the Chairman and the chairmen
of Board committees, key senior executives and the
external auditors are available to attend AGMs to answer
Shareholders’ question;

(d)  Shareholders and investment community can access the
Company’s latest news from time to time via the Company’s
website; and

(e)  The Investor Relations Department and the share registrar of
the Company are assigned to attend to the enquiries from
Shareholders and the investing community.

Note:

“Corporate Communications” refers to any document issued or to be issued
by the Company for the information or action of holders of the Company’s
securities including, but not limited to, annual and interim reports, notices of
meetings, circulars, or other publications of the Company (including any “corporate

communication” as defined in the Listing Rules).
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s
business address in Hong Kong at Units 06-11, 15/F, Metropole
Square, 2 On Yiu Street, Shatin, New Territories or by email to
comsec@3dg-group.com. Shareholders may also make proposals
at the general meetings.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Second Amended and Restated Bye-Laws was adopted at
the special general meeting on 28 June 2024 and effective from
9 July 2024. The latest version of the Bye-laws is available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Save as
disclosed above, there was no change in the Bye-laws of the
Company during the Period.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Dividend Policy sets out the principles and guidelines that the
Company intends to apply in relation to the declaration, payment
or distribution of its net profits as dividends to the shareholders of
the Company.

The Board endeavours to maintain available funds and any future
earnings to operate and expand our business. While the dividend
payout ratio is not pre-determined, in proposing or declaring any
dividend payout, the Board shall take into account the Group’s
financial results; cash flow situation; business conditions and
strategies; future operations and earnings; capital requirements
and expenditure plans; interests of shareholders; any restrictions
on payment of dividends; and any other factors that the Board
may consider relevant.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding Company. The Group
is principally engaged in retailing, wholesaling and franchising
operations for gold and jewellery products in Hong Kong, Macau,
and Mainland China.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the period
by operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the Period, the
material factors underlying its results and financial position and
material attributable factors of the development and likely future
developments of the Group’s business, are provided throughout
this Annual Report, particularly in the following separate sections:

(@) Review of the Group’s business — “Chairman’s Statement”
on pages 2 to 5 and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 6 to 24;

(b)  The principal risks and uncertainties the Group is facing —
“Report of the Directors” on pages 56 to 86;

(c)  Future development in the Group’s business — “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 2 to 5 and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 6 to 24;

(d) Analysis using financial key performance indicators —
“Financial Highlights” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 6 to 24;

(e) Information about the Group’s ESG policies and
performance — “Sustainability Report” posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange and
“Report of the Directors” on pages 56 to 86 of this Annual
Report;
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

()  Discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations — “Corporate Governance Report” on pages
27 to 55 and “Report of the Directors” on pages 56 to 86;
and

(@ An account of the Group’s key relationships with its
employees, customers and suppliers and others -
“Sustainability Report” posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange and “Report of the
Directors” on pages 56 to 86 of this Annual Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the risk
management practices of the Group are sufficient to mitigate
the risks present in our businesses and operations as efficiently
and effectively as possible. The Board delegates some of such
responsibilities to various departments.

The Group’s financial position, operations, business and
prospects may be affected by the following identified risks and
uncertainties. The Group adopts risk management policies,
measures and monitoring systems to pre-empt and contain
exposures associated with the identified risks.

Economic Risks

Global Economic Condition

Possible economic slowdown or prolonged downturn of the global
or Mainland’s economy may affect the retail market sentiment as a
whole.

Tourist Destinations
The increase in popularity of other tourist destinations weakens
the sentiment of Mainland tourists in Hong Kong and Macau.

Political Risks

Geopolitics

Global geopolitical tensions remain elevated, including escalating
China-U.S. trade frictions, regional clashes, and sanction policies,
which may adversely affect the Group’s supply chain, capital
flows, and market confidence.

Trade Policy

Adjustments to U.S. tariff policies may exert pressure on the
Group’s cross-border logistics and cost structure. As Hong Kong
serves as a hub for re-export trade, any reclassification of product
origin as Mainland may result in the loss of preferential tariff
treatments, which may affect the Group’s export arrangements
and pricing strategies. Uncertainty surrounding trade policies may
also have an adverse impact on consumer sentiment, capital
market performance, and investors’ appetite.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Operational Risks

Rent

As a retailer, rent accounts for a considerable portion of the
Group’s expenses. Rental increment on retail shops directly
affects the profit of the Group. The Group strikes a good balance
between shop expansion and profit increment. The Group strives
to lower rent via negotiations with landlords, closure of branches
with low profitability and searching for suitable locations in other
areas for new shops.

Prices of Raw Materials

Fluctuations in prices of raw materials may adversely affect our
profitability. We strive to improve our purchasing procedures in
order to maintain reasonable raw materials costs. On the other
hand, the Group has a gold hedging policy with a ratio of around
70% which mitigates the potential adverse impacts on gross
profit margins and overall financial performance arising from
pronounced volatility in gold prices. Management regularly reviews
the effectiveness and coverage of the hedging strategy and will
make appropriate adjustments in response to market dynamics.

Fierce Competition

There is strong competition from national and local competitors
in jewellery industry. The Group has formulated a set of branding
strategies to enhance brand image and awareness.

Inventory Turnover

Owing to the impact of volatile macro-economic environment in
Asia especially Mainland, our inventory turnover bears the risk of
slowing down.

Management of Licensed Shops

Licensed shops play an important role in raising the brand
awareness of the Group. Maintaining a good brand image and
reputation is a win-win situation for both the Group and the
licensed shops. Therefore, the Group uses best endeavours to
ensure their operations are consistent with the Group’s image and
operation standard. We maintain a close working relationship with
our licensed shops and provide one-stop support to them, such
as shop-opening training, provision of operation manuals and
regular operation review meetings.

We also closely monitor the licensed shops through a stringent
control system which consists of 6 areas of control, including
Operational Control, Product Quality Control, Distribution Network
Control, Pricing Control, Brand Image Control, and Service Quality
Control. Details of such system are set out on page 59.
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Control System on Licensed Shops

mEEEERR
Operational Control & iE 8 &

e Whistle-blowing System and Reward Scheme
BRAR R T E

e Anti-Corruption System
RESEAR

e Sales and Inventory System Access
HERFERHEA

Product Quality Control S E &S

e Authorised suppliers on jewellery products
REE MRS HERME

e Certificates issued by NGTC/GTC for quality
assurance

BltR,AiREE(FRE B IRE

Distribution Network Control 73 #5448 E5 &

e Prior approval on retail locations

RS ZTERMUE

Pricing Control {B18E5&

e Standardised retail price for products through
centralised labeling process
Fam—EEniE LN —ERTEES

Brand Image Control Sa & R EEE

e Authorised renovation contractors
EERERERH
e Prior approval on all advertising & promotion
FAAEHEESNEE

Service Quality Control IR R EEE

e Centralised Staff Training
wm—B T
e Regional training centres & 155l 4 )
e E-Learning programmes 43 _= 2 B 372
e On-site training & #13Z 3|

DVR System

Operational Compliance Audit Team
EESHEMEESE/NE

Annual Contract Renewal Basis
SEBAES

Centralised control on discount policy

op SR HT IR

Standardised operational materials
(e.g. uniform, packaging) in all shops
FrA A —EEYE (FW : Gk 8255
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Regulatory Risks

Changes in Laws and Regulations

The Group is required to comply on an ongoing basis with the
latest laws and regulations applicable in Hong Kong and other
jurisdictions in several areas including anti-money laundering,
import and export regulations, consumer protection, anti-
competition, and sanctions compliance. Failure to respond
promptly to changes in regulatory requirements, or to implement
effective measures across operating regions for preventing money
laundering and terrorist financing, may result in inadvertent non-
compliance. Such incidents could expose the Group to significant
risks, including legal liability, reputational damage, and business
disruption.

The Group has established a robust anti-corruption and anti-
money laundering compliance system and strictly adheres to
applicable laws and industry codes related to anti-bribery, anti-
corruption, and financial crime across all jurisdictions. The
management continues to closely monitor the latest developments
in relevant laws and regulations and make timely adjustments to
the Group’s operating strategies to ensure ongoing compliance
with legal and ethical standards, maintaining corporate integrity,
reputation, and competitiveness in the markets.

Intellectual Property

We recognise the importance of building a good reputation and
protecting our intellectual property. Any unauthorised use of our
trademarks in counterfeit products could harm our brand image
and reputation, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

In view of this, the Group’s legal department has set up teams
in both Hong Kong and Shenzhen in Mainland to handle tasks
in respect of intellectual properties (such as trademarks, design
patents and fighting against infringement).

The Group has successfully registered the relevant trademarks
in the regions where our brands have a presence (such as Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland). Our legal department has reached a
consensus with our product development department, marketing
department and design department that any new product,
collection, display prop and fitting out design should be forwarded
as soon as practicable to the legal department as appropriate
for the application of design patent/copyright in Mainland, Hong
Kong and Macau so as to ensure the maximum protection for the
Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Intellectual Property (Continued)

The Group’s legal department and business department
constantly monitor any infringement by free-riding brands across
Mainland and cooperate with the law enforcement agencies
to fight against infringement. The Group always encourages
colleagues to monitor any infringement during their business
trips and report the infringement to the legal department, and
endeavours to fight against infringement of the Group’s intellectual
properties.

Financial Risks
Details of financial risks are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Cybersecurity Risks

With the increasing sophistication of cyber-attacks, especially
the widespread application of artificial intelligence technology in
cyber-crime activities, the Group places great emphasis on the
security of its information technology systems. Failure to effectively
guard against risks such as phishing emails, ransomware, identity
theft, and system intrusions may result in the leakage of sensitive
data, business disruption, financial losses, and non-compliance
with increasingly stringent data privacy regulations. These
consequences could lead to regulatory penalties, legal disputes,
and damage to the Group’s reputation. The management has
implemented various cybersecurity measures, including enhanced
employee training, regular penetration testing, adoption of multi-
factor authentication mechanisms, and reinforcement of cloud
platform defenses to improve overall information security.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements, and the non-compliance with such
requirements could lead to the risk of termination of operating
licences. The Group has been allocating systems and human
resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and
regulations, and to maintain cordial working relationships with
regulators through effective communications. During the Period,
as far as the Group is aware, it has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group places great importance on environmental protection
and endeavours to promote sustainable development. It
incorporates relevant environmental strategies in every aspect of
its business, and implements initiatives in areas such as energy
saving and waste management in manufacturing, administration
and daily retail operations to mitigate the impact on the
environment.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Group provides a fair
and safe work environment, promotes staff diversity, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate training and
resources to the employees so that they can keep abreast of the
latest development of the market and the industry, while improving
their performance in their positions and helping them to realize
their self-worth.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Relationships with Key Stakeholders (Continued)

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good
relationship with customers and providing products which
satisfy their needs and requirements. The Group enhances the
relationship by continuous interaction with customers to gain
insight into the changing market demand for different products
so that the Group can respond proactively. The Group has also
established procedures in handling customers’ feedbacks and
complaints to ensure that customers’ opinions are dealt with in a
prompt and timely manner.

The Group maintains stable business relationships with its
suppliers and service providers. In order to have a better
and close monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the Group’s
management regularly conducts performance reviews targeting
the Group’s major suppliers and service providers, and
communicates with them for rectification and improvements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Period are set out in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 100 to 101.

The Board does not recommend any final dividend in respect
of the Period to the holders of ordinary shares of the Company
(2024: Nil).

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the Period amounted to
approximately HK$28,000 (2024: HK$28,000).

SHARES CAPITAL

Details of movement during the Period in share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save for the share option scheme, no other equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the Period
or subsisting at the end of the Period.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 March 2025, the Company did not have distributable
reserves to shareholders (2024: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years are as follows:

CIRE: S E ]
2025F3831H » AR B E A HBERED
IRBY LS (20244F @ 4E) o

R EMBHE
FEEN FTEMREE EH BERES
BT :

RESULTS E 4
Period
ended
31 Mar
BE
3H31H Year ended 30 June
LEHARY HF6H30ALLEE
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex FET FHET FET FET
Revenue WA 711,541 604,517 618,514 717,881 839,469
Total comprehensive loss for ~ ZRATIER A
the period/year attributable to ~ E1LEH,/ FERZEE
owners of the Company E51848%E (109,367) (134,245 (110,792 (71,639) (14,997
As at
31 Mar As at 30 June
38318 #6830H
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FEx FET FEx TR FET
Total assets MEE 1,569,599 1,114,034 1,780,293 1,786,258 1,828,079
Total liabilities \eF 2,357,097 1,687,569 2,151,032 1,965,298 1,949,698
Deficit attributable to owners ~ &NATHEE A
of the Company JE {5 5 4t (423,872) (314,505) (191,723) (80,931) (66,792)
PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF B8 - W& EEES

SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities (including sale of
treasury shares) during the Period.

As at 31 March 2025, the Company did not hold any treasury
shares whether in the Central Clearing and Settlement System, or
otherwise.
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DIRECTORS
The directors who held office during the period ended 31 March
2025 and up to the date of this Annual Report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. CHEUNG lIrene (Chief Operating Officer)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Director
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. SZE Yeung Kuen

Mr. CHAN Raymond

Dr. LAM Ki Wai, Lianne

Dr. CHOW Kwoon Ho, Simon

Pursuant to Bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM of the Company.
Accordingly, Dr. CHAN So Kuen, Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline
and Mr. SZE Yeung Kuen, shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM. All the retiring directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

Details of the proposed directors to be re-elected are set out in
the circular sent together with this Annual Report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, aged 48, has been the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Company
since 2024. He is also a member of the Nomination Committee
of the Company. He joined China Gold Silver Group Company
Limited (“CGS”, a subsidiary of the Company) as the Chief
Executive Officer and Director in 2014, and is responsible for
the overall strategic planning, execution, and the management
of CGS. Besides, he is also the Deputy Chairman and Executive
Director of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (“Luk Fook”)
(Stock Code: 590), a controlling shareholder of the Company,
which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
WONG is an active participant in the community and is currently
a Member of Sihui Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, a Member of The Association
of the Hong Kong Members of Guangdong’s Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference Committees Limited, a
Permanent President of Sze Wui and Kwong Ning Clansman’s
Association (Hong Kong) Limited, a President of Sihui Dasha Town
Clansman’s Association (Hong Kong), an Executive Committee
Member of Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited, a
Director of Examination of Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’
Association, an Executive Committee Member of The Kowloon
Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament
Merchants Association, a Member of Lions Club of Sham Shui Po
Hong Kong, an Executive Committee Member of The Jewellers
& Goldsmiths’ Association of Hong Kong Limited and Senior
Adviser of International Collaboration and Development Centre for
the Gold and Jewellery Industry, Gold Association of Guangdong
Province. In December 2008, Mr. WONG received the GIA
Diamond Graduate title, and awarded the “CEO of the Year” by
Capital CEO in 2017. He is the spouse of Ms. CHEUNG Irene, the
Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer of the Company.
He is also the son of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director of Luk Fook, and the
elder brother of Ms. WONG Lan Sze Nancy, Executive Director
and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of Luk Fook.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. CHEUNG Irene, aged 48, has been an Executive Director
and the Chief Operating Officer of the Company since 2024.
She is also a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. She joined CGS as Managing Director in 2014, and
is responsible for CGS’s retail and wholesale operations and
implementation of CGS’s business strategies. Ms. CHEUNG
received a Bachelor's Degree of Arts from the University of Toronto
and a LL.B. from Osgoode Hall Law School and was qualified
as a solicitor, barrister and notary public in Ontario, Canada. She
is also a member of the Law Society of Ontario. In addition, Ms.
CHEUNG joined Luk Fook in 2005 and is currently the Senior
Legal Counsel of Luk Fook. Ms. CHEUNG was awarded the
“Women of Excellence 2019” by “JESSICA”, a leading women’s
magazine, “The Awards of Women of Times 2019” by “InStyle”,
an international fashion magazine and “GBA Outstanding
Women Entrepreneur Awards 2023” by HK Small and Medium
Enterprises Association and “Metro Finance”, in recognition of
Ms. CHEUNG'’s overall outstanding leadership skills and excellent
career achievements. In the realm of legal expertise, Ms. Cheung
received individual recognition by awarded with the “Winner in
the category of Consumer & Retail”, the “Highly Commended
— Environment, Social & Governance (ESG)”, and the “Highly
Commended - Intellectual Property” from the “CBLJ In-house
Counsel Awards” for five consecutive years from 2020 to 2025.
These honours reflect a high regard for Ms. Cheung’s outstanding
corporate legal governance and legal expertise. Ms. CHEUNG is
the spouse of Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, the Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Company.

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, aged 52, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2024. She joined CGS as director
in 2014, and is responsible for business development of the
CGS. She is also the Executive Director and Chief Operating
Officer of Luk Fook, a controlling shareholder of the Company,
which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Ms.
WONG holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from University of Southern Queensland. She is a Member of
Guangzhou Panyu District Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, a Member of District Fight
Crime Committee (Kwai Tsing District), a Member of The
Association of the Hong Kong Members of Guangdong’s Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference Committees Limited,
an Honorary Life President and the 20th Term Vice-Chairman
of Hong Kong Pun Yue Industrial and Commercial Fellowship
Association, the 6th Term Standing Director of Guangzhou Panyu
Overseas Friendship Association, a Director of Guangzhou Panyu
Overseas Exchange Association, a Vice-President of Panyu
Hong Kong Charity Fund Limited, a Chairperson of The Jewellery
Industry Training Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Qualifications
Framework, a Member of Watch & Jewellery Industry Consultative
Networks of Employees Retraining Board, an Industry Advisor
of Fei Cui Standard Project of The Gemmological Association of
Hong Kong Limited and a Member of Greater Bay Area Hong
Kong Women Entrepreneurs Association. In 2021, Ms. WONG
was awarded the “Greater Bay Area Outstanding Women
Entrepreneur Awards” by the Hong Kong Small and Medium
Enterprises Association and Metro Finance. She has over 31
years of experience in the jewellery industry.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. CHAN So Kuen, aged 65, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 2024. She is also the Executive Director,
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of Luk Fook,
a controlling shareholder of the Company, which is listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Dr. CHAN graduated
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Oklahoma City
University (the United States of America), with a Doctorate Degree
and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration, respectively.
She is also a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Dr. CHAN has substantial financial and
management experiences in vast varieties of businesses for
more than 38 years. Prior to joining Luk Fook, Dr. CHAN worked
in international professional accounting firms in Hong Kong for
auditing duties. She also served in various Hong Kong listed and
private companies across different industries in a senior capacity,
such as finance director, chief financial officer or chief executive
officer.

Non-executive Director

Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline, aged 58, has been a Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2024. She is the
co-founder of the Luk Fook, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. She was the Non-executive Director of Luk Fook until
2020. Ms. YEUNG has over 36 years of experience in public
relations. Ms. YEUNG was the winner of Miss Hong Kong and
Miss International of Goodwill in 1987, and also the 4th runner-up
of Miss Universe and Queen of Asia in 1988. Ms. YEUNG was the
president of the Wai Yin Association for the year 1995-1996. She
received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title in 2005.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. SZE Yeung Kuen, aged 44, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2024. He is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. SZE
is an accomplished professional with a diverse background
in investment management, equity research, and assurance
services. He is a co-founder of Oscar and Partners Capital
Limited (“OP Capital”), an investment management and advisory
company with an SFC license for Type 4 and Type 9. Currently,
he oversees various investment strategies at OP Capital as a
partner and senior portfolio manager. Mr. SZE holds a Bachelor
of Business Administration Degree with a major in Professional
Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is
an associate member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants as well as a Chartered Financial Analyst. He was the
director of Citigroup Global Capital Asia, where he had an award-
winning track record in equity research, particularly within the
China/Hong Kong property industries. Prior to working in finance,
Mr. SZE worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers, specializing in audits
and due diligence assignments.

Mr. CHAN Raymond, aged 53, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2024. He is also
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. CHAN is a solicitor and he was admitted in Hong Kong in
2001 and England and Wales in 2002. He is currently practicing
in Hong Kong as principal of his own firm “Raymond Chan
Solicitors” which was established in 2007. Before establishing his
own firm, Mr. CHAN has been working as consultant and solicitor
in various law firms. Mr. CHAN graduated from the University
of Hong Kong and City University of Hong Kong, with P.C.LL.
and LL.B. (Hons) respectively. Mr. CHAN holds memberships in
several professional organizations, including Law Society of Hong
Kong, Law Society of England and Wales, Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators, Small and Medium Law Firms Association of Hong
Kong and Hong Kong Family Law Association. Mr. CHAN is a
director of Federation of Industries & Commerce in Kwai Chung
& Tsing Yi Limited and Hong Kong Commerce and Industry
Associations Limited, in addition to being a founder member of
Hong Kong Thailand Business Council, a member of Federation
of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organizations, and
Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors. Mr. CHAN is also an
honorary president of Kwai Tsing District Fire Safety Ambassador
Honorary Presidents’ Association and Kwai Tsing District Junior
Police Call. Mr. CHAN's other community services include acting
as chairman of Appeal Tribunal, Buildings Ordinance, legal advisor
of Hong Kong Industrial & Commercial Association Limited, The
Federation of All Sectors of Tsuen Wan Community Limited, and
Tsuen Wan Kwai Tsing District Women’s Association. Mr. CHAN
also previously served as adjudicator of Immigration Tribunal,
Hong Kong SAR and member of Disciplinary Tribunal of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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EEUHE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. CHAN's firm was the recipient of Gold Award of Pro Bono and
Community Work Recognition Programme of the Law Society of
Hong Kong in 2024.

Dr. LAM Ki Wai, Lianne, aged 57, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2024. She is also
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
She has a diverse professional background spanning academia,
entrepreneurship, and management. Dr. LAM is currently the
professor of practice at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Additionally, she serves as a Visiting Professor at Guangdong
University of Science and Technology in Dongguan, China, as
well as at the Hunan University of Finance and Economics and
the Hunan International Economics University in Hunan, China.
Dr. Lam holds a Doctorate Degree of Business Administration at
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University focusing in Environmental
Education. She also holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration Degree and a Bachelor of Law Degree both from
the Peking University and a Bachelor Degree in Actuarial Science
from the University of Toronto. She is the Chief Executive Officer
of the Hong Kong Sustainability Society, a non-profit organization
dedicated to foster positive thinking so as to promote sustainable
development in Hong Kong. Dr. LAM has been a partner and
associate director of Cogitoimage International Co., Limited
since 2003, where she has accumulated extensive experience
in strategic marketing and planning. Dr. LAM has been serving
as a member of Smart Mobility Award Assessors Panel for the
HKICT Awards 2022 to present. She also acts as an advisor for
the Leadership Institute on Narcotics of the Hong Kong Police
Force and the Children Psychoecology Foundation and the Vice-
Chairlady of the SAP User Group Hong Kong. Furthermore, Dr.
Lam holds key positions within academic and alumni associations,
including the Chairlady of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
Doctor of Business Administration Alumni Association and a
member of the Board of Directors for the Federation of Hong
Kong Polytechnic University Alumni Association.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEUHE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. CHOW Kwoon Ho, Simon, aged 47, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 2024.
He is also the member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr.
CHOW is a scientist who expertises in the field of musculoskeletal
biology. He currently serves as a Senior Research Scientist
at the School of Medicine, the Stanford University, California,
USA. Additionally, he served as a Research Assistant Professor
in the Department of Orthopaedics and Traumatology at the
Chinese University of Hong Kong, and an affiliated member of
the Institute of Tissue Engineering and Regenerative Medicine
at the Chinese University of Hong Kong from 2016 to 2022. Dr.
CHOW graduated from the University of Toronto with a Bachelor
of Science (BSc) in Human Biology. He also holds a Doctorate
Degree in Orthopaedics and Traumatology and Master's Degree
in Biomedical Engineering from the Faculty of Medicine and
Faculty of Engineering at the Chinese University of Hong Kong,
respectively. Dr. CHOW has an impressive professional experience
in biomedical research that spans various prestigious institutions.

Dr. CHOW holds several notable positions and memberships in
certain orthopaedics and musculoskeletal research organisations.
He served as the Scientific Chair of the Fragility Fracture Network
Hong Kong (FFN-HK) and holds editorial roles as a board member
for Scientific Reports (USA), BMC Musculoskeletal Disorder
(UK), and the Journal of Orthopaedic Research (USA). He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Orthopaedics Association,
and a number of professional international scientific societies
including the Society on Sarcopenia, Cachexia and Wasting
Disorders (Germany), the International Osteoporosis Foundation,
the International Chinese Musculoskeletal Research Society
(ICMRS), the Orthopaedics Research Society (ORS, USA), and the
International Society of Fracture Repair (ISFR).

Senior Management

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him, Paul, aged 54, has been the Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company since
2024. He graduated from the University of Toronto and the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology, with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Commerce and a Master’'s Degree in Business
Administration, respectively. He is also a Member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has about 31
years’ experience in auditing and financial management with audit
firm and various listed companies in Hong Kong. He was the
executive director and chief financial officer from August 2010 to
April 2022 of Bossini International Holdings Limited (former Stock
Code: 0592).
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R+EPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEUHE

RETIREMENT SCHEME
Details of the retirement scheme operated by the Group are set
out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM have service contracts with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which are not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

The fees and other emoluments of directors are determined
by reference to industry norm and market conditions, with
discretionary bonus on performance awarded to executive
directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the Period.
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R+EPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEUHE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2025, save as disclosed below, none of the
directors and chief executives of the Company had interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (b) were required, pursuant to the Model Code set out
in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange, to
notify the Company and the Stock Exchange:

(1) THE COMPANY
Long positions in shares and underlying shares
of the Company

EERERITHASRESF ZEHR
RE

R2025%3831H  BR FXFTIREE N A A
BEERERSTHABMENR AR HEM
HEEE (EEREBFRPERAIEXVE) 2
B& 1D~ FERA IR (D KB HERE T > B ()R IR 5
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(1) Z&2a7
FATRNRIBMRIGZFE

Number of Ordinary Shares
LERYE
Beneficial Controlled Beneficiary Other Total % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse  Corporation of a Trust Interests Interests Shares
Exftd BaEA Eff  SENEE  EREZA Ritis EadE (ROEMM
Note (a)
Wi (a)
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny 14,760 - - 201,722,511 - 201,737,311 1) 74.81%
BERTE Note (o)
2 (o)
Ms. CHEUNG Irene - 201,737,311 (Y - - - 201,787,311 (1) 74.81%
RERLT Note (c)
Wi (©)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung 20,500 - - - - 20,500 (1 0.01%
InBLt
Dr. CHAN So Kuen 32,380 205 - - - 32,585 (1) 0.01%
G iRy Note (d)
FiEt o)
(L) Long postion $7&
Note (a) I 5E(a)

The percentage is based on the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at 31 March 2025 (i.e. 269,671,601 shares).

B e R#2025FE3831 B2 A AT B TR 488 (B
269,671,601 1) st& o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEUHE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

(1

74

THE COMPANY (Continued)
Long positions in shares and underlying shares

of the Company (Continued)
Note (o)

Luk Fook is the controlling shareholder of the Company and Luk Fook is
held as to approximately 40.39% by Luk Fook (Control) Limited, which in
turn is indirectly held by The WS WONG Family Trust (the “Trust’) via LF
Holdings Services Limited where Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny is one of the
discretionary beneficiaries under the Trust. LF Holdings Services Limited held
100% of the issued share capital of LF Enterprises Limited and 46.29% of the
issued share capital of Luk Fook (Control) Limited, which are in turn interested
in 61,953 shares and 201,660,598 shares of the Company respectively.
Therefore, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny is deemed to be interested in
(i) 191,943,981 shares in the Company held by Luk Fook through its
subsidiaries; (i) 9,716,617 shares in the Company held by Luk Fook (Control)
Limited; and (i) 61,953 shares in the Company held by LF Enterprises
Limited.

Note (c)

Ms. CHEUNG Irene is the spouse of Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny and she is
deemed to be interested in the 201,737,311 shares in the Company which
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny is deemed to be interested in.

Note (d)

Dr. CHAN So Kuen’s spouse, Mr. LO Kwing Chi, held 205 shares of the
Company.

EERERITHASNESF ZEHR
e (@
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LimitedBER A SERAEAZELZHNESEAZ
—oLF Holding Services Limited¥ALF Enterprises Limited
Z100% B EITRA TR 1E (EKR) BRA B 246.29% 8 %
1787 > MILF Enterprises Limitedf 7548 (=A%) BIRAF
|53 B #EE61,9530% 52201,660,5980% 25 A B B 19 2 7 o
At BERAEERRAN)NEEEENBARRAEZ
191,943,981 RAA TIN5 (748 (ER) AR ATFA
9,716,617 A A B MRS 5 (i) LF Enterprises Limitedi§5H
261,953 AR AT KA P HES

MizE(c)

RMB LT AR ERAE RS FWRANREERLE
WAREBEA HE 2 2 201,737, 311 IR A B RIS hFEA s o
Fd5E(d)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEUHE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

)

ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
Long positions in shares and underlying shares
of Luk Fook (“Luk Fook Shares”)

EERERITHASRESF ZEHR
e (@

(2) 1AEHEE
iR D R AR RARR (R (T7RfERR1R])
ZHE

Number of Ordinary Shares
LERYE

% of
Luk Fook
Beneficial Controlled ~ Beneficiary Other Total Shares
Name of Director Owner Spouse  Corporation of a Trust Interests Interests {7V igRR(R
EGREA Bff  SENEE  GREZA Hfta HadE NEQ(H‘;
ote (2
Wiz (a)
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny 360,000 - - 238,661,722 - 289,011,722 (1) 40.71%
BERES Note (b)
2t o)
Ms. CHEUNG Irene - 239,011,722 - - - 289,011,722 (1) 40.71%
RERLL Note (0
Wiz (o)
Dr. CHAN So Kuen 250,000 5,000 - - - 255,000 () 0.04%
REGERL Note (d)
K3t (o)
(L) Long postion &
Note (a) EEE)

The percentage is based on the total number of issued Luk Fook Shares as
at 31 March 2025 (i.e. 587,107,850 Luk Fook Shares).

Note (b)

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny is one of the discretionary beneficiaries under the
Trust, which is interested in 238,651,722 of Luk Fook Shares.

Note (c)

Ms. CHEUNG Irene is the spouse of Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny and she is
deemed to be interested in the 239,011,722 in Luk Fook Shares which Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny is deemed to be interested in.

Note (d)

Dr. CHAN So Kuen'’s spouse, Mr. LO Kwing Chi, held 5,000 Luk Fook Shares.

BOtETh R #R202543831H 2 B &7/ @R (D&
2 (BP587,107,85088 7~ 1@ A& 19) 5HE
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R+EPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEUHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as known to the directors and chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 March 2025, save as disclosed below, no
person, other than a director or chief executive of the Company,
had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of

FERRI AR R AHRARR (R Z HE ak

12025538318 » Br T XFTIRBEE N ;A
RABEERERSTHRAESME  BHEAEMIF
FRBEZFHURSTHRABZALRERF
RIDKRABBERD T EEREES P ER
PIEXVER B2 K 3D EIF X R M AR F W E
ZREE KA

the SFO.

Name of substantial

Number of issued

% of issued
ordinary shares

shareholder ordinary shares held Capacity Total Interests HERTTER
TERRAHE RFAERTLERYE s LT ZER
(Note a)
(Miza)
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 514,972 (1) Beneficial owner 202,557,589 (L) 75.11%
BRERE ETHERA
18,614 () Interest of spouse
Note (b) fefBa
HtzE (o)
301,452 (1) Interest in controlled
corporation
REEERR
201,722,551 (L) Beneficiary of a trust
Note (c) FRER @A
fi¥(c)
Ms. LUK Chui Yee 18,614 () Beneficial owner 202,557,589 (L) 75.11%
BERELL ETHERA
816,424 (1) Interest of spouse
Note (d) fefBa
B EE()
201,722,551 (1) Beneficiary of a trust
Note (c) Fit%
fiz¥(c)
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy 29,643 (L) Beneficial owner 201,752,194 (1) 74.81%
BEEYL Bl A
201,722,651 (L) Beneficiary of a trust
Note (c) FrEXEmA
fi3E(c)
LF Holding Services Limited 201,722,551 () Interest in controlled 201,722,551 (1) 74.80%
Note (c) corporation
Miizt(c) REEE#R
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEUHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN

FER R AR R AHRARR (R Z H ak

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued) (48)
% of issued
Name of substantial Number of issued ordinary shares
shareholder ordinary shares held Capacity Total Interests B BTEER
TERFLE FHECRTEERYE st B ZAR
(Note a)
(HizEa)
Luk Fook (Control) Limited 9,716,617 (1) Beneficial owner 201,660,598 (L) 74.78%
TR (ZR) BRAR BB
191,943,981 (L) Interest in controlled
Note (c) corporation
fitzE(c) REEE#G
Luk Fook 191,943,981 (L) Interest in controlled 191,943,981 (L) 71.18%
e Note (c) corporation
MitzE(c) REEE#R
Luk Fook 3D Investment Holding 190,021,482 (L) Beneficial owner 190,021,482 (L) 70.46%
Company Limited BRBBA
NEEBREEEERAR
BOS Trustee Limited as trustee 201,725,626 (1) Trustee 201,725,626 (1) 74.80%
BOS Trustee Limited (fEAZFEA) Note (g) ZEEA
MitzZ(e)
Mr. ZHENG Yuewen 25,105,561 (L) Interest in controlled 25,105,561 (L) 9.31%
Rt Note (f) corporation
Bt REEE#R
Mr. WEN Jialong 141,548 (1) Beneficial owner 25,247,109 (L) 9.36%
RERELE BB
25,105,561 (L) Interest in controlled
Note (f) corporation
gl REEE#EG
Hallow King Global Investments 25,106,561 (L) Interest in controlled 25,105,561 (L) 9.31%
Limited Note (f) corporation
SERUEREBRAT P () REEE#R
Kerui Jinrong Co., Limited 25,105,561 (L) Interest in controlled 25,105,561 (1) 9.31%
RinERBRAR Note () corporation
] REEERR
Weltrade Group Limited 25,105,561 (L) Beneficial owner 25,105,561 (L) 9.31%
Note (f) EnkaA
]

() Long position 17 &
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETIIRTG

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)
Note (a)

The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at 31 March 2025 (i.e. 269,671,601 shares).

Note (b)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung is the spouse of Ms. Luk Chui Yee and he is deemed to be
interested in the 18,614 shares in the Company directly held by Ms. LUK Chui Yee as
a beneficial owner.

Note (c)

Luk Fook is held as to approximately 40.39% by Luk Fook (Control) Limited, which
in turn is indirectly held as to approximately 46.29% by the Trust (BOS Trustee
Limited acts as trustee of the Trust) via LF Holding Services Limited where Mr. WONG
Wai Sheung and his spouse, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, are the founders and settlors
and Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, and
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are the discretionary beneficiaries. LF Holding Services
Limited held 100% of the issued share capital of LF Enterprises Limited and 46.29%
of the issued share capital of Luk Fook (Control) Limited, which are in turn interested
in 61,953 shares and 201,660,598 shares of the Company respectively. Hence, LF
Holding Services Limited was deemed to be interested in 201,722,551 shares in the
Company. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee,
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy was therefore deemed
to be interested in 201,722,551 shares in the Company indirectly held by LF Holding
Services Limited.

Note (d)

Ms. LUK Chui Yee is the spouse of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and she is deemed to
be interested in the (i) 514,972 shares in the Company directly held by Mr. WONG
Wai Sheung as a beneficial owner; and (i) 301,452 shares in the Company held by
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung through his controlled corporations.

Note (e)

BOS Trustee Limited owned 100% of the issued share capital of LF Holding Services
Limited and was deemed to be interested in 201,722,551 shares in the Company in
the capacity of the trustee of the Trust.

In addition, BOS Trustee Limited, as trustee of another trust, was deemed to be
interested in the 3,075 shares in the Company held by the Trust.

Note (f)

The shares are held by Weltrade Group Limited (“Weltrade”). Weltrade is a company
wholly-owned by Kerui Jinrong Co., Limited. Keru Jinrong Co., Limited is in turn
owned by Mr. ZHENG Yuewen, Mr. XIANG Hong and Hallow King Global Investments
Limited as to 40%, 20% and 40% respectively. Hallow King Global Investments
Limited is an entity wholly-owned by Mr. WEN Jialong. As such, Mr. ZHENG Yuewen
and Mr. WEN Jialong are deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Weltrade.
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R+EPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEUHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS

IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS,
CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the Period, the Group had the following transactions
with connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company and certain Directors had material interests, directly or
indirectly, in such transactions:

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(1) The Supply Agreement
On 8 May 2024, China Gold Silver Group Company Limited
(“CGS”, a subsidiary of the Company) and Maxigood
Enterprises Limited (“Maxigood”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Luk Fook, entered into a supply agreement
(“Supply Agreement”’) pursuant to which CGS (for itself
and as an agent for and on behalf of each of its subsidiaries)
shall supply to Maxigood (for itself and as an agent for
and on behalf of each of the subsidiaries of Luk Fook) raw
materials and/or finished goods in respect of platinum and
gold jewelleries and gold ornaments, gem-set jewelleries,
jadeites, gemstones and other accessory items (the “Raw
Materials”) for a term of three years from 1 July 2024 to 30
June 2027.

The maximum annual amount of consideration receivable
by CGS from Maxigood under the Supply Agreement shall
be no more than HK$33,000,000, HK$33,000,000 and
HK$33,000,000 for each of the three years ending 30 June
2025, 2026, and 2027, respectively. For the nine months
ended 31 March 2025, the aggregate amount receivable by
CGS and its subsidiaries (‘CSG Group”) under the Supply
Agreement was approximately HK$483,000.
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EEUHE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

2

(3)

80

The Purchase Agreement

On 8 May 2024, CGS and Maxigood entered into a
purchase agreement (“Purchase Agreement”) pursuant
to which CGS (for itself and as an agent for and on behalf
of each of its subsidiaries) shall purchase from Maxigood
(for itself and as an agent for and on behalf of each of its
subsidiaries of Luk Fook) the Raw Materials for a term of
three years from 1 July 2024 to 30 June 2027.

The maximum annual amount of consideration payable by
CGS to Maxigood under the Purchase Agreement shall
be no more than HK$210,000,000, HK$270,000,000 and
HK$340,000,000 for each of the three years ending 30
June 2025, 2026, and 2027, respectively. For the nine
months ended 31 March 2025, the aggregate amount
payable by CGS Group under the Purchase Agreement was
approximately HK$24,277,000.

The Franchise Agreement

On 8 May 2024, BfELLE (BE) BRAT (transliterated
as Zun Fu Jewellery (Chongging) Co., Ltd.) (‘Zun Fu
Chonggqing”), an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a franchise agreement
(‘Franchise Agreement’) with BEZEEEHHE (EB) A
FR/A 8 (transliterated as Bo Yuan Gold Star Software
(Chongging) Company Limited) (“Chongging Bo-yuan”)
in respect of the grant of the licence by Chongging Bo-
yuan to CGS Group for the use of the computer programs
at the CGS Group’s retail outlets and/or head offices (the
“Computer Programs”) for a term of three years from 1
July 2024 to 30 June 2027.

The maximum licence fees payable by Zun Fu Chongaing to
Chongqging Bo-yuan pursuant to the Franchise Agreement
shall be no more than HK$2,000,000, HK$2,000,000 and
HK$2,000,000 for each of the three years ending 30 June
2025, 2026 and 2027, respectively. For the nine months
ended 31 March 2025, the aggregate amount of licence
fee payable by Zun Fu Chongging under the Franchise
Agreement was approximately HK$538,000.
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EEUHE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(4) The Service Agreement

On 8 May 2024, Zun Fu Chongging entered into a service
agreement (“Service Agreement”) with Chongging Bo-
yuan in respect of the provision of certain maintenance
services for the Computer Programs by Chongging Bo-yuan
to the CGS Group for a term of three years from 1 July 2024

to 30 June 2027.

The maximum annual maintenance fees payable by Zun
Fu Chongging to Chongging Bo-yuan pursuant to the
Service Agreement shall be no more than HK$5,000,000,
HK$6,000,000 and HK$7,000,000 for each of the three
years ending 30 June 2025, 2026 and 2027, respectively.
For the nine months ended 31 March 2025, the aggregate
amount of maintenance fee payable by Zun Fu Chongqing
under the Service Agreement was approximately to

HK$2,252,000.

(5) IT System Agreement

On 8 May 2024, CGS and Luk Fook entered into the IT
System Agreement in respect of the provision of certain
information technology-related services by various
subsidiaries of Luk Fook to the CGS Group for a term of

three years from 1 July 2024 to 30 June 2027.

The maximum service fees payable by CGS Group to Luk
Fook Group pursuant to the IT System Agreement shall
be no more than HK$5,000,000, HK$12,000,000 and
HK$5,000,000 for each of the three years ending 30 June
2025, 2026 and 2027, respectively. For the nine months
ended 31 March 2025, the aggregate amount of service fee
payable by CGS Group under the IT System Agreement was

approximately to HK$144,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

As (i) Luk Fook is a substantial shareholder of the Company, (i)
Maxigood is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Luk Fook,
and (i) Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny is an executive director of
the Company, Luk Fook and CGS and one of the discretionary
beneficiaries of the Trust which indirectly owns 92% of Chongging
Bo-yuan, hence, each of Luk Fook, Maxigood and Chongging Bo-
yuan is a connected person of the Company and the transactions
under the Supply Agreement, the Purchase Agreement, the
Franchise Agreement, the Service Agreement and the IT System
Agreement are continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Particulars of the above were disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 8 May 2024. The transaction contemplated
under the Supply Agreement, Purchase Agreement and IT System
Agreement were subsequently approved by the independent
shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 28 June 2024.

Independent Auditor’s Letter on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s
Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The independent auditor had issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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EEUHE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors
Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors had reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and the Auditor’s Letter and had confirmed that these
transactions had been entered into by the Group:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  onnormal or better commercial terms; and

(8) according to the respective agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement
or contract which was significant in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the
Period.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the Period set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements include transactions that constitute
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions
for which the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules have been complied with.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the share options disclosed above, at no time during
the Period was the Company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or associated corporations a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors and the chief executive
of the Company (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporations.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Period and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant
statutes for the benefit of the Directors (including former Directors)
of the Company or its associated companies. The permitted
indemnity provisions are provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws
and in the directors and officers liability insurance maintained for
the Group in respect of potential liability and costs associated with
legal proceedings that may be brought against such Directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS
During the Period, the percentages of sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major customers are as follows:

EESTREIRD

REPEARBEARSBRAR/LL FARF
BREMZEROAT  BEUXAE S HBE
ANEREF (BEMES ARm ABRBERX -
BESFBEMRXIBEEHN AT Z AR
A UERRAEBAESRESRBERERN
BEERRAN ARARRMEFNEEMNER
SEE¥ARFAAMELERFAERMEL RS

=
=K

EEBEFR
REBEP AEBEBEFFEERHE
BWZEALMT

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#T FHETT

The largest customer BAER 5.4% 7.4%
Five largest customers combined ARRABEREET 12.5% 20.4%

The percentage of revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers combined is less than 30%.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital (excluding treasury shares)) had interest
in the major customers noted above.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchases for the Period attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

FERLLRAZFHWAMGLESGE DR
30% °

BEZ REZHMBALIHNBEESFAANES
FTRESRULERE (FEBEFRD) ZEF
IRE BEER LIt T B R R 2 e

EEMHED
RAEAR Py A M = B ER A58 4R
ZEAMT

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$'000

TF#T FHET

The largest supplier BRAMIER 53% 39.1%
Five largest suppliers combined hBRAHEREE 71.2% 69.4%
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS (Continued)

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital (excluding treasury shares)) had interest
in the major suppliers noted above.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings of
the Group as at 31 March 2025 are set out in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there are no restrictions against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company for the forthcoming
AGM will be closed from 15 August 2025 to 20 August 2025,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for attendance at the AGM
to be held on 20 August 2025, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 14 August 2025.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the directors are reviewed and determined by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics. No director, or any of his or her associates involved in
deciding his or her own remuneration.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or their associates has any interests in the
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with our Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to shareholders by reason of their holdings of the
Company’s securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available and within the knowledge
of the directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual
Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited has resigned as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 20 December 2024, and
PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 20 December 2024 to fill the casual
vacancy.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Period
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the
forthcoming AGM.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in auditor
of the Company during the past three years.

By order of the Board,
WONG Ho Lung, Danny
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 June 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VR ER SR e

_i
pwe s Ak it

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF 3DG HOLDINGS REEEEE (B ERATRE
(INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (R EFREZ AT HIE R F])
OPINION BER
What we have audited HTIE&FEAHIAE

The consolidated financial statements of 3DG Holdings Z®ZZ%E FHK) GEAE UTHEER
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the &) REMWBAT WU T4 IEE£E)) 5 H

“Group”), which are set out on pages 100 to 210, comprise: RE100E210B MR e mE > 815 !
e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2025; e RIZTHF=A=+—HHNGEEE
B8ER;

. the consolidated income statement for the period from 1 e TECNFETtA—HEZIZETHF=A
July 2024 to 31 March 2025 (the “period”); =+—HEME (THiA) iR EEER ;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for e “EIUFE+TA—HBEZZEAF=8
the period from 1 July 2024 to 31 March 2025; = +—HRENGRE2ERGER

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the e TECNFETA—HEZIZEZTHF=A
period from 1 July 2024 to 31 March 2025; —+—HIENGEEREHE ;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the period from o “EIFE+TB—HEZZEAF=8
1 July 2024 to 31 March 2025; and =+ HEBENGERERER &

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, o fR&aHBEREMT > QEEARGFBR
comprising material accounting policy information and other KREMBEER -
explanatory information.

Our opinion HFER

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true IR A > ZEE U FRRCEEET L
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as ~ stEIA B BEHRN(EBM B RSS2 ) E
at 31 March 2025, and of its consolidated financial performance EBmMHAS#MKET SE£EER_Z_HF=
and its consolidated cash flows for the period from 1 July 2024 B =+—HMNGEEMHFERIEER - M
to 31 March 2025 in accordance with HKFRS Accounting &tHA—HZE_ZE_HFF=FB=+—HHH
Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public 4RSI RIBEGEERESRE L EER
Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in  &H&E(ATHER ) MIRER T Z A5 -
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
BERAEGHEEH > EBTRERFAEY =

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

Mt : +852 2289 8888 » fHE : +852 2810 9888 » www.pwchk.com
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ERVRER S EITE =

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) as issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

The key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

° Existence and valuation of inventories

° Impairment assessment of trademark
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MR ER S GIIE =)
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matters
RSBt B8

FRERE T HIE (@)

How our audit addressed
the Key Audit Matters
EME e EIRR S+ HI1E

Existence and valuation of inventories

FENFEEREGE

Refer to Note 4(a) and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.
FH2RREUBIRERM 4@ K190
The carrying value of inventories of the Group is HK$1,070
million as at 31 March 2025. The Group’s inventories
mainly comprised gold, platinum and gem-set jewellery
products in the retail stores and warehouses. Valuation of
inventories is at lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses. Significant portion of
the carrying value of the inventories represented cost of
precious metals and gems which are subject to the risk of
changes in market value. The assessment of net realisable
value of inventories is based on estimates and judgements
by management in respect of, amongst others, authenticity
and valuation of gold, platinum and gem-set jewellery
products, historical sales performances of gem-set
jewellery products and the estimated selling price of
precious metals and gems for gold, platihum and gem-
set jewellery products. Management engaged independent
gemmologists to assist them in evaluating the authenticity
and valuation of selected gem-set jewellery products.
Furthermore, there is a higher inherent risk of theft and
pilferage given the high intrinsic value and portable nature
of individual inventory item.
N_ZE_RF=A=+—H> BEEEFENKREER
1070888t EERGEETIEaRTEEHNAERE
NES HERAKEEMHEMR - FENHRRAER]E
HPEMEZRERELE - FENIERFERH %¥
BEREPNEAEBR AT NS RiEERZ
FRAInFEREENEBRSBYAESTBRHEELE T
ZERAAZTEEFAR FENTTSR FEREE
B (HPERE) S - HeUARGEEHERNEE Y
REE-GEENHERNEBTHERREERES KBTI
&iﬁi%%ﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁ:E’J%%%&Eﬂi%%%‘ifﬁE’Jﬁ%ﬂi’#ﬂﬁﬁ
ETH MG - BIRE LA L B AT MM i%EN TG EE
AEMERZERRMEE- LI ﬁﬂlj?“aﬂﬁﬁqf{%@
SRRAGENE CHETRSNEMZERR

Our procedures in relation to existence and valuation of
inventories included:

PN EFENEEEREBEEFHNERDT ¢

1)

1)

We obtained an understanding of the
management’s internal control and assessment
process of existence and valuation of inventories
and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias
or fraud;
EMETHEEREHEFENEFEHREBEN

P B 12 5l e ST AR AR 0 W ARIB E Bk st R E
MREE REMATRERRERHOKT Rk
HAFEM S EREEERRRE MR
RS > DTG BB A SR SRR R N TE R

We evaluated and validated management’s key
controls over the existence of inventories;
HMPETEAREEEEEEEEENRER
25
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ERVRER S EITE =
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matters
RSBt H18

RIS T H1E (@)

How our audit addressed
the Key Audit Matters
EME R IRR S+ HI1E

Existence and valuation of inventories (Continued)

FENFEEREGE (@

We focused on auditing the existence and valuation of
inventories because the existence of inventories is a
heightened risk given the high value and portable nature
of individual item, which are susceptible to potential
misappropriation or theft while the assessment of net
realisable value of inventories involved estimates and
significant management judgements.
EMEBEBRFENGFIURGE RETRENES
EEHEESEZNME FUERMARNEBNEE &
HETUHBRSRREE ; MEEFS 225 FE8]
WA R BIRE ' AN o

We evaluated and validated management’s key
controls over the authenticity of gold, platinum
and gem-set jewellery products;

BMsTa kR EEEHES HERHKER
B EmE B RERITES ;

We attended the annual physical inventory
counts close to year-end date in selected
retail stores and warehouses of the Group
and performed sample count procedures. We
compared our sample count results with the
counts performed by the Group and the records
in the inventory system. We also selected
samples and tested the authenticity of gold,
platinum and gem-set jewellery products using
electronic testers. We performed roll backward
testing on the inventory movements between the
annual physical inventory count dates and the
year-end date on a sample basis by checking
relevant supporting evidence;
BMERELFEEH2E EEEXNTEE
HRAENFEEYFERRETHERE
BroHMBRMANMEMELERE S£EN
REERREFERRCIRIEA L o HPITR
BEATEAEFAABRNES HERHKE
B EmIEEMETER - MM LIRS
MERNBYRMAEFEH Az FERIE
TR AN A E%AEREER G ;
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MR ER S GIIE =)
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matters
RSBt B8

FRERE T HIE (@)

How our audit addressed
the Key Audit Matters
EME e EIRR S+ HI1E

Existence and valuation of inventories (Continued)

FENFEEREEE (@

In evaluating management’s assessment of net
realisable values and provision of inventories:

AL EEENFE S FEREBHEETEHN
B

5)

We evaluated the net realisable values of gold
and platinum inventories with reference to the
estimated selling price of precious metals and
other supporting documents;
BEME2ZEcBAtEERAMERXHY
Mt ET RIS FERN SR EE ;

We obtained an understanding of management’s
processes for the identification of slow-moving
gem-set jewellery products;

B THEEEHNFHAKEESHE RN

25

We evaluated the reasonableness of
management’s inventory provision by considering
key estimates including cost to re-work of gem-
set jewellery products and the historical sales
pattern of these products and checking related
supporting documents;
EMTEEEEEEEHE 2B AT
REEMFER CEECEMEREMRE
A ZEERZELHER UREZ
TERASEBAS A ;

Annual Report 2024/25 4R 91



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ERVRER S EITE =
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matters
FAsRE T HIE

RIS T H1E (@)

How our audit addressed
the Key Audit Matters
EME R IRR S+ HI1E

Existence and valuation of inventories (Continued)

FENFEEREGE (@

We obtained and reviewed gemological appraisal
reports for selected samples of gem-set
jewellery products performed by the independent
gemmologists to verify the authenticity and
valuation of the selected samples. We also
challenged and further evaluated the basis and
technique used in the gemological appraisal
reports; and
BMMECEREHERRARS L EREE
YEAEEMBEL  EAEERS  UIZEM
BERAZBERKREE RATREAEERS
FIRBzERRRMREEERILIFE—F T
(RIS

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent gemmologists and
obtained an understanding of their scope of work
and the terms of engagement.
EMEsMhE I BEAEEMNA BB EIRE
B 0T RRIREN TEHE IR RR

Based on the procedures performed, we found that
the existence of inventories, as well as the estimates
and judgement made by management in respect of
the valuation of inventories, are supportable by the
available evidence.

BREBECETHER RMERTFECFT BEEEE
MESZBEFLH Z G KA EMFERE T

92 3DG Holdings (International) Limited £ Z &£ H (F %) AR AF



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

MR ER S GIIE =)
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matters
RSBt B8

FRERE T HIE (@)

How our audit addressed
the Key Audit Matters
EME e EIRR S+ HI1E

Impairment assessment of trademark

B8 R BRI E P

Refer to Note 4(c), and Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BRAREUHRERM FAC) RMFET -

The Group carried HK$155 million trademark with definite
useful live on the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
March 2025.

AZETHEFE=ZA=1+—H> BEEXERGEEEEERE
R EHR15EEBTAERROERFEANEZE.

In consideration of the Group was loss-making during the
period, management considered there was impairment
indicator of trademark and performed impairment
assessment on the Group level which comprised of
group of cash-generating units (CGUs). In performing
the impairment assessment, management compared the
carrying amount of the CGUs with its recoverable amount
based on discounted cash flow forecasts projections to
determine if any impairment provision was required.

BN AEENIARNREEE KEEERAEREER
B URAEEER (RRSESBAABRIHAER) &
TRESTE - FOETREGR > BEERBERRS
mERALBRREELBUZRAEREAEINERE
A Er RS BF R PIRE R o

Management engaged an independent external valuer to
assist them for the impairment assessment of trademark.
Based on management’s impairment assessment,
management concluded that there was no impairment in
respect of the Group’s trademark as at 31 March 2025.

BIEERFB LI T G iR HETE RN R ET
BoRBEEEENRENG EBESHAR RNZE

"o nff
“HEF=ZR=+—H> EEENHRLENE

QOur procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of trademark included:

RO ERNVAEF L EFHNRERFNT

1)

We obtained an understanding of the
management’s internal control and process
of impairment assessment of trademark
and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias
or fraud;
RMETREER NN ES R @R EE
SHEBRE WiBBE Bt T REENEE R
HMA T RRERZNKT WM~ 8%
SERHEEE R R IREFOURLE - UeTE
BAERERILAINTRR ;
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ERVRER S EITE =
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matters
RSBt H18

RIS T H1E (@)

How our audit addressed
the Key Audit Matters
EME R IRR S+ HI1E

Impairment assessment of trademark (Continued)

BEREREETE (@)

We focused on auditing the impairment of trademark
because the estimation of recoverable amount is subject
to heightened inherent risk and significant management
assumptions used in determining the discounted cash
flows under the value in use calculations. The key
assumptions used are as follows:
EMEREEHEREN G RETR G T REE
EIRBeERRBREREBESERE TANEERER
HERENEREEERR -FIANBEREROT !

° Average revenue growth rates for 1st to 5th year;
e  FIESFENTHWABEE;

° Average gross profit margin rates;

. THERE;

° Discount rates; and
J ARIRE ) &

° Revenue growth rate for 6th to 15.5th year
e  FEEEISLSFHMAEEE

We assessed the reliability of management’s
cash flow forecasts by comparing budgeted
results in prior period’s forecasts with actual
performance of the current period;

BFIER L —HFEAIR AR & R E AR AY
EREGETLEE THEEERESRERA
a5 ;

We evaluated the key assumptions adopted
in the cash flow forecasts, including average
revenue growth rates for 1st to 5th year, average
gross profit margin rates, discount rates and the
revenue growth rate for 6th to 15.5th year by
considering approved budgets, historical data,
actual performance as well as industry data,
with the involvement of our internal valuation
specialists;

EMERAMIEERNLSET  BEERD
BMHNAE BELHEB BREEURITEH
B RS RERAPRANERRKS &
FEE1ESFENTHRAL RER S FHER =
IR R H6E15.5FHIMABREE ;
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VR ER S EITE =
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matters
RSBt B8

FRERE T HIE (@)

How our audit addressed
the Key Audit Matters
EME e EIRR S+ HI1E

Impairment assessment of trademark (Continued)

BEREREERE (@)

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent external valuer
engaged by management and obtained an
understanding of their scope of work and the
terms of engagement; and
ﬁfFﬂE%WE”éi@H%%%E’M%ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂm?r

“tjj&%?%‘%'lﬁ T THRETRFHEREE
ﬂ‘r'rA y &

We evaluated sensitivity analyses performed
by management over key assumptions in the
model in order to ascertain the extent of change
in those assumptions would be required for the
trademark to be impaired.
WFHEME*EE g 5 IR B R A SRR SR R BURLE
DT UEEEENERAENZERRFAE
HNEEREE-

Based on the procedures performed, we found that
management’s judgements and assumptions used
in the impairment assessment of trademark, are
supportable by the available evidence.
RBBETHNER RATAEEBREFRRET
PR ARV R R et E BT 1 /Re8 2 15 o
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ERVRER S EITE =

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in 3DG Holdings (International) Limited Annual Report
2024/25 (the “annual report”) other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We have
obtained some of the other information including management
discussion and analysis prior to the date of this auditor’s report.
The remaining other information, including Corporate Profile,
Chairman’s Statement, Major Events, Corporate Governance
Report, Report of the Directors, Corporate Information and
the Sustainability Report 2024/25 and the other sections to be
included in the annual report, is expected to be made available to
us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be included
in the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to Audit Committee and take appropriate action considering our
legal rights and obligations.

Hthfz 8

ENREEAHHEMEEREAE - HEMEES
EEEEEE (HR) BRAB2024/25F )
(TR ) ABRATR & B ISR 3= M 3 I B9 1% BREm
REINNFAEERE - HMPERAZEMRSE A
OSSN EMEE  SEEEBT AKX
DB THEMEE  BRELCESN EE
RE-AFRD LESARE - BEFTRSE
NEER F2024/250] B B RE RS E
EERRNEMID > FBHIE & £ 2% S
RERBEE

BB GEEMBERENERTARERME
B BART ORI HZFEMERERE
AR EEE 4o

EERMABGREMBRENES HANE
FRFEBELENEMER  FILBRET EE
HES BB A RE M BRRAMMEST
BRERTBRNBEREFEERBENE LT
FHEENERRABIIBR

ERBRAEERZEMERS BB EAth
EEFATHIfF NREMARKSHMESR
FHRERESRRL HAFEREZFE &
Ehm: HPIRBEEARS -

ERMHBEBZFRCREFRAER FHEM
EER WREMXDBEPEEERIERR
o HAPATEREREREELEZEGER
WERBHBMANEREEANNEBRREMNEET
o

96 3DG Holdings (International) Limited £ Z &£ H (F %) AR AF



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

EEREBRZETMESMBRRA
RIERRE

BEAREF AR EREF AL GED
B(ERMBRE G ER]) REB(QTF
PNBRIRBERERFEEEMTENESMHR
T UHEBAREEEMBEREVEBERED
FHEBRREGFHARME R E AR
PRENABIERIRE-

TREGEUBRRE EF88THEE
ERBEENE TEBERB R TRESR
REBEEARNER UKERFECES
SRR BRIFEFAEREEEFHRUR
1A= R EEMBRNENS R

BEZZEC AR EREEEENMBREA
2o

%ﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬂ%ﬂﬁ
T

RANER EHGEOMBREERRS T
FHERREGFHARME R E AR
NREERFRD THASERMAERNZH
RS - RPIERRARE-N/N\—F(2F
E)FBOFME T (FRERER BERMANE
RoBRIEZ RS EAEMER AT E
MEBENABTAEFAEMA TS ESEE
EREE  EERBRSKTHRE BT
RERIR(BEBBAERDETHNE TR —
EARERRAFERABRESE IR o SARIRA A
DI ERFE AR5 RS ERHMEME
BIEBERAEZEFRSMBREERE
RBAEGHMBRRAAELNEERE AE
R RS SRR P AR IEE K ©
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

ZEEMMBEHR S MBRREENE
£ (&

ERB(BRBBAERDETESBES
PIERT EXFIE R TEXRREEE -
375

E24
E24

o HBIMFEBENIREENERMERL
BMBRRFEEREREANVER
RETRRITESNEF UAEHRE LR
URER T ENBENETRE FR
PR RBVERE - MR EEFRIAE Y M &R
woRE BERER ERRL EE
PR BRIERIZ £ > RIE R AE B IR HNGF
ME A B AR R A B R S 1 R AE
BHRAHERMENNERERERAL R

2
a0 O
AN

o  THREZRSHERMBANIIES URE
ENESRERF BEENLIFY S&H
REMERBI AL ERER -

o HEEEFMERASSERNGENERE
&St AR EN S EME -

s HEERARKECEGERMNGEN
R 455 o RIBFTEMPESHERE
ERAFAUESENBEREBNERT
BEM  RMAEERYE SE£EENF
BICERENEEBAREERE - MRKFIR
WMEEERTEENR MESEELE
Bk EPiRAERE IRAGH BRE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the Group
as a basis for forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is LAIl, Pui Ling, Sandra (practising certificate
number: P05146).

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 June 2025

ZEEMMEHR S MBRREENE
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

/Z\v_\ %%

For the nine months ended 31 March 2025
BE_ZE_HRF=HR=+—HIAEAR

Period ended Year ended
31 March 30 June
2025 2024
BES-HE gE_ZTUE
=B=+—H /\ﬁ_‘f’Eﬂ:
1EHARY FE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
Continuing operations FFEAEE T
Revenue A ) 711,541 604,517
Cost of sales THE A 7 (462,929) (434,240)
Gross profit EH 248,612 170,277
Other income HAUA 6 3,913 1,841
Other gains/(losses), net Huhiz,/ (8518) - /358 8 12,493 (5,655)
Provisions for impairment losses THBEERERRER
on financial assets (451) -
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER (191,504) (171,342
Administrative expenses THEA (67,205) (72,018)
Net unrealised losses on gold loans  —REIERNBAT 2 &%
from a fellow subsidiary Bz REIR IR (169,968) (54,128)
Operatingloss mEBsR 7 (184110 (131,025
Change in fair value of derivatives AR ESTRARNITE
embedded in convertible bonds TEZRAFEEE - 413
Finance income BRSO 80 3,006
Finance costs MEER (32,754) (88,077)
Finance costs, net 5 ERFEE 9 (32,674) (85,071)
Loss before taxation from REFERSEEBHN
continuing operations PRERIFIRAIESIE (196,784) (215,683)
Income tax (expenses)/credit Frigi ) K% 10 (2,902) 4,230
Loss from continuing operations  REBIFELE LFENEE (199,686) (211,453)
Discontinued operation BARIFAREEFE
Profit from discontinued operation REBRIEEEBR G - 2,707
Loss for the period/year . E£RMEsE (199,686) (208,746)
Loss attributable to: FEILES1E -
Equity holders of the Company KRBT FBA (94,864) (135,316)
Non-controlling interests JEERR T (104,822) (73,430)
(199,686) (208,746)
Loss per share for loss attributable Hi, fFRIFEREEER
to equity holders of the Company BH&IEEEBEEZ
arising from continuing and TATRESRE AEWN
discontinued operations during ESiEZ S IRES1E
the period/year
Basic and diluted BXRK#E 12 HK$0.352 HK$0.502
Loss per share arising from BERESEBEEZ
continuing operations SheEsiE 12
Basic and diluted HARKES HK$0.352 HK$0.520
The above consolidated income statement should be read in  FiiAR &85 RAELAFEMIMI T —HEIEE o

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
\\/ \ I:I EE\ELI&/ il

For the nine months ended 31 March 2025
BRE_Z_HEF=RA=+—HLAEAR

Period ended Year ended
31 March 30 June
2025 2024

BES-RE E-_ZTUE
=B=+—H ~NA=+H

LEHARS IEERE
Note HK$’000 HK$’ 000
b= FET FAET
Loss for the period/year . FAEsiE (199,686) (208,746)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ Hith2 5 (558 WA :
income:
Items that may be reclassified to oI iE B EM F EE B
profit or loss ZIEH
Exchange differences on translation &8N EFEH
of foreign operations from PERZRE .
— Continuing operations —T—r”af‘%%%ﬁ (28,407) 6,938
— Discontinued operations —BARIEREER - 412)
(28,407) 6,526
Item that will not be reclassified to BT EE S EE R m
profit or loss ZIEH
Exchange difference arising on BMERNEINEEEES
translation of functional currency ZEREERE
of the Company 14,130 (10,299)
Other comprehensive loss for the Hi FRHEHtZ2EEE
_ period/year, netoftax  : mesw®m a2 @77y
Total comprehensive loss R HEEEREE
for the period/year (213,963) (212,519)
Attributable to: THIALRENR:
— Equity holders of the Company —RRABIERFAA (109,367) (134,245)
— Non-controlling interests —FEERE R (104,596) (78,274)
Total comprehensive loss H/ FERZEEIERE
for the period/year (213,963) (212,519)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income L #it4z & 2 E U A #R 2% FE B2 48 F B 5% — 5 &S
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. &o
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CONSOLIDATED

Yo A=t ==
\\/—r\ == )X T/E\ %E

As at 31 March 2025

R-B_HEF=H=+—H

BALANCE SHEET

As at As at
31 March 30 June
2025 2024
RIEZHEE RKIZTHWF
=RA=+—H ~E=1+H
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B FAT FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BEREE 15 41,583 31,579
Right-of-use assets ERAREE 16 79,526 57,368
Intangible asset mILEE 17 155,337 162,976
Deposits & 18 9,863 7,956
Deferred income tax assets RIEFRTEE = 26 22,923 25,906
309,232 285,785
Current assets MEEE
Inventories =58 19 1,069,901 728,097
Right of return assets ROIEEE 2,644 3,127
Trade receivables B2 R IIRE 20 68,516 40,865
Deposits, prepayments and other ¥ FENIREREME
receivables U BRTE 18 65,966 24,242
Cash and cash equivalents BERIEEEY 21 53,340 31,918
1,260,367 828,249
Total assets WEE 1,569,599 1,114,034
EQUITY #m
Capital and reserves attributable 2T EEFEHA
to the equity holders of the BB RHEE
Company
Share capital [N 23(a) 270 270
Share premium AR HE 23(b) 845,033 845,033
Reserves EiNic] 24 (1,269,175) (1,159,808)
(423,872) (314,505)
Non-controlling interests JEIER R (363,626) (259,030)
Total deficit B4t 4EEE (787,498) (573,535)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

A AN == g
/\\/ [ E g
As at 31 March 2025
WZZ2_RAF=A=+—H

RS

As at As at
31 March 30 June
2025 2024
WMIEZRE RIZTTOF
=RA=+—H ~E=1+H
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
s FAT FAET
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities JEREIAE
Deferred income tax liabilities RILFRSMEE 26 38,836 40,746
Lease liabilities HEs’E 16 45,016 35,929
Loan from a fellow subsidiary —EERMBABZER 29(@) 100,000 100,000
Employee benefit obligations EEEBHEE 1,739 1,252
185,591 177,927
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables, other payables, B S5 ERIE N HMEN
accruals and deposits received BRIE EETRIEKR B
& 22 123,985 156,726
Loans from fellow subsidiaries BRNBABIZER 29(a) 1,273,846 812,591
Contract liabilities SHAaR 6,843 7,642
Lease liabilities HEAR 16 42,190 23,883
Refund liabilities BHRAaR 8,685 10,713
Bank borrowings RITER 27 21,807 =
Gold loans from a fellow subsidiary —EERNBABZ
BEEEM 29(b) 693,651 498,087
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFTIRIR AR 499 =
2,171,506 1,609,642
Total liabilities mER 2,357,097 1,687,569
Total deficit and liabilities BakaEesE 1,569,599 1,114,034
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in Ltitiz & & E & 18 &R FE 58 M M 55 — RS
conjunction with the accompanying notes. BHo

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the
Board of Directors on 24 June 2025 and were signed on its behalf
by the following directors:

Mr. Wong Ho Lung, Danny

FnnE

Director

EF

REMBERRISEHEFEN T

EERA

T+ UM AET LR TIESAREE !

Ms. Cheung Irene
R E
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AL g2y
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For the nine months ended 31 March 2025
BE_Z_AF=A=+—HLAER

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FARRELENE AR
Non-
Share Share controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Subtotal interests equity
4 ROHEE k& IVt OJEEERRHER 0 ESAEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TERT TERT TER TER
(Note 24)
(izt24)
For the year ended HE-_E-MERB=1H
30 June 2024 LEE
As at 1 July 2023 RZBE_=F+tF—H 270 845,033  (1,037,026) (191,723) (179,016) (370,739)
Comprehensive loss 2HEGHE
Loss for the year EREE - - (135316)  (135316)  (73430)  (208,746)
Other comprehensive Hitn2EWA/ (§518)
income/(loss)
Exchange differences on translation B ESZEREHE - - 1,071 1,071 (4,844) 38,779
Total other comprehensive Hit2@EKA / (§518)
income/(loss) kel - - 1,071 1,07 (4,844) (3,779)
Total comprehensive loss 2EGRLEE - - (134,245)  (134,245) (78274) (212,519
Transactions with owners HBEEAZRR
Disposal of subsidiaries HENRBAR - - (555) (555) (1,740) (2,295)
Capital contribution by a shareholder ~—ZREZHE = = 12,018 12,018 = 12,018
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Too_____T____NAB3___ 463 (1740 ___ 9723 _
At 30 June 2024 R-E-mEXB=+A 270 845033 (1,150,808 (314505  (250030)  (573,535)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= A fDE =L 4=4 %‘%
Z > n
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For the nine months ended 31 March 2025

BHE_Z-_hAF=A=+—HIEAEAR

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FARREEEE AR
Non-
Share Share controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Subtotal interests equity

ke ROEE 1] Vit JHERMEE  RmAHE
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TiEn TR TR TR

(Note 24)
(HizE24)
For the nine months ended HE_E"_HE=H
31 March 2025 =+—Hi1th{EA
As at 1 July 2024 RZE_mELE—H 270 845,033  (1,159,808) (314,505) (259,030) (573,535)
Comprehensive loss 2MmEE
Loss for the period HRNEE - - (94,864) (94,864)  (104,822)  (199,686)
Other comprehensive Hith2m (548) /
(loss)/income WA
Exchange differences on translation ~ BEELZERELE - - (14,503) (14,503) 226 (14,277)
Total other Hitt2EASREE
_ comprehensiveloss S T ___ 014509 (14509 26 (14.21)
Total comprehensive loss 2EmREE R - ___(109367)  (109367) _ (104,506) (213,963
At 31 March 2025 R-E-REZA=+-A 270 845033 (1,269,175 (423872  (363,626)  (787,498)

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be & #it 47 & #6 % % B 2% FE £ 5 B B 55 — F B3
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. Bo
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ra R MER

For the nine months ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_hAF=A=+—HIEAEAR

Period ended Year ended
31 March 30 June
2025 2024

BE_ERF BE_TNF
=RA=+—-H ~A=+H

LEHAR LEE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
= FEw TET
Cash flows from operating activities =&E;EFHZIREHE
Net cash used in operations SEMBZIRE R 30(a) (378,214) (261,274)
Mainland income taxes refunded BRAMPTIRIR - 1,330
Mainland income taxes paid B AMETEIR (976) (226)
Net cash outflow from operating EERS IS M FE
activities (379,190) (260,170)
Cash flows from investing activities §&;EFHZIMEFE
Purchases of property, plant and BEYE BEKRERE
equipment (30,645) (26,215)
Cash outflows from disposal of HERBRARNRE
subsidiaries piidas] = (3,449)
Interest received BUFH 2 80 5,037
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE- F&%E’z S
plant and equipment FriSakT 594 -
Placement of pledged bank deposits =N EI BR=Ea
with maturities over 3 months HEEIRRITER = (21,361)
Withdraw of pledged bank deposits EINEEIFRITER - 884,211
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing % & E&ZIBE (Rt)
activities A HEE (29,971) 838,223
Cash flows from financing activities ME;EFHZIREFE
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITERMERIE 30(c) 21,806 51,500
Repayment of bank borrowings BIBIRITEMN 30(c) - (1,840,500)
Proceeds from gold loans from a felow —fEZMBAT 2
subsidiary BEBEMZMEMIE 30(c) 19,779 443,959
Repayment of lease liabilities (including ~ {&ER S &1(E (B4EF]2)
interest) 30(c) (31,629) (23,375)
Interest paid ENFHE 30(c) (2,872) (67,090)
Advances from a director —HEEBRN 30(c) - 2,055
Proceeds from loans from fellow BRWB AR ZER
subsidiaries Frigs18 30(c) 423,434 814,966
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BMEREBZIBERAS
financing activities Omt) £ %8 430,518 (618,485)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and IRERIFAESEEWZIEM,
cash equivalents GRe2L) 7248 21,357 (40,432)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning W ER/FE¥zRE KRS
of period/year ZEY 31,918 71,229
Exchange differences ERELE 65 1,121
Cash and cash equivalents at end of R/ ERZIRERIRE
period/year £EY 21 53,340 31,918

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in ~ _E#li 47 & IR % 7% & K FE B4 BE MY i 53 — B
conjunction with the accompanying notes. Bo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

GENERAL INFORMATION

3DG Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda on 29 July 2002 as a company
with limited liability under the Companies Act of Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the retailing, wholesaling and licensing
operations of a variety of gold and platinum jewellery, and
gem-set jewellery.

The Company’s shares were listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 30 June 2003.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$"), unless otherwise stated, and
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors (the
“Board”) on 24 June 2025.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@) Change of financial year end date
On 27 February 2025, the Board announced that
financial year end date of the Company has been
changed from 30 June to 31 March commencing
from the financial period ended 31 March 2025 in
order to align its financial year end date with the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Accordingly,
the accompanying consolidated financial statements
of the current financial period cover a period of
nine months from 1 July 2024 to 31 March 2025.
The comparative figures for the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash
flows and related notes, however, cover a period of
twelve months from 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024,
and hence are not directly comparable.

—RRE R

TEEEE (BB ERAA (A
BRI ZFLAZ+AHEER
REBREBEERERBZAGEMUILIAE
R~ B] > E 5 ik &= ith ik & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda e

FABDBREERAT AR REM
BB (i REE) TERERER
NTEMRREEM 2 TE B RER
EESER

KABRMR _BZ2=F/A=1+H%E
EBMAERZRARAS (TH3ZFR) £
e

BRABRBEIN LFEGHMBRKI
LA (T#r) 27 TER TR
FREZTHHEEES (EFF)#t
HETEE

REEE

(@) ENMBEFEESEHEAH
A ZEHRFZAZ+tTHCEE
BEMARBAZMBEEEHEH
EE_E_RE=ZA=+—HIL
MHAAEERB=1THEXS
ZB=+—H ' UBEAAQAFTZERR
RNV ERFEEEH X -FAIL
BB A BB 4R & Bl
HE_Z_NWFtLtA—HEZZE
—EF=BA=+—HILEANABEAH
BlefAM HGREBERER - FE2HE
WmR - GEaEmEER - GLaR
EMEXRKMIEBREANENLEREF
HME_Z__FtA—HEZZT
“HEXRAB=+HILE+ZEAH
EREPSl R NI = 23 met 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2 RREE B u

(b) Compliance with HKFRS and Hong Kong (b) BFERANBRIZENRES
Companies Ordinance ATEH
The consolidated financial statements of the Group KREBZEAVBRERILBES
have been prepared in accordance with HKFRS Aot g (FEAGHHAE))
Accounting Standards as issued by the Hong Kong BHNE B BRESEN G
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) AR BB A BMRAIFEC22E 2 IR E
and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong HEMRB
Companies Ordinance Cap.622.
The consolidated financial statements have been FRU0MI T3P AR A% > bR — B[R R M
prepared under the historical cost convention except BREIZESERAR A NES
for gold loans from a fellow subsidiary which are BN IRAMBRKRBELMAIE
measured at fair value, as explained in Note 3. GRS
The preparation of consolidated financial statements RSBV BREEN G
in conformity with HKFRS Accounting Standards HEH— B 2EaMBERREE
requires the use of certain critical accounting FERETHARGHGE BRNTE
estimates. It also requires management to exercise EEEEERANEREG R
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s FEHHE - W e EX BN E
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher BHEEMNEE I R RETE
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where RERBEABZMNGENELRE 7T
assumptions and estimates are significant to the B EF4R IRz o
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

(c) Basis of going concern (c) FHERERE
The Group incurred a net loss of approximately KEEBRBEE_ZE_HAF=A8
HK$199,686,000 during the nine months ended 31 —t+—HIEAEREELEIEZ
March 2025 and as at that date, the Group had net ¥B8#9199,686,0008 T &% A >
current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately KEERHEEIFTEREERTF
HK$911,139,000 and HK$787,498,000 respectively. RED A4 #911,139,0008 7T &
Among its current liabilities as of 31 March 2025 were 787,498,000 NS " HF
interest-free loans of approximately HK$13,275,000, —A=+—H EnsaceEt
interest-bearing loans of approximately BEM;L13,275,0008 T st EE
HK$1,260,571,000 and gold loans of approximately ;#91,260,571,0008 T RhEatE
HK$693,651,000. All such loans were provided by N #9693,651,000% 7T ° FT A A
the Group’s fellow subsidiaries, which are controlled EXHHEAEER EHR) BRAR
by Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (“Luk (TR1B)) EFINAERRZR M S
Fook”). NGIE
In view of these circumstances, the Board has given R EMBER EESETEAER
careful consideration to the liquidity requirements for EERTEEHUBERFTEKL
the Group'’s operations, the Group’s performance, B EEETRERAEBRSEMN
and available sources of financing in assessing ENRBES - AEENKRRER
whether the Group has sufficient financial resources ARANMERRE - RS _AF
to continue as a going concern. As at 31 March —B=1+—H &BFEBHRBAT
2025, certain subsidiaries of Luk Fook (the “Fellow (A&MBAR) EEZBREE
Subsidiaries”) have provided financing to the Group TS EERERETERD AL
through interest-free loans, interest-bearing loans 113,275,000/ 7t~ 1,260,571,000
and gold loans of approximately HK$113,275,000, 78 7T 5693,651,00078 7oA 2~ 5 &
HK$1,260,571,000 and HK$693,651,000 respectively. RUMB -FRWEB AT ERDH
Fellow Subsidiaries have confirmed their intention to BERERERZFET USHKE
not demand for repayment of these loans to enable BESEMNZELR e M B mREN
the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due and ERst -+ _EANEITHRE
carry on its business without a significant curtailment BN AEEEE  MBANBERS
of operations in the twelve months from the approval BoEHEAEBEBSRBIERUE
of these consolidated financial statement and until TIRFERE A IE o LI NERBE
the Group has sufficient resource in self-sustaining BREEBESABA IR
its operations. Also, the Group has sufficient working ME UENHEHAHEEER.
capital and unutilised banking facilities for its liquidity It EEERFELSREERER
needs. Consequently, the directors have prepared the SEFEEEo
consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
New and amended standards adopted by

(d)

the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments to
existing standards and interpretation that are effective
for the first time for the financial period beginning 1

July 2024:

HKAS 1
(Amendments)

HKAS 1
(Amendments)

HKFRS 16
(Amendments)

Hong Kong
Interpretation 5
(Revised)

HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants

|ease Liabilities in a Sale
and Leaseback

Presentation of
Financial Statements
— Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause

Supplier Finance Arrangements

The adoption of amendments to existing standards
and interpretation did not have any material impact
on the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

2 RREEGB

(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(e) New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretation not yet
adopted by the Group
Certain new standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretation have been issued but are
not yet effective for the financial period beginning 1
July 2024 and have not been early adopted:

HKAS 21 and HKFRS 1

(Amendments)

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

(Amendments)

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

(Amendments)

HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7,

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10

and HKAS 7

HKFRS 18

HKFRS 19

HK-Interpretation 5
(Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Lack of Exchangeability

Classification and Measurement
of Financial Instruments @

Contracts Referencing Nature —
Dependent Electricity @

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards —
Volume 11 @

Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements ©

Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures ©

Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand
Clause ©

Sale or Contribution of Assets

(Amendments) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture ©
(1) Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2025
) Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2026
(©)] Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2027

4) To be announced by HKICPA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2 BAS
(e)

(M

IS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretation not yet
adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 18 will replace HKAS 1 Presentation of
financial statements, introducing new requirements
that will help to achieve comparability of the financial
performance of similar entities and provide more
relevant information and transparency to users. Even
though HKFRS 18 will not impact the recognition
or measurement of items in the consolidated
financial statements, its impacts on presentation and
disclosure are expected to be pervasive, in particular
those related to the consolidated income statement
and providing management-defined performance
measures within the consolidated financial statements.
Management is currently assessing the detailed
implications of applying the new standard on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The Group expects to apply the new standard
from its mandatory effective date of 1 April 2027.
Retrospective application is required, and so the
comparative information for the financial year ending
31 March 2026 will be restated in accordance with
HKFRS 18. Management is currently assessing the
detailed implications of applying the new standard on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Group will adopt the above new
standards, amendments and improvements to existing
standards and intrepretation when they become
effective. Except for the above disclosed impact, the
directors of the Group are in the process of assessing
the financial impact of the adoption of the above
new standards, amendments to existing standards
and intrepretation, none of which is expected
to have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

Change of accounting estimate

In previous years, intangible asset was considered
by the directors of the Company as having indefinite
useful life. The intangible asset was not amortised.
Since the completion of the acquisition by Luk Fook in
February 2024, intangible asset has been amortised
over the estimated useful life of 16.5 years.

This change in the useful life of intangible asset
has increased the amortisation charge for the
period ended 31 March 2025 of approximately
HK$7,639,000 (year ended 30 June 2024:
HK$5,090,000) (Note 17).

The board of directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the financial impact on the change of
accounting estimate is not material to the Group as a
whole.

2 B rmwomen.

(f)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e TSR M 5T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MERAKRER
(@) Financial risk factors (@) MHBABEE

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risks, commodity price risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The board provides
principles for overall risk management.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC” or “Mainland”)
with most of the transactions settled in Renminbi
(“RMB”). The Group also has retail and
wholesale operations in Hong Kong. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency. The Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to HK$ and
RMB. The majority of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary items are loans
from the fellow subsidiaries denominated in
HK$, which are held by group companies whose
functional currency is not HK$.

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk
by performing regular reviews of the Group’s net
foreign exchange exposures.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and
transactions arising from its operations primarily
do not expose the Group to material foreign
exchange risk. The Group’s assets and liabilities
are primarily denominated in the respective
group companies’ functional currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2025, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against HK$, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax loss for
the period would have been approximately
HK$5,876,000 (post-tax loss for the year
ended 30 June 2024: HK$69,265,000) lower/
higher respectively, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of HK$
denominated monetary items in entities whose
functional currency is not HKS.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
interest-bearing asset. The Group’s interest
rate risk arises from gold loans from a fellow
subsidiary, loans from fellow subsidiaries and
bank borrowings. Gold loans from a fellow
subsidiary and bank borrowings at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest-rate
risk. Loans from fellow subsidiaries at variable
interest rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. The Group does not enter into
derivatives to address these risks.

As at 31 March 2025 if interest rates on
loans from fellow subsidiaries had increased/
decreased by 50 basis points with all other
variables held constant, the impact on post-
tax loss for the period would have been
approximately HK$6,098,000 (for the year
ended 30 June 2024: HK$4,084,000) higher/
lower respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

114 3DG Holdings (International) Limited £ T & & (E[%) BRATE

Commodity price risk

The Group mainly engaged in the sales of gold
jewellery. The gold markets are influenced by
global as well as regional supply and demand
conditions. A significant change in the prices of
gold could adversely affect the Group’s financial
performance.

In order to reduce the commodity price risk,
the Group closely monitor the commodity price
and may consider to use gold loans as well as
financial derivatives instruments, such as gold
bullion contracts through margin account and
bullion forward contracts to reduce its exposure
to fluctuations in the gold price on gold inventory
when needed.

The gold loans from a fellow subsidiary (Note
29 (b)) are settled at maturity which usually
mature in 1 to 3 months (year ended 30 June
2024: same) from date of inception and the fair
value changes are immediately recognised in
the consolidated income statement. As at 31
March 2025, gold loans from a fellow subsidiary
of approximately HK$693,651,000 (30 June
2024: HK$498,087,000) represents gold loans
involved cash settlement.

As at 31 March 2025, if the market price of
gold had increased/decreased by 5%, post-
tax loss for the period ended 31 March 2025,
due to changes in fair values of gold loans
from a fellow subsidiary, would have been
approximately HK$34,392,000 (for the year
ended 30 June 2024: HK$24,904,000) higher/
lower respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMERMEIE @&

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) HABAKEE (&)
(iv) Credit risk (ivy S8EKE

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in a financial loss to the Group.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables
and deposits and other receivables. Credit risk
is managed on a group basis. Management has
policies in place to monitor the exposures to
these credit risks on an on-going basis.

Risk management

Bank balance is deposited with financial
institutions with sound credit ratings and the
Group has exposure limit to any single financial
institution. Transactions involving financial
assets are also executed with counterparties of
sound credit standing. Given their high credit
ratings, management does not expect any of
these financial institutions will fail to meet their
obligations.

Management has performed recoverability
reviews on trade and other receivables regularly
and actively followed up the overdue balance
of trade and other receivables in order to
minimise the exposure to credit risk. In relation
to trade receivables related to retail sales,
retail customers normally settle in cash or
credit cards issued by major banks with low
credit risk, mitigating credit risk. The Group’s
concessionaire sales through department
stores and online sales platforms are generally
collectible within 30 days from the invoice date
while credit sales are generally on credit terms
within 60 days. Normally the Group does not
require collaterals from trade debtors. The
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of
its customers, taking into account their financial
position, history of default and other factors. The
utilisation of credit limits is regularly reviewed.
No material credit limits were exceeded during
the reporting period, and management does
not expect any material losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMERMMEIE @&

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued) (@) MBEREE (@&
(iv) Credit risk (Continued) (ivy S8R @)

116

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk
in view of its large number of customers. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset
in the consolidated balance sheet. The Group
does not provide any other guarantee which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Expected credit losses are unbiased probability-
weighted estimates of credit losses which are
determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes and taking into account past events,
current and future conditions, on the ability of
the Group’s customers and creditors to repay
the debts.

The Group has derived the expected loss rate
by referencing to historical payment profiles,
credit rating analysis and external default data to
determine the probability of default of its financial
assets and incorporated forward looking
information, including significant changes
in macroeconomic factors which involved
significant estimates and judgements.

The Group has the following types of financial
assets that are subject to the expected credit
loss model:

o Cash and cash equivalents;

° Trade receivables; and

° Deposits and other receivables.

All bank balances are held at reputable financial
institutions with sound credit ratings. There
is no significant concentration risk to a single
counterparty and there is no history of defaults
from these counterparties. The expected credit
losses are close to zero as at 31 March 2025
and 30 June 2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

U)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss provision for trade receivables. The
expected credit loss provision rates for
trade receivables are based on historical
payment profiles and historical credit
loss experience, adjusted to reflect,
where relevant and appropriate, current
and information specific to the debtors,
future economic and market conditions
and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the debtors to settle the receivables that
the Group considers are reasonable and
appropriate.

Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis

Expected credit losses are estimated
by categorising the trade receivables
based on the nature of customer
accounts sharing the similar credit risk
characteristics. These include receivables
from electronic payment service providers,
department stores in Mainland, online
sales platforms in Mainland and individual
licensees. Trade receivables have been
further grouped based on the days past
due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BFEISEIR (&
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued) (@) MBEREE (@&
(iv) Credit risk (Continued) (ivy EEEKE @
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) BHEEHE (&)
()  Trade receivables (Continued) () BEZEKERE @
Measurement of expected credit loss on BRI R E EFAR

collective basis (Continued)

The following table presents gross carrying
amount of the trade receivables and the
loss allowance provision analysed by

EEEE (B)

TREIRIZIZEZH
F=ZRA=Z+—HBKZ
E_WMEASB=+H

ageing band as at 31 March 2025 and 30 BB 5 1 N BR TE AV BR
June 2024: H 4B (B & % IR i 20 (&
DRI IEEE
Over
1-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 90 days
Current past due past due past due past due Total
gtk 13 bl f] B bl f] B
As at 31 March 2025 =A=+-H BN 1-30% 31-60% 61-90K  90XRMLE Eohy

Gross carrying amount IREMAME (THT)
(HK$'000) 52,152 7,389 4,752 691 4,032 69,016
Lifetime expected creditloss 2 HiTBHIE ER51E

allowance (HK$'000) B (FEm) - 1) (15) @ (462) (500)
Over
1-30days  31-60days  61-90 days 90 days
Current past due past due past due past due Total
RZIZZME bkt bkt B bkt
As at 30 June 2024 ~A=1+H ke 1-30K% 31-60% 61-90% QXML izt
Gross carrying amount IREAME (FHET)
(HK$'000) 35,002 1,696 2,333 1,621 265 40,917
Lifetime expected creditloss 2 HABMEEHERE
alowance (HK$'000) (F#&7) - (5) (7) (5) (35) (52)
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As at 31 March 2025, the expected credit
loss rate is 0.30% (30 June 2024: 0.31%)
for trade receivables aged 1 to 90 days
past due, and 11.5% (30 June 2024:
13.2%) for those aged over 90 days past
due, respectively. Expected credit loss
is close to zero for the trade receivables
aged current as there is limited recent
history of default.

Trade receivables are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery
includes, amongst other, the failure of a
debtor to engage in a repayment plan
within the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on

U)

(i)

collective basis (Continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating loss. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited

against the same line item.

The movement of loss allowance for trade
receivables as at 31 March 2025 and 30

June 2024 is as follows:

MEERERE (8
(a) FABERER (@
(v) fSEER ()
EHEEE ()

U)

B 5 BURE (8

BA IR E B
EEEE (&)

8 5 B AR IB R R B
BRI R/KEERE
WBYREE IR SR H
& UL 21 BY A 8 =
R PNGEIEREISE

B EWRENEIR
BER_S_RE=
B=Zz+—BkRZZ
“HWmEANB=Z+THBY
EEIT -

Period ended Year ended
31 March 30 June
2025 2024
BE_S_-IF JE_T_MNF
=B=+—H ~NA=1H
LEHARY IEFE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
THET FAET
Opening loss allowance K83 F %) 2 H3, 4]
as at the beginning of I8
period/year 52 54
Provision for impairment i {&E &5 18 B 1
losses 451 =
Exchange difference ERE (3) @
Closing loss allowance R/ FRZHE /TR
as at the end of period/ ~ E51B#: &
year 500 52
A provision for impairment losses on trade B 5 EWRENRE

receivables amounted to approximately
HK$451,000 (for the year ended 30
June 2024: Nil) was included in the
consolidated income statement for the
period ended 31 March 2025.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost,
including deposits and other receivables,
are subject to the expected credit loss

model.

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMERMMEIE @&
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued) (@) MBEREE (@&
(iv) Credit risk (Continued) (ivy S8R @)

120

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEEE (B

(i)  Other financial assets at amortised cost (iy FHEIERAFTENHE
(Continued) HEmMEE (@
Deposits were mainly rental deposits and ReTEANERS
utilities and management fee deposits. MrBEEREEE
These deposits are mainly placed B -ZERETER
with various landlords and property EREBRAMHPE
management companies in Hong Kong EFRYEEIRNE
and Mainland, which are due to refund W ERHEERZEE R
upon the expiry of the tenancy agreements RRZHEEMERR

and handover of the leased premises.
As at 31 March 2025, management
considered that the risk of default for such
deposits has not increased significantly
since initial recognition. Therefore, the
impairment provision, which is determined

B-R_ERE=H
=—t+—0 EEEDRS
ZERENENRR
BYiaHER B REE
E18 00 - A LR R 121E
BIEHREEREmTE

based on the 12-month expected credit ZREEGETLAE
loss, is assessed to be close to zero (30 FE (CEZMERA
June 2024: same). =+8:8R) -
(v) Liquidity risk (v) wENEERMRE
Prudent liquidity risk management implies BEZATETRAREIEIS
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents TR ERERREEE

and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

Yo URBEBRMEZE RS
EERMBELUEFIHSASE

The Group’s primary cash requirements AEBRBZERBEHERS
have been for additions of and upgrades on RERREAVE BERX

property, plant and equipment, payment on
debts, purchases and operating expenses. The
Group finances its working capital requirements
through a combination of internal resources,
funding from fellow subsidiaries and bank
borrowings, as necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure it
maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and has available funding through adequate
amount of committed credit facilities to meet its
working capital requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

v

MBREEIE (&
(a) MFEMERER (&)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (v) wEBHEERE @
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TEREAEESHEERE
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings REEABRBHEEE0
based on the remaining period at the balance BB THEETDN
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. DERMBIAAMARN TN
The amounts disclosed in the table are the WEZHRBLIREBEANSE
contractual undiscounted cash flows, including AERERTMZzEREBH
interest payments computed using contractual AEZEHNRMRRERE
rates, based on the earliest date on which the (BHERBASHORXRAEN
Group can be required to pay. FERR) ©
Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows FEFH T — KRB IE =
HE
More than More than Total
1 year 2years undiscounted
Repayable Within  but less than  but less than cash
on demand 1 year 2 years 5 years outflows
Fichiche:d HARE KRR
BREREE —FR  ELREE  ELREE KRS8
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FER FER FERT FERT
As at 31 March 2025 KZEZEE=A=+—-A
Trade payables and other payables B 7 E{TERIE R Efth
FEFTERIE - 51,231 - - 51,231
Franchisee guarantee deposits BHEREBERES - 24,098 - - 24,098
Lease liabilities with interest payables MiEERFISMNEEEE - 46,085 35,766 10,931 92,782
Gold loans from a fellow subsidiary —EIEZMBASTZ
BEER 693,651 - - - 693,651
Bank borrowings RITER 21,807 - - - 21,807
Loan from fellow subsidiaries BZMBARZER 1,273,846 - 100,000 - 1,373,846
1,989,304 121,414 135,766 10,931 2,257,415
More than More than
1 year 2 years Total
Repayable Within - but lessthan  but less than  undiscounted
on demand 1 year 2 years 5years  cash outflows
BB BBmME  KERES
BRERER —&FR  EORRE BOREE RHEEE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT FAET FET TER
As at 30 June 2024 R-E-mEAB=+H
Trade payables and other payables & 5 FE(TERIE R
EMRE(TIRE - 79,820 - - 79,820
Franchisee guarantee deposits B CEBEREE = 27,341 = = 27,341
Lease liabilities with interest payables FiEEIF BHESEE - 27,650 23,130 15,524 66,304
Gold loans from a fellow subsidiary —fEEAMBATZ
=2EA 498,087 - - - 498,087
Loans from fellow subsidiaries BRIBARZER 812,591 - 100,000 - 912,591
1,310,678 134,811 123,130 15,524 1,584,143

As at 31 March 2025, there was no corporate
financial guarantee issued by the Group to any
independent third parties (30 June 2024: same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e TSR M 5T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMERBEIE (&

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a)
(v) Liquidity risk (Continued)
Maturity Analysis — Bank borrowings, loans from
fellow subsidiaries and gold loans from a fellow
subsidiary subject to repayment on demand
clauses based on scheduled repayments
including interest payables.

MEBERER (&)

(v) FEEXRER (@
B B 747 — IR IZ R EE A
5t BRI BERIEE NI IR
ZIRITEM EZR KB AR A
ZEM K —ERRNE AR
BHzELEH (BIEEMF

8) o
More than More than
1 year 2 years Total
Within but less than but less than  undiscounted
1 year 2 years 5years  cash outflows
B BERE KRR E
—ER BOREE EDREE MBS
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART TER TER TAERT
As at 31 March 2025 RZE-REF=R=+-H
Bank borrowings RITER 21,807 - - 21,807
Gold loans from a fellow —ERZIEAR
subsidlary and interest payables 7 EEEFRERF S 703,900 - - 703,900
Loans from fellow subsidiaries and A& MBAZ 2 &
interest payables (Notes 29(a)) REMF S (1329() 1,309,372 - - 1,309,372
2,035,079 - - 2,035,079
As at 30 June 2024 KZE-MEXA=1+AH
Gold loans from a fellow —HERNBA
subsidiary and interest payables 7 EEERREMFIE 498,294 = = 498,294
Loans from fellow subsidiaries BB ARZER
and interest payables (Notes 29(@) K PE(S# 2 (fi5E29(a)) 815,869 - - 815,869
1,314,163 - - 1,314,163
(b) Fair value estimation (b) AREMGE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables
and deposits and other receivables and the Group’s
financial liabilities, including trade and other payables,
loans from fellow subsidiaries and bank borrowings
approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active
markets are based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
traded in active markets are estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.—\—./\ + R

SRR EE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMERMEIE @&
(b) Fair value estimation (Continued) (b) AnEMGE @&

The table below analyses financial instruments carried
at fair values, by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial
liabilities that are measured at fair values as at 31

TERAKBHEEZEHRRAET
RNEMITANDH -ERENF
EARAIT

o FEEEREETEEMS
FHRE (RKLFHE) (B
4R)

s KRB —ARFTEEMREN
EESNBENTER BE
%) S (B ERIFH) B
KRFBAE BTHR) -

o  WIFRBEUBRERTHBEE
ENEESGEHAE (B
TRHBERBAB FE=H -

TREJNAEER _ZFE_HF=
A=+—BrRZZE-WNEXA

March 2025 and 30 June 2024. St+EBRAAEFENSREE
REfaEe
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—1 B B st
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FERT FER FTERT
As at 31 March 2025 gt -3
=RA=+-H
Liabilities =L
Gold loans from a fellow subsidiary KB —RER R B AR
ZHESEM - 693,651 - 693,651
As at 30 June 2024 RZE-MEKA=+H
Liabilities =L
Gold loans from a fellow subsidiary 3¢ E BRZNBAR
ZETEM - 498,087 = 498,087

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and
transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

There were no transfer between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the period/year ended 31 March 2025 and 30
June 2024.

There were no significant changes in valuation
techniques during the period/year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HISEMEIE (48)
(b) Fair value estimation (Continued) (b) AnEMGE @&
Financial instruments in level 2 B_HRAZERMTIAE

124  3DG Holdings (International) Limited £ T & &£ (E[%) BRAE

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

° Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

° The fair value of foreign exchange forward
contracts is determined using forward exchange
rates at the balance sheet date, with the
resulting value discounted back to present
value.

° Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial instruments in level 2 (Continued)

The fair value of gold loans is determined using
discounted cash flow valuation technique with
reference to quoted market bid price of gold traded in

MR EIRE (&)

(b)

[nfEfbst (&)
FHAZEMIR (B)
BETEMNAAENERKRR
TREBMLERMEE  LBEE
BREmEEEsZREIHIEE

active liquid markets as a key input. ARBEATERAZIKR-
Capital risk management (c) BXRAMBEE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AEEBEER E’\] B A RELR
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going SEFEEENSE EMmAKRE
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders IR %ET@FU i AR R 2 T i
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an Mam AR RFEENEARRBEU
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. BARE AL A
The Group manages the capital structure and makes REEEEEARZR I [FELE
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic RIFENEEFHAE - B RIFHHA
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital BEREE AERATRAREGTTF
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend BRI B~ BT N E ST
payments to shareholders, issue of new shares or RITEM
obtain new bank borrowings.
The Group also monitors capital on the basis of KEBTUBEEELXERE
gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is calculated as net EX - BEEELEXZLUFEERK
debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated DB R HE R BB E R4
as total borrowings (including bank borrowings, gold B (BERTER—HEE %Mﬂ%
loans from a fellow subsidiary and loans from fellow RNElzEZTERKBREIB AT
subsidiaries) less cash and cash equivalents. Total Iéf?’}i) BRERIAEEBY qu%
capital is calculated as “cash”, as shown in the CHEEARTL TR (WixE
consolidated balance sheet, plus net debt. ﬁ@%fiﬁﬁﬁ‘r) R EEAER
ﬁ o
The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure KEBR _SE_AF=RA=+—
as at 31 March 2025 and 30 June 2024: Br_ZE_NFAA=1+HZE
RIEDTUWT
As of As of
31 March 30 June
#E=B=+—H #HEA~B=T1H
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ERT FAT
Bank borrowings RITEM 21,807 =
Gold loans from a fellow subsidiary —REEzRBAEZ
(Note 29(b)) =2 EW (HIEE29(0)) 693,651 498,087
Loans from fellow subsidiaries A% Bﬁ%’ NEIP4=EN
(Note 29(a)) (FFEE29(a)) 1,373,846 912,591
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERREEEY
(Note 21) (Fizx21) (53,340) (31,918)
Net debt FEH 2,035,964 1,378,760
Total deficit it iesE (787,498) (573,535)
Total capital BER 1,248,466 805,225
Gearing ratio BEBELE 163.08% 171.23%

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid capital
base to support the operations and development of its
business in the long term.

AEBERBEBERIR

ERNERER

UnHEBMEBRERRERRBXF-
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the
consolidated financial statements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are set out below.

(a)

(b)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
[t could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date

Useful lives and depreciation and
amortisation of property, plant and
equipment and intangible asset

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, related depreciation or amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment and
intangible asset. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible asset
of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation or amortisation charges
where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives. It will write off or write down technically obsolete
or nonstrategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable or amortisable lives and therefore
depreciation and amortisation expense in future
periods.

4

BRSR & 5Hh 51 B FI Ef

RGN HREFAARAZ AR
H > HIRBEERKREMAR (B
REARBERERKREMHEFLZEER
5t TEIEHSHE - PRIS S SHEBIRETE
F EVEHEBRBRERBEST -TX
SMAEANERER T -—MRFEEE
RhEBRZREERIFHERBEZ G5
R AR ©

(a) FEALRFE
FEVERFERBEETTN
st EEMBRMG ST T A K
ERXEBREER - ILFESHRE
REMIREERAHERMUEE
EmBYBEARMEL > 3 7] KB
EEUNEBEARFHTFRER
ERITEBERFENITEMAE R
RER - BEENRSEEHERT
Al E 5t

(b) TE- -BERRBUARELE
ER R F U R E R

FEEEEBEEEME -BEK
REBEURBETLEENTAMDER
FH BRATERBIEER &b
BHhERKAEABRUMEERIE
ME -BERRBURETLEE
B EIE A EHRBELE
BIERFHR DR Z A fE SRV R »
EEEREINTEBEER -
T2 1R 1B SO MUR S ¥R B S
AR AT B R S IR RS I B E - BIR
OB EHARIBEA B I E St I E A
FH - EHRSPIRESERAINE
o A) i E S ER S AR B BEURIK
BT ERBIEERE LS.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Impairment of non-financial assets
Management judgement is required in the area of
asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether
an event has occurred that may indicate that the
related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of asset can be supported
by its recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and
(iiiy the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and as
a result affect the Group’s reported financial condition
and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to the
consolidated income statement.

During the period ended 31 March 2025, after
reviewing the business environment as well as the
Group’s strategies and past performance of its
cash generating units, management concluded
that there was provision of impairment of property,
plant and equipment of HK$5,590,000 (for the year
ended 30 June 2024: Nil) and right-of-use assets of
HK$4,889,000 (for the year ended 30 June 2024:
Nil). Also, no impairment has been recognised
for intangible asset during the period ended 31
March 2025 (for the year ended 30 June 2024: Nil).
Management believes that any reasonably possible
changes in the assumptions used in the impairment
reviews would not affect management’s view on
impairment at 31 March 2025 (30 June 2024: Same).

RRSR & sHb 5t R #IER (48)

(c)

FERMEBEENRE
BEEENEREREEREIE
LEBFE ()RS EHRBERE

& EE P e E AR EBIRYEH ; (i)
HpJug[cl#zaE (BIA R ER EE R
RENHMBA KRG EBETEERH
FREBEEMSBRNRKEERE
REPEMENERSE) JEXF
BEREE; k(iR RETEA
FRIRAMNEEMRRR SFEILEFIR
EMEEARSTLUEEFIZEARIR
EIEEPTYGER R LR ERI R R
(BREFARINBREARAR
BRI REXRRR) 5528 75
SR ERRIFTAREFETE R
EARE WMETELEEME2RK
B TSR I S B B o W TS &
HERERAARREEREFILR
BANHES) QIR A BELASE
mARPREER

HE_Z_AF=A=+—HI
R CERBAHREFRRIERAR
%@zﬁmﬁux’zﬁiﬁﬁfxiﬁﬁ
BARR BEBELEER Y
% BMERKEREREEEED
R ET IR E 555,590,000 7T
(BE_Z_-_MOEAB=+HIE
FFE ) %4,889,00058 T (B =
ZEINFEARB=THILEEFE
) ot BE_E_RAFE=H
=+—HILEAE B S EREE
TREEHES_WEAB =1
HILERE : &) -BEEEE #E
WEPMERZBRZEMEGIER
ﬁﬁﬁ@jﬁqT@%%EﬁE%K:

“HE=A=1+—HREZER
(_V_EE/\)% +E| *EH)"
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

(d)

(e)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 to
determine when trade and other receivables are
impaired. This determination requires significant
judgement and estimation based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. In
making this judgement and estimation, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration of
receivables and the financial health and collection
history of individual debtors and expected future
change of credit risks, including the consideration of
factors such as general economy measure, changes
in macroeconomic indicators etc. Details of the
assumptions and inputs used are discussed in Note
3(a)(iv).

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and Mainland and other jurisdictions. Judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions
and calculations during the ordinary course of
business for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such as differences will impact the income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectations are difference from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and income tax charges in the
period in which such estimates have been changed.

RRSR & sttt R FUEh (48

(d)

(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors and senior management
collectively are identified as the chief operating decision-
makers (“CODM”). The CODM reviews the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. The operating segments are reported
in accordance with the internal reporting reviewed by the
CODM.

The CODM considers the business by nature of business
activities and assesses the performance of the following
operating segments:

i. Retailing — Hong Kong and Macau
i Retailing — Mainland

ii. ~ Wholesaling — Hong Kong

iv. ~ Wholesaling — Mainland

V. Licensing

CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on segment results. Finance income and
costs, corporate income and expenses and income tax
expenses and credit are not included in the results for each
operating segment that is reviewed by the CODM. Other
information provided to the CODM is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

Assets of reportable segments exclude intangible asset,
cash and cash equivalents, deferred income tax assets and
corporate assets, all of which are managed on a central
basis. Liabilities of reportable segments exclude deferred
income tax liabilities, current income tax liabilities, bank
borrowings, gold loans from a fellow subsidiary, loans
from fellow subsidiaries, and corporate liabilities, all of
which are managed on a central basis. These form part
of the reconciliation to total assets and liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheet.

Sales to external customers are stated after elimination
of inter-segment sales. Sales between segments are
carried out at mutually agreed terms. The revenue from
external parties, assets and liabilities, reported to the
CODM is measured in 2 manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated balance
sheet.

SEPEH
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BEERRE (RREERRE) - &
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5

SEPERE ()

Period ended 31 March 2025
BECECRESA=+-ALEH

Retailing - Inter- Reportable
Hong Kong Retailing -  Wholesaling-  Wholesaling - segment segments
and Macau Mainland Hong Kong Mainland Licensing elimination total
TE-EE pEL:
REM FE-Mh MB-FE O ME-RK mIEER  HUEHE o b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TERT TR TER TR
Revenue- at a point of time WA - ERE
Sales to exteral customers WIMERHE 141,932 502,427 2,662 35,405 - - 682,426
Inter-segment sales DEEHE 8,442 243,303 - 41,892 - (293,637) -
Sales of merchandise WeEs 150,374 745,730 2,662 77,297 - (293637) 682,426
Revenue- over time WA -1 —ExF5ES
Royalty and senvice income RIERERBERA - - - - 24,409 - 24,409
Consultancy fee income BRERA - - - - 4,706 - 4,706
Total st 150,374 745,730 2,662 71,297 29,115 (293,637) 711,541
Results of reportable segments ~ T2RABLE (46,173) (85,387) 87 (4,196) 9,799 - (125,870)
A reconclliation of results of reportable 3] 2 PR EEHREE
segments to loss for the periodis ~ HERWIT -
as follows:
Results of reportable segments T 2RAPEH (125,870)
Unallocated income AREBA 3913
Unallocated expenses FOERZ (42,153)
Operating loss mERER (164,110)
Finance income BB 80
Finance costs HHER (32,754)
Loss before income tax IRERiGHR RIS (196,784)
Income tax expenses Frigtis (2,902)
Loss for the period HRER (199,686)
Add: Loss attributable to I JEER R LA
non-controlling interests 104,822
Loss attributable to equity holders A ARER1EE AE(LEE
of the Company (94,864)

130 3DG Holdings (International) Limited £ TS £ E (E[X) HSRAF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5

Peri

SEPEE (B)

iod ended 31 March 2025

BECR-REF-AC+-HLER

Retailing -
Hong Kong Retailing - Wholesaling -  Wholesaling -
and Macau Mainland HongKong Mainland Licensing  Unallocated Total
TE-FR
REF TE-AM HE-FE HE-A TIEER RAE Eo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TER TR
Net unrealised losses on gold loans & & EFASREEFE 32,811 133,362 - 3,795 - - 169,968
Staff costs STMA 21515 49,028 = 3,763 13,636 16,632 104,574
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ ¥1% - BERREHE
equipment 2,026 8,623 - 21 107 809 11,586
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {EREZEERE 15,183 7,343 - - - 6,088 29,514
Amortisation of intangiole asset EEESY - - - - - 7,639 7,639
Provision for impairment losseson ¥ R RRERESE
property, plant and equipment B 682 4,908 - - - - 5,590
Provision for impairment losses on ~ EREEE R BSREEE
right-of-use assets 3477 1,412 - - - - 4,889
Provision for impairment losses o~ SREEEREHEERE
financial assets - 451 - - - - 451
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,  HEME BRRREZ
plants and equipment BB/ 3 19 (1) - - - (210) (192)
Written off of property, plant and WHENE BERRE
equipment 2,948 80 - - - - 3,028
Finance cost HBER - - - - - 32,754 32,754
Additions of property, plant and nE BERRERE
equipment 3,342 26,348 - 10 - 945 30,645
Addtions of right-of-use assets REEEERE 26,406 17,120 - - - 25,325 68,851
As at 31 March 2025
RZEZ1F=A=+-H
Retailing -
Hong Kong Retailing - Wholesaling - Wholesaling -
and Macau Mainland Hong Kong Mainland Licensing  Unallocated Total
TE-FR
R SE-mh MBE-FE ME-Ri LS RAR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TERT TR TR TR
Segment assets AHEE 318,449 920,008 - 82,632 2,414 1,323,503
Intangible asset B EE 155,337 155,337
Deferred income tax assets ELFERHEE 22,923 22,923
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRESEY 53,340 53,340
Other unallocated assets HEthRPREE 14,496 14,496
Total assets aEE 1,569,599
Segment liablties HPaE 63,103 124,406 = 17,033 11,883 216,425
Deferred income tax liabilies ELFRRAR 38,836 38,836
Current income tax liabities HEFERaE 499 499
Bank borrowings FIER 21,807 21,807
Gold loans from a fellow subsidiary ~ —BEZKBAZZ
EEEM 693,651 693,651
Loans from fellow subsidiaries F&MEAZZER 1,373,846 1,373,846
Other unallocated liabilties HhRAEAR 12,033 12,033
Total liabilties agf 2,357,007
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SHEHG@
Year ended 30 June 2024
HEZS-MEANB=tHIEEE
Retaling - Inter- Reportable
Hong Kong Retailing - Wholesaling - segment segments
and Macau Mainland Mainland Licensing elimination total
SE-FF B
RIRM TE-RH HE-—pylth e DR AEAEET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEr TER TEn TAr TAnr
Revenue- at a point of time WA - R
Sales to external customers HHBRHE 114,602 417,607 32,894 - - 565,103
Inter-segment sales NEEHE 9,516 140,709 21,171 = (171,39) =
124,118 558,316 54,065 - (171,396) 565,103
Revenue- over time WA -R—ER R
Royalty and service income DERREERA - - - 21,793 - 21,793
Consultancy fee income BREERA - - - 17,621 - 17,621
Total it 124,118 558,316 54,065 39,414 (171,396) 604,517
Results of reportable segments ARRAER (24,186) (44,083) (5,119) 14,357 = (59,031)
A reconciliation of results of AERNPEERFNEE
reportable segments to less HIRWOT -
for the year is as follows:
Results of reportable segments A2HAES (69,031)
Unallocated income L ON 1,344
Unallocated expenses Elisd (73,338)
Operating loss mEEE (131,025)
Change in fair value of derivatives ARRESRARTETIRZ
embedded in convertible bonds ATEES 413
Finance income RN 3,006
Finance costs HHRER (88,077)
Loss before income tax from RERRGEERZ
continuing operations IRERRIR AR (215,683)
Income tax credit FBES 4,230
Loss for the year from REFECEERZERNGH
continuing operations (211,453
Add: Profit from discontinued operation il : A& FEEE55ER 2,707
Loss for the year EREE (208,746)
Add: Loss attributable to Non-controling 1l : JE¥ERR B & FE(G 512
interest 73,430
Loss attributable to equity holds ZRFRERE AEGSE

of the company (135,316)
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Year ended 30 June 2024
HE_Z_MERA=THLEE
Retaiing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and Retailing - Wholesaling -
overseas Mainland Mainland Licensing Unallocated Total
ZE-FH
R REI TE-Al HE-A RIEEL ok as
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TER TR FET
Net unrealised losses on gold loans HEEFALREREEE 13,666 39,472 990 = = 54,128
Staff costs ETHA 18,728 50,792 4,820 1,083 52,411 127,784
Depreciation of property, NE BERRENE
plant and equipment 1,110 6,693 162 275 946 9,186
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREERE 9,620 4141 - - 9,039 22,800
Amortisation of intangible asset BV EEBH - - - - 5,090 5,090
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BERZEZEE
plant and equipment - 80 - - - 80
Written off of property, WHENE BERRE
plant and equipment 14 33 - - 38 85
Finance cost BERL 2,175 - - - 85,902 8g,077
Additions of other non-current assets HtERBEERE 12,066 13,338 - - 811 26,215
Additions of right-of-use assets BREEERE 56,296 10,327 - - 361 66,984
As at 30 June 2024
RZEZMERB=+H
Retaiing -
Hong Kong Retailing - Wholesaling -
and Macau Mainland Mainland Licensing Unallocated Total
TE-FH 2E- HE-
iR it st RIBERE KB st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR FAL
Segment assets NHEE 291,321 528,148 69,223 1,012 889,704
Intangible assets BVEE 162,976 162,976
Deferred income tax assets EEFMRREE 25,906 25,906
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESEY 31918 31918
Other unallocated assets HEtRHEEE 3,530 3,530
Total assets BEE 1,114,034
Segment liabilties NBERE 67,207 109,286 16,323 17,492 210,328
Deferred income tax liabilties BLFEREE 40,746 40,746
Loans from fellow subsidiaries FZNBAEZER 912,591 912,591
Gold loans from a fellow subsidiary —HRZNBARIZEEER 498,087 498,087
Other unallocated fabiities Hikpka® 25817 25,817
Total liabilities aaf 1,687,569
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SEFEN (@)
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and cost of sales by BRGET M D2 AEBWA K
location in which the transactions took place is as follows: THERADTUWT :
Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
BE—ZT"HE HEIZOF
=RA=+—H ~B=+H
LEHARS LEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ERT FHET
Revenue WA
Hong Kong HE 138,633 117,843
Mainland At 561,696 474,213
Macau R 11,212 12,461
711,541 604,517
Cost of sales THE M
Hong Kong 5B 88,683 85,283
Mainland aspi 366,476 339,437
Macau 2P 7,770 9,520
462,929 434,240

134

During the period ended 31 March 2025, revenue
recognised of HK$5,385,000 was included in the contract
liabilities balance as at beginning of the year (year ended 30
June 2024: HK$5,837,000).

The Company is domiciled in the Bermuda while the Group
operates its business primarily in Hong Kong, Mainland and
Macau. For the period ended 31 March 2025, no revenue
was generated from the Bermuda and no assets were
located in the Bermuda (year ended 30 June 2024: Nil).

BE_E_HFFE=H=+—HIH/B"
B~ W A 5,385,000 7T B 5T A HA
MeHasEdn @BEZSTHEARAB
=+HIEEE : 5,837,000 7T) °

ERABURBRE MAEERFZTER
EE - RNMEBMKREXR - HE-T
“HEFE=A=+—HIHBE tERE
REEFWAO TEEEUNBRE &
_%E_EE/\H +HIEEE  #) o

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other than BEEMEMBE D 2 AEBIERHEE
deferred income tax assets, and certain deposits) by (FEERIEFMEREERE TES)
location of assets is as follows: K A E AR TB R A — KB = A=) 2 1
&) DU
As at 31 March 2025 As at 30 June 2024
RZBZi%=B=1+-H RIE-ZMERA=1H
Hong Kong Hong Kong

and Macau Mainland Total and Macau Mainland Total

EFEREM it @ EEREN kil st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000

FART FERT TR TR TR TR

Property, plant and equipment EN BT 10,225 31,358 41,583 12,353 19,226 31,579

Right-of-use assets FREEE 49,496 30,030 79,526 47173 10,195 57,368

Intangible asset ENEE - 155,337 155,337 - 162,976 162,976

59,721 216,725 276,446 50,526 192,307 251,923
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Accounting policy for revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, sales returns and discounts,
after eliminated sales within the Group.

(@)

Sales of goods — wholesale

The Group sells a range of gold jewellery and gem-
set of jewellery products in the wholesale market.
Sales are recognised when control of the products
has transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the licensees, the licensees have full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the products and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the acceptance of the products. Delivery does not
occur until the products have been delivered to the
specified location, the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to the licensees, and either the
licensees have accepted the products in accordance
with sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all
criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

A sales refund liability and an asset for the right of
return goods are recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet. The Group uses the expected value
method to estimate the credit refund or return which
best predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group entitled.

A contract liability is also recognised when the
licensees pay deposits before the Group transfers
control of the products to the licensees.

PEEFE @&

l‘&ﬁnﬁﬁwum n'l'lBl%
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e IR

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 S9EHEE G

136

Accounting policy for revenue recognition
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Sales of goods - retail

The Group operates a chain of retail stores selling a
variety of gold and platinum jewellery and gem-set
jewellery products. Revenue from the sales of goods
is recognised when the product is transferred to the
customer who takes delivery in store.

Payment of the transaction price is due immediately
when the customer purchases the gold and platinum
jewellery and gem-set jewellery products. It is the
Group's policy to sell its products to the end customer
with a right of return within one year at an agreed
discount on the original selling price. A sales refund
liability and an asset for the right of return goods are
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet. The
Group uses the expected value method to estimate
the sales refund or return which best predicts the
amount of reliable consideration to which the Group
entitled.

Royalty and services income

Royalty and services income in respect of the use of
the Group’s trademarks is recognised over time on
an accrual basis in accordance with the substance
of the relevant agreements. The refund of credit to
licensees when certain credit refund criteria is met
are considered as variable consideration. The Group
uses expected value method to estimate the credit
refund which best predicts the amount of variable
consideration to which the Group entitled.

Consultancy fee income

Consultancy fee income in respect of technical
support and consultancy services are recognised over
the period in which the services are rendered.

Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts
where the period between the transfer of the promised
goods or services to the customer and payment by
the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence,
the Group does not adjust any of the transaction
prices for the time value of money.

Wy &5 BEST RO SHECR (48)

(b)

(c)

(d)

()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

6 OTHER INCOME 6 HkA

Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
BE—_Z-RE HE_Z_HF
=B=+-—H ~B=+H

LEHARE EEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Government subsidies BT R B
- Value-added tax refund — B EIRIRN 92 923
~ Other government subsidies —E MBI AL 14 2
Interest income from rental deposit BeHBEMA 724 409
Gain on lease termination HE& W& 916 -
Rental income from sub-lease B—REEREEABSHEZ
to a fellow subsidiary (note 32) AW A (H5E32) 1,131 =
Others Htn 1,036 507
3,913 1,841
Accounting policies for other income recognition HUg A 2R & 5B SE
(a) Rental income (@) FHEBUWA
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis HEWARHIAR L B G ERED
over the lease period.
(b) Government grants (b) EXAFHEED
Grants from the government are recognised at their EESEMRERUEEEN BAE
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that & 38 <7 — ) B A R AR B > BT
the grant will be received and the Group will comply B E R B

with all attached conditions.
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e IR

7 OPERATING LOSS 7 RESE
The operating profit is stated after charging the following: KERF IR TYIBEE BRI -
Period ended Year ended

31 March 2025 30 June 2024
HE-S-RE #HE-Z-NE
=B=+—H ~B=+H

LEHARS EEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
Cost of sales (Note (i) THE A (MY5E()

— cost of inventories sold —BEFERAE 448,030 416,654
- cost of licensing business — I ERR A 14,899 17,586
462,929 434,240

Staff costs (including the directors’ BTHA (BEESHE)

emoluments) (Note (i) (B (i) 119,491 139,328
Expenses relating to short-term leases and ~ fEEATHE K o] & & T

variable lease payments HEREX 27,904 31,488
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #)3 « i = R & 1T &

(Note 15) (FzE15) 11,586 9,186
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (F:H16)

(Note 16) 29,514 22,800
Amortisation of intangible asset EREEBRY (f5317)

(Note 17) 7,639 5,090
Provision for impairment losses on property, 413 « B = K& R EEE

plant and equipment 5 (MysE15)

(Note 15) 5,500 -
Provision for impairment losses on EREEEREBERRA

fight-of-use assets (Note 16) (Ftzx16) 4,889 =
Provision for slow moving inventories T EESE (F319)

(Note 19) 1,274 1,306
Advertising and promotion expenses BEREGRY 29,317 21,824
Legal and professional fees FRREXER 3,672 4,753
Auditor’s remuneration ZEENE =

— Audit services —BIZRT 1,783 1,740

— Non-audit services —IEBRE 220 205
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR M EE

7 OPERATING LOSS (Continued) 7 REEE @)
Notes: G
) Save as disclosed below, staff costs of HK$14,917,000 (year ended 0 BIXRBEESN BEZZ_15=A8
30 June 2024: HK$9,434,000) are included in cost of sales during the =+—HI-fE BT A14,917,000%8
period ended 31 March 2025. T (EHEZZINEAB=+tHILEFE:
9,434,000 7T) BT ASHE A ©
(ii) Breakdown of total staff costs are as follows: (ii) BT ALEZEMDWT -
Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
HE-T-HE BE_ZpUE
=A=+-H AE=+E
LEHARG IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Basic salaries, wages, bonus and allowance BEXRHE & TCARKER 105,429 124,294
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BORE AL A — E ZB AT &
(Note 13) (FF5E13) 13,630 13,636
Long service payment RHRBEE 432 1,398
119,491 139,328
8 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 8 Hfthukzs ~ (B518) » F%E
Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
HE—S-RE HEZ-NE
=B=+—H ~B=1+H
LEHARE EE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME -BERREZ
plant and equipment W/ (B518) 192 (80)
Written-off of property, plant and equipment #8413 « Bk = K 5 (3,028) (85)
Net exchange gains/(losses) ERWE (518 F48 15,329 (5,490)
12,493 (5,655)
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YR
9 FINANCE COSTS, NET 9 HMBER FHE
Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
BE_E-RE BEZNF
=A=+—H ANA=+8
LEHARS EEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Finance income: IR
- Bank interest income —RTFEWA 80 3,006
Finance costs: WHER .
— Interest expenses on bank borrowings —IRTTEMRZHERE (1) (63,733)
— Interest expenses on gold loans from a fellow ——RIRRMEAT Z
subsidiary (Note 32(a)) =EERZNERY
(Ff5E32(2)) (4,394) (1,429)
— Interest expenses on loans from —BEREWB LB ZER
fellow subsidiaries (Note 32(a)) ZHERY
(fi5E32(2)) (24,068) (18,492)
— Interest expenses on lease liabilities —-HEaGE2HEM% (4,230) (3,066)
— Effective interest on convertible bonds — I MRESZEBRFE - (1,363)
- Others —HAth (61) -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (82,754) (88077)
Finance costs, net MBER 31 (32,674) (85,071)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

10

INCOME TAX (EXPENSES)/CREDIT

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising from
Hong Kong for the year, except for one subsidiary of the
Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime. The first HK$2 million of estimated
assessable profits of this subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% and
the remaining estimated assessable profits are taxed at
16.5% (year ended 30 June 2024: same). No provision for
taxation in Hong Kong as the Group has no assessable
profits in Hong Kong for both the period ended 31 March
2025 and year ended 30 June 2024,

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law and
Implementation Rules of the PRC, subsidiaries of the
Company established in the PRC are subject to an income
tax rate of 25% for both period ended 31 March 2025 and
year ended 30 June 2024.

Pursuant to (B EETEES AR E L EMMEREENA
£ ) (Announcement No. 23 of the Ministry of Finance in
2020) issued in April 2020, certain subsidiaries established
in Chonggqing, the PRC, were subject to a preferential tax
rate of 15% from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2030,
when the major business of the enterprises fell within the
encouraged industries and the annual revenue from the
encouraged business exceeded 60% of each subsidiary’s
total revenue in a fiscal year.

Pursuant to (RAINES~IRFEAEBEANIE—T /N E
MER I EEAMMEBERNAS) (Public Notice
[2023] No. 12) issued in August 2023, certain subsidiaries
qualifying as Small and Thin Profit Enterprises with an annual
taxable income no more than RMB3 million are eligible for a
reduction of taxable income to 25% of the original amount.
PRC Enterprise Income Tax is then levied at a rate of 20%
on the reduced taxable income.

10

FRiSH (FsR) 8%
EBMNERIERAEENETBELE
Z EETEERFR A IR E16.5% 51 1R
H EAEE KB RABRIN ZA
B EaMMBEFESNEGNEZEE &
MEB AR Z Gt EREREFIT > 5288
BITI28.25% 2 MEEIA - M E R (& st
PR EFI216.5% 2 ME-KR HEZ
ZTOEAB=Z+THIEEE D HERE) o B
REAEERBEE_ S _RF=R=+—
HIEPEEBEE S -NE,B=1+H
IEFEWEERERREAN  H &t
SEMRETIREE

RIFPEEERSRARBERIFAG &
REEFERIZMBAERBE-E
“HEE=ZA=+—HLPEARBE_ZT
THEARA=THILEFEEZARERES
25%°

RE—_SE - SFENBEMGR(RN TS
FAEB AR EFAERBEENAS) B
B ERAE[2020]56235%) » &= TR HEE
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e IR

10 INCOME TAX (EXPENSES)/CREDIT 10 FRiSHR (%) 1E%R (&)

(Continued)

Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
HECS-RE HEZ-NF
=B=+—H NA=1H
LEHARS EEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#Ex FET

Current taxation: BIHERTRIE :
— Mainland taxation — IR IE 1,829 104
Deferred income tax (Note 26) ELFTSH (MI5E26) 1,073 (4,334)
2,902 (4,230)

The taxation on the Group’s loss before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax
calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to the profits of

AEEFFTSRAIBERZ MBRERE
AR FEESHER N ZE MR
X HEMBEELE 2 EBREEERN

the consolidated entities in the respective jurisdictions as K

follows:

Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
BE_T-hE HE_Z-@WF
=RA=+—H ~B=+H
LEHARS EE
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ERT FHET
Loss before income tax PRETSI AR 18 (196,784) (215,683)
Tax calculated at domestic tax REARE R ERE T
rates applicable to profits in the respective NEMREFAEZ
jurisdictions R (33,146) (38,549)
Income not subject to taxation BAEZRRZUA (2,562) (4,478)
Expenses not deductible for REMZzZH
taxation purposes 29,404 14,885
Recognition of unused tax losses RAREBRIEEE (8,067) =
Tax losses of which no deferred tax FRERELRBEEZ
asset is recognised MIERE 17,505 24,925
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B AU RERRIBEE
tax losses (781) (652)
Others Hith 549 (361)
2,002 (4,230)
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10

e IR M EE

N

INCOME TAX (EXPENSES)/CREDIT
(Continued)

Accounting policies for current and deferred
income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

10 FrfSiR (%) 1E% (B)
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(@) EPHAFRTSR
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AAN

N

10

RATS R 5L

INCOME TAX (EXPENSES)/CREDIT
(Continued)

Accounting policies for current and deferred
income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

11 DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to propose or declare any final
dividend for the period ended 31 March 2025 (year ended
30 June 2024: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%= -<H

mN

12

LOSS PER SHARE

RATS R M 5L

12 FiRESIE
Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 30 June 2024

BE—FT-RE HEZ@OF

=A=+—H ANA=1H
LEHARS EEE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ERT FHET
Loss/(profit) for the period/year attributable to ARt EERZTERELRK
owners of the Company for the purpose of BEEIE ARNE R A
basic and diluted loss per ordinary share arising  FE{LER,EREE,
from: GaF) -
— Continuing operation —HEREER (94,864) (140,144)
— Discontinued operation —BRIEREER - 4,828
(94,864) (135,316)
As at As at
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
g e §- RIZZPF
=B=+—H ~A=+H
No. of shares No. of shares
LidhE 4= BB
‘000 ‘000
Fhig T
Number of ordinary shares: LERHE .
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for FRR st EFER DRI
the purpose of basic and diluted loss KEEBNEREBER
per ordinary share for continuing and BERARE SR ZER
discontinued operations T H 269,672 269,672
Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
BE_T-RE HEZ@OF
=B=+—H A~A=+H
LEHARE EFE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FHET
Basic and diluted (loss)/earning per KRB ER NEL
ordinary share attributable to owners SREBREAKEE
of the Company arising from: (&518) /B’BF) .
— Continuing operation —FEREER (0.352) (0.520)
— Discontinued operation —BRIEREER - 0.018
(0.352) (0.502)
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= .2\ H + =7
e SRR MY EE
12 LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 12 SKREE @&
During the period ended 31 March 2025, the Company HE_ZT_HF=8
had potential ordinary shares which are the share options XprBBEBESER

granted under 2009 Share Option Scheme (Note 25). As the
Company incurred losses for the period ended 31 March
2025, these potential ordinary shares were not included in
the calculation of diluted loss per share as their inclusion 1
would be anti-dilutive. Accordingly, the amounts of diluted
loss per share for the period ended 31 March 2025 were the
same as basic loss per share. (year ended 30 June 2024:
same).

P oaavasiN

=+—HLHHE

RBRBE-ZZF

NEBRESE (fisF25) REZBER
B-HRARTREE
B=+—HLEBELEEGE RULE
TEERFTASREBEERE
BEtE RRABMARSTROKEAR
BEYE AL - BE—T
=+—HLPEzEREEHFIETIRA
SREXAGELEER BEZZ M

—EoRE=

AE=R

FRA=THLEE R -

13 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS 13 BIABFIEE
Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
BE-Z-HRE HE_Z_NFE
=A=+-—H ~NA=1+H
1] EE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Net contributions to pension plans charged RiREBREERFINFRZ
to the consolidated income statement BRETEHIEER 13,630 13,636
The expense is recognised in the following line items in the BRI GEERRZUTIEER
consolidated income statement: 58
Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
=R _+ H ~B=+H
1] EE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Cost of sales HEMA 1,455 1,575
Selling and distribution costs HERDIHER 10,918 10,555
Administrative expenses THER 1,257 1,506
13,630 13,636
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%= -<H

mN

14

Notes:

(i)

(a)

RATS R M 5L

13 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued) 13 RUREFIRRZ (@)
Fd 5
The Group contributes to a MPF Scheme for its employees in Hong 0] Zk%%ﬁé?ﬁﬁé?&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ M RABEEE
Kong, under which both the Group and each employee make monthly RN EMESEENEREEZEE
contribution to the scheme at 5% of the qualifying earnings of the ﬁ%”ﬂU\S%T’E&—}ﬁfﬁﬂ S AHEME LR
employee, subject to a maximum of HK$1,500 (year ended 30 June A1,5008 7 BEZZ-NEAXB=+H81t
2024: HK$1,500) per month. F£E 1 1,50087T) °
The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland also contribute to retirement (ii) AEERAMZHBATINETHEBRM
plans for their employees in Mainland at a percentage of their salaries THRZREAERAMNEEFEAHE
in compliance with the requirements of the respective municipal reE—T Bt Z B BHER c HBAR
governments in Mainland. The municipal governments undertake Dﬂg‘%zk% lﬁ(‘ﬁqiﬂﬂ’]ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ&%ﬂs?&
to assume the retirement benefit obligation of all existing and future KBS ZBRIKEHEE
retired employees of the Group in Mainland.
BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14 ZEERSAEEASEH RiED
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Directors’ and Chief Executive’s () EFERERETHASHME
emoluments
The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the FRENEANTE $ RERBEITEH
directors and chief executive of the Company during ANBZME4RZEUWT
the year were as follows:
Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
BECT-hE HEZI@OF
=RA=+—H ~NA=1+H
LEHARS IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ERT FHET
Fees BE 876 1,588
Salaries e 4,908 4,578
Contributions to pension plan BIRESTEIHE 28 53
Total directors’ emoluments, payable and B Rk BR e HBRE
expensed in the consolidated financial Sz EENEHREE
statements 5,812 6,219

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a
person’s services as a director, whether of the
Company or its subsidiary undertaking:
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e IR

14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14 EERSREIEASEIIRIELS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued) (48)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s (@) ESRERSTHASME (&)
emoluments (Continued)
Period ended 31 March 2025 BE-_Z-_AE=HA=+—HL
HAR
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits benefit
Fees in kind costs Total
WE 2R
g BMEN BABHER by

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FiEn FiEn FiEn FiEn

Executive directors BiTES
Mr. Wong Ho Lung, BERERE

Danny (Chairman and Chief (FRRTHA)

Executive Officer) 0] M 3,441 14 3,496
Ms. Cheung Irene RER LT 0} 4 1,467 14 1,522
Ms. Wong Hau Yeung FEBLt (i 41 - - 41
Dr. Chan So Kuen BEGEET ] 41 - - 41
Non-executive FHTES

directors
Ms. Yeung Po Ling, BRERZT

Pauline (v) 112 - - 112
Independent non- BIERTES

executive directors
Mr. Sze Yeung Kuen mEREE (vi) 150 - - 150
Mr. Chan Raymond PREN L (vi 150 - - 150
Dr. Lam Ki Wai, Lianne HEREL (vi) 150 - - 150
Dr. Chow Kwoon Ho, Simon BAEsEt (vi) 150 - - 150

876 4,908 28 5812
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14 EERSREIEASEIIRIELS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued) (48)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s (a) EFRBREITHASME @&
emoluments (Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2024 HE_ZNFAA=1+HILHF
E
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits benefit
Fees in kind costs Total
e Bk
ik BEMEN  RIAETER fast
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i FEL TAT FEL FAT
Executive directors BiTES
Mr. Wong Ho Lung, BERERE

Danny (Chairman and Chief (FRRTHA)

Executive Officer) 25 9 2,220
Ms. Cheung lrene RER LT 0} 25 9 964
Ms. Wong Hau Yeung BT Sewn 0} 25 - 25
Dr. Chan So Kuen REBREL 1] 25 - - %
Mr. Li Ning (‘Mr. L") FEEE

("F%E) (i) - 877 12 889
Mr. Wang Chaoguang Bk

(Mr. Wang’) (%) (i) = 585 12 597
Non-executive EHiTES

directors
Ms. Yeung Po Ling, BERYT

Pauline (v) 68 - - 68
Mr. Hu, Hongwei HLERE i 439 - 11 450
Independent non- BIERTES

executive directors
Mr. Sze Yeung Kuen HEERLE (vi) 90 = = 90
Mr. Chan Raymond BB (vi 0 - - 90
Dr. Lam Ki Wai, Lianne HEEEL (vi 90 = = 90
Dr. Chow Kwoon Ho, Simon BEsEL (vi 90 = = 90
Dr. Fan Anthony Ren Da BERT (vi 219 - - 219
Dr. Loke, Yu Hoi Lam EEmEL (vi) 219 - - 219
Mr. Chan Kim Sun Filkedes (vi) 183 - - 183

1,588 4578 53 6,219
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NS R R

14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

iif)

Vi)

Vil

viii)

150

Appointed as an executive director, the chairman and the chief
executive officer on 19 January 2024.

Appointed as an executive director on 19 January 2024.

Resigned as the chairman on 19 January 2024, and an
executive director on 9 February 2024.

Resigned as the co-chairman on 19 January 2024, and an
executive director on 9 February 2024.

Appointed as a non-executive director on 19 January 2024.

Resigned as a non-executive director on 9 February 2024.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director on 19

January 2024.

Resigned as an independent non-executive director on 9
February 2024.

14 ESREREEASENREDS

)

(a) EERERITHASME (B

5T -

i)

Vi)

vl

viii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR M EE

14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

ESRSREEBEASEN RIER
(a) EERERITHASME (B

Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
BEZT-RE HEZ@OF
=B=+—H ANA=+H

L-HARS HEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable FtfE2& 7 /A B o E i /B
by directors in respect of their services as AT B EZ IR B
directors, whether of the Company orits ~ EEoEZEWREIE
subsidiary undertaking 4BEE 876 1,588
Aggregate emoluments paid to or MEREEARARRA
receivable by directors in respect of MBABIEHBZES
their other services in connection with HMRFH BT
the management of the affairs of the ZENE4a%8
Company or its subsidiary undertaking 4,936 4,631
5,812 6,219
(b) Directors’ retirement benefits (b) EFZEAREFH
Except for the employer’s contribution to a retirement FR@)IBFEEZ EBEMERAKEF
benefit scheme as disclosed in (a), no other retirement FEHIUN BEZZAF=H
benefits were paid to the directors of the Company —+—HIESAE wERAATZ
during the period ended 31 March 2025 in respect EENHEAEARARERBR
of their services as directors of the Company and its BEEMREEZRBZ M EME
subsidiaries (year ended 30 June 2024: same). HREHN BEZZINF A=+
HIEFE R o
(c) Directors’ termination benefits (c) EHRZEBEHN
None of the directors received or will receive any REE_ZE_RFE=ZF=+—H
termination benefits during the period ended 31 IHHAE i EE R KW EIREY
March 2025 (year ended 30 June 2024: same). RAHBEEN BEZZHEN
B=+HIEFE R o
(d) Consideration provided to third parties for (d) FMRHEBEFERFBRAE=ZHF =

making available directors’ services

During the period ended 31 March 2025, the
Company did not pay any consideration to any third
parties for making available the services of themselves
as directors of the Company (year ended 30 June
2024: same).

&
REBEE_E_RE=A=+—H
IEHRRE - K’&TI#&F‘]EH’%_E
MREERETRDEFREZR
BXUEARE &ET_NF
ANAZ=THLEFE #8A) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e R R MEE

14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14 EERSREIEASEIIRIELS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued) &)

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans (e)
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors
No loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
were entered into by the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking in favour of the directors of the Company,
a controlled body corporate or a connected entity of
such directors at any time during the period ended 31
March 2025 (year ended 30 June 2024: same).

() Directors’ material interests in transactions, (f)

arrangements or contracts

Save for transactions disclosed elsewhere in the notes
to these consolidated financial statements, no other
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company has a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during
the period ended 31 March 2025 (year ended 30 June
2024: same).

(g) Five highest paid individuals (9)
Among the five highest paid individuals, four (year
ended 30 June 2024: four) of them are directors of
the Company and the details of their remuneration are
disclosed in the preceding paragraph.

(h) Senior management’s emoluments (h)
The emoluments paid payable to the remainly are
involved (year ended 30 June 2024: one) are as
follow:

BRMER RFEFZRE
ZERAEERAREAZE
moBUERREMEEZE
RBEE_ZE_RAF=A=+—H
IEERRI R RIBRF  » 45 B) Sl ELFfY
BABIM BT UK AT EE &
FEFCREABANFEERES
2m AZBR - BUERMKEME
B2 BET_MNERB="1
HIEFE R -

BEENRS HHHEHNZE
KiEx
REZEGGVBRRMNFZHEME
DEAFEZ R Z9 > KA B ML
KREBEKRITILIARBDEENE
RFEEAREENEEERARE
EZZAF=A=+—HIH
MERNIFATAREERZ
/H\Tﬁlﬁﬂ( 2 BHREN (BE
“ETOESRA=1+HIEFE
) °

haReHMAL
AEEReHFMALES  MUH (&

ETETOAFARB=FTHIEEE:
mg) ARRBRER BEZME
HEER ERIEEE-

SREEAEMNE

BN/ BEGRT—%AL (ESZE_
ETMFEARB=THILEFE:

2) BT

Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
BHET-RE HEZ@OF
=B=+-—H ~A=+H
LEEAR EFE

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 1,500,000/ 7T

Senior management represents senior management
staff who are non-directors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 ¥ -BERRE
Furniture and
fixtures and
Leasehold computer Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
Fh-RER
HEMERE BHRE HE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET TERr
At 1 July 2023 KZE-=%tA—H
Cost B 51,846 36,945 1,368 90,159
Accumulated depreciation and REMERAE
impairment (42,740) (31,130) ©12) (74,782)
Net book value REFE 9,106 5815 456 15,377
Year ended 30 June 2024 BE-S-_MERA=THLEE
Opening net book value HRERE 9,106 5815 456 15,377
Additions RE 20,942 5,273 - 26,215
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (52) (81) = (133)
Disposals HE - (80) - (80)
Depreciation charge (Note (i) EZH (k) (6,659) (2,515) (65) (9,239)
Written off i (14) (71) = (85)
Exchange differences ERER (307) (156) (13) (476)
Closing net book value HAEE A 23,016 8,185 378 31,579
At 30 June 2024 RZE-mERB=+H
Cost B 66,874 40,312 1,350 108,536
Accumulated depreciation and ZENERAE
impairment (43,858) (32,127) (972) (76,957)
Net book value REFE 23,016 8,185 378 31,579
Period ended 31 March 2025 BE_S_nF=A=1+—HLHER
Opening net book value HREFE 23,016 8,185 378 31,579
Additions RE 22,969 7,064 612 30,645
Disposals HE (399) 3) - (402)
Depreciation charge (Note (i) WESH (IF) (8,893) (2,634) (59) (11,586)
Impairment loss REEE (5,523) 67) - (5,590)
Written off b 6] (2,525) (503) - (3,028)
Exchange differences ERELE (26) (10) 1 (35)
Closing net book value BREEZE 28,619 12,032 932 41,583
At 31 March 2025 R-E-nf=A=+-H
Cost B 86,172 41,350 1,183 128,705
Accumulated depreciation and REMERAE
impairment (57,553) (29,318) (251) (87,122)
Net book value REEE 28,619 12,032 932 41,583
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N

15

154

AR e TSR M 5T

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

(0] Depreciation expense of HK$10,672,000 (year ended 30 June 2024:
HK$7,738,000) in selling and distribution costs and HK$914,000 (year
ended 30 June 2024: HK$1,448,000) in administrative expenses.

(i) Impairment on retail store assets, including certain plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group considers each individual retail store as a separately
identifiable cash-generating unit. Management performed impairment
assessments for the retail stores that had impairment indicator.
The carrying amount of the retail store asset is written down to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is in excess of
its estimated recoverable amount. The estimates of the recoverable
amounts were based on value-in-use calculations using discounted
cash flow projections based on the management’s forecasts covering
the remaining tenure of the lease, with major assumptions of pre-tax
discount rate of 13%, average gross profit margin of 29% to 33.8%
and average revenue growth of 11.7% to 24.4%.

During the period ended 31 March, the Group has impairment loss of
property, plant and equipment approximately of HK$5,590,000 in the
consolidated income statement (year end 30 June 2024: Nil).

(iii) Impairment on corporate assets, including property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (other than retail store assets)

Impairment assessment was performed by measuring the estimation
of the recoverable amount of the Group. As the result of the
impairment assessment, the recoverable amount of the Group
calculated based on value in use exceeded its carrying amount,
no impairment is needed for the corporate assets as at 31 March
2025. Details of the impairment assessment, including certain key
assumptions and sensitivity analysis, are set out in Note 17.

Accounting policy for property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

15 % BB Rk (&

0] rEERIS210,672,0008 T (BE_ZT _W4E
SNA=Zt+HIEEE 7,738,000 7T) Bt A
SHERDIHER > M914,0008 7T BE_Z
ZMENB=THLIEEE | 1,448,000% 7T)
Bt AITHER -

(il SEEEE (BRETHRERREURER
REE) BE

REBMPAESEENSEEHAEILATH
AREELBMU -TEBEMERRENR
NEEEHETHAETG - WTESHEE
ZEREEBLEEMGE I KEEEE A EME
EZREERREE K EE5E - ARG
Al RELIREEEE RS THER
HER AMIRRES REEAIF st EE
RAEEMETE Wt RRRATAEIRE13%
FHEFFE29%ZES3.8% K FHRAE R
11.7%E24.4%EF B KK °

BEZA=1+—BLHH AEEREE
BaRZWE - BERREREBENR
5,590,000 (BE_Z__MHFB=+
HILFE )

@iy ABEE (BENE- -KERKEBURER
HEE) FEEZEEERD HE

WA EE B ERNER RIS RE G
FHET BN EEN AR RERE MG
BrAEEORSESHRERESE W
RIE_RAF=A=+—HHNABREED
ERERETHFEE (BEETEERRK
B REDHr) Bk sE17 0

ME - BERREHENE R

BB KRBT R EE R AR ITE
SiR-EE R BEEREZSTHEEEE
B Z RSz

ERREE A BREERN AR
AREE > BZRB Z A FEH Bl FE 5T
B HEMA S G AZBEEZR
HENEIA—BBHIEE RERE
MME) cEEMH ZREENREERK
ISR - PREHMEERFEENHEE
FZHBHRBREREGERRZHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE - -REREE (@B)

(Continued)

Accounting policy for property, plant and
equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements 5 years or over the unexpired
lease period, whichever is
shorter

Furniture and fixtures and 5 years

computer equipment
Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
net proceeds with carrying amount of the relevant assets
and are included in the consolidated income statement.

ME - BERRFHENEEE (@)

WENFEREGEN AT ERE
HADECH M A FIBRFISRER 58 ¢

HEYERE SEHMBLEERRE

(MR E B )
BACRER 5%
BHsR 1
Rk 5

BEZFNHEERERAFHESE
Bigsy > WHEEERHE -

HEEZREESREMGAIlEE
8 RIRREEZREEGIEHERE
HoJ el 588 -

HERBBEERAESIEFEEAEHE

EZRAELEBREELS AGKEET
*o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

16 LEASES 16 fHE
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) MiEZEEEAERHEIAZEEHE
balance sheet
Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
HEZT-RE ®BEZZNE
=RA=+—H ~B=1H
LEHARS LEFE
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
F#ERT FHET
Right-of-use assets FREEE
Balance at beginning of period/year B/ EEEsR 57,368 15,362
Additions hE 68,851 66,984
Depreciation (Note 7) E (5E7) (29,514) (23,589)
Impairment losses (Note (iii)) B (ki) (4,889) =
Early termination REAIE (12,319) =
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAE - (1,046)
Exchange differences R =% 29 (343)
Balance as at end of period/year /R 79,526 57,368
Notes: i

156

(i)

The Group leases various retail spaces and premises and
warehouses. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 1 to 3 years but may have extension options. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
leases across the Group. Most extension options in property
leases have not been included in the lease liabilities, because
the Group considers these terms are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts and
assesses the exercise of extension options on a periodic
basis. During the period ended 31 March 2025, there were no
revisions of lease term due to the exercise of extension option
(year ended 30 June 2024: Nil).

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants and no
leased assets are used as security for borrowing purposes.

Impairment on retail store assets, including certain plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

During the period ended 31 March 2025, the Group has
impairment loss of right-of-use assets approximately of
HK$4,889,000 in the consolidated income statement.
Details of the impairment assessment, including certain key
assumptions, are set out in Note 15.

3DG Holdings (International) Limited £ Z &£ H (F %) AR AF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

16 LEASES (Continued) 16 THE (&
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (@) RiFEEEARRWEIZEE

balance sheet (Continued) (¢=))

Notes: (Continued) e =)

(iv) Impairment on corporate assets, including property, plant (iv) NEEE (BEME -BERZENL
and equipment and right-of-use assets (other than retail store EERAEEE) FEETEEER)
assets R
Impairment assessment was performed by measuring the HEF BB EAERZ A B U
estimation of the recoverable amount of the Group. As the BREMGFHET B ETEER
result of the impairment assessment, the recoverable amount REREBEFEZAER O WS
of the Group calculated based on value in use exceeded its HERHERSE R 2215
carrying amount, no impairment is needed for the corporate ZA=t+—HWMRREEBERME-
assets as at 31 March 2025. Details of the impairment HEFGEFEE (BREETEERSR
assessment, including certain key assumptions and sensitivity BRE D) B HIEE17 <

analysis, are set out in Note 17.

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following HREEEBEXREINUTHERME
amount relating to the leases: g2 :

As at As at

31 March 2025 30 June 2024
RIEZHEE RKIZTHWF
=RA=+—H ~NAZ=+H

HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET TAET

Right-of-use assets ERESE
Properties leases MERE 79,526 57,368
As at As at
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
RIEZRE RIZTTHNF
=B=+4+—H NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET

Lease liabilities HEaE

Current Vi3] 42,190 23,883
Non-current JETRED 45,016 35,929
87,206 59,812
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= A
i

RATS R 5L

16 LEASES (Continued)

16 A8 &)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b) RiFEEEREIDZERE
income statement
The consolidated income statement shows the FEBRaXREIUTERHEEZ
following amounts relating to the leases: B
As at As at
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
RIS-HRE RKRIZTWF
=B=+4+—H ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FHET
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEEEINE 29,514 23,589
Provision for impairment of FREEERERE
right-of-use assets 4,889 S
Interest expense (included in MERZ GtAMKER)
finance costs) 4,230 3,066
Expense relating to short-term FERRTR BRI GTA
leases (included in selling and HEKRDIHER)
distribution costs) 2,330 3,541
Expense relating to variable lease TEst AHESE
payments not included in lease B & B R R
liabilities (included in selling and Xz GtAHER
distribution costs) DiEE ) 25,591 27,959

158

Note:

For the period ended 31 March 2025, depreciation of right-
of-use assets of HK$25,595,000 (year ended 30 June 2024:
HK$15,917,000) was included in selling and distribution costs
HK$3,919,000 (year ended 30 June 2024: HK$7,672,000) was

included in administrative expenses.

For the period ended 31 March 2025, the total cash outflow for leases
was HK$59,550,000 (year ended 30 June 2024: HK$54,875,000).
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PEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16

e IR M EE

N

LEASES (Continued)

Accounting policy for leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar
economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and

o restoration costs.

16

HE (&)

HENEER
MEEREEETHAERER AR
RACAEGE TRDAEERE.

HEELEZEERGRYY LEREET
STE-HEREEEUTHEHEMRZ S
RE:

s BEEMR (BEBHBEENNR B
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FIELHE) ;
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ERREERRAFE BENTEE:

s MEAERZYIPFEZE,
e MHABBEBIZAIFREZEME

BN R ER 2 E R EE B
E .

R )

o [EAGBERERE; K&

o BIEMZ-

Annual Report 2024/25 &3 159



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AAN

N

RATS R 5L

16 LEASES (Continued)

Accounting policy for leases (Continued)
Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

160

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in consolidated income statement. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low-value assets comprise small items of office equipment.

(a)

(b)

Variable lease payments

Estimation uncertainty arising from variable lease
payments

Some property leases contain variable payment terms
that are linked to sales generated from a store. For
individual stores, up to 100 percent of lease payments
are on the basis of variable payment terms and
there is a wide range of sales percentages applied.
Variable payment terms are used for a variety of
reasons, including minimising the fixed costs base
for newly established stores. Variable lease payments
that depend on sales are recognised in consolidated
income statement in the period in which the condition
that triggers those payments occurs.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in
certain property and equipment leases across the
Group. These terms are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The
majority of extension and termination options held
are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.

16 A8 &)

HEREHEER (@)

ERREE —RINEENRERFERK
B (UBREERE) AUEHETU
ME -HAEEGERTETEREESE
B AERREEREREEN KR
FHRNTURE-
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AR SRR MY 5

INTANGIBLE ASSET 17 \BEEE
Trademark
wiE
HK$’000
FEx
At 1 April 2023 MH-ZE-=%£MA—AH
Cost B 168,066
Accumulated amortisation RETH -
168,066
Year ended 30 June 2024 BE_E_MFEANA=THLEE
Opening net book value BRIEREF1E 168,066
Amortisation #in (5,090)
Closing net book value BARERE B 162,976
At 30 June 2024 H-EZHMERA=+H
Cost D% 168,066
Accumulated amortisation Rty (5,090)
162,976
Period ended 31 March 2025 BE_E_RAF=A=+—H11/
Opening net book value HAFIER IR B 162,976
Amortisation G0 (7,639)
Closing net book value HAREREIFE 155,337
At 31 March 2025 RZE-RF=A=+—H
Cost D% 168,066
Accumulated amortisation RETEH (12,729
1553317

Impairment tests for trademarks

Management considered the impairment indicator exists as
the Group was loss-making during the period. Impairment
assessment was performed on Group level which
comprising by a group of cash generating units (“CGUSs”),
covering the corporate assets, including property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and trademark. Impairment
assessment was performed by measuring the estimation
of the recoverable amount of the CGUs. The recoverable
amount of the CGUs is estimated based on value in use
calculation using discounted cash flow projection, based on
approved financial budgets. As the trademark is the core
asset of the CGUs, the management determined the length
of the discounted cash flow projection covering a 15.5-year
period, aligning with the remaining useful life of trademark.
Certain key assumptions include average revenue growth
rate for 1st to 5th year, revenue growth rate for 6th to 15.5th
year, average gross profit margin and discount rate.

o A Rk 1B A Bt

EEBRA ARNAEBENPRREE
B WEERENR BETAERRE
ER R ES L HeEREEESEUA
Al (MREEEEBNM) - RELTEE
BEME - BREARE FRAREER
EiZ o AT EE At EREEA BN
2o O ERE AT E T RS EA BN
A eI SRR EZ P FEE
FAMRBEREEIZERABESE
EHE R BEAREELEUY
ZOBE NEEERILBERESREE
BIHAE 21555 IR ) UEE & B Z 6k
TRfERAFH - ETEFERKEBEFIE
S5FZFHWRIEREEF6E15.5F2
W R TR R AR
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INTANGIBLE ASSET (Continued) 17 \REE @
Impairment tests for trademarks (Continued) AR ER R (&
The Group has made reference to the valuation report AEBBE2EBH U GEMEBEHZHE
issued by an independent valuer for the calculation of the RE USERSESEBENZ O EKE
recoverable amount of the CGUs. The key assumptions Bost BN EREAIRBZFERR
used for recoverable amount calculation are as follows: W
As at As at
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
MIEZRE RIZTHE
=BA=+—H NB=1+H
Average revenue growth (Note (i) SEHWAEE BFEE)) 22% 32%
Average gross profit margin TFHEF] 30% 30%
Revenue growth rate for 6th to 15.5th year $6ZE15.5FMIRAIE EX
(Note (ii)) (BT %)) 2% 3%
Discount rate (Note (iii)) IR (BTEEG) 12.4% 13.4%

Notes:

(i) Average revenue growth rate covers a five-year forecast period. It is
based on the past performance and management’s expectations on
market development.

(ii) The revenue growth rate for 6th to 15.5th year do not exceed the
long-term average growth rate of the business in which the CGU
operates.

(iii) Pre-tax discount rate applied to the pre-tax cash flow forecast.

Management determined the financial forecast based on
past performance and its expectations for the market
development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

The recoverable amount of the CGUs calculated based
on value in use is approximately HK$1,794,421,000
which exceeded the carrying amount by approximately of
HK$442,836,000. A fall in average revenue growth rate to
7%, a fall in gross profit margin rate to 27%, a fall in revenue
growth rate for 6th to 15.5th year to -24%, or a rise in
discount rate to 17.2%, all changes taken in isolation, would
remove the remaining headroom.

In practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of
the assumptions may be correlated. Up to the date of this
report, there were no reasonably possible changes in any
of the key assumptions mentioned above that would have
caused the recoverable amounts of the CGUs be less than
its carrying amounts.

5T

0} T g RERE D FRAE HLUBTE
KEREEBHTHERNERAKE

(i FOEI55FMRAEREZFEBAREE
EBUMEENERNRITHIZRE

@iy  FEARBRRAREERSRANBRRAITER

o

EEERBERFENAEYTSEERNE
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5 E R

ReEESBURFEREESEZ W
S REAH91,794,421,0008 77 BBHERE
$RE#9442,836,00078 7T © fig F UL A 1%
EETRERET% EMETERE2T%-FH
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17 INTANGIBLE ASSET (Continued)
Accounting policies for intangible asset and
impairment of non-financial assets

(a)

(b)

Trademark

Intangible asset mainly represented trademark and is
measured initially at cost or, if acquired in a business
combination, fair value at the acquisition date. An
intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortised on
a straight-line basis over its useful life as follows and
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Trademark 16.5 years

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other non-financial assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

BEEE (@)
BREERFEMEERENES

R
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(b)
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LB B [ PR AR 1B BT AE R BE R [E]
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18 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 18 1#&  FA(JIRIBER H Mt EULERIE
RECEIVABLES

As at As at

31 March 2025 30 June 2024
WIEZRE RIZTTOF
=RA=+—H ~NBZ=Z+H

HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
Non-current JEENHA
Rental deposits HeEs 9,863 7,956
Current BPHEA
Rental deposits HERE 3,026 1,632
Value-added tax recoverable AU [EIE(ETR 43,649 14,002
Prepayments FE{JRRIB 10,052 5,364
Other receivables HMEWERIE 6,808 2,000
Other deposits Hithizs 2,431 1,244
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 65966 = 24,242
75,829 32,198
The carrying amounts of the deposits, prepayments and e BENREREMEWIREBEZRE
other receivables approximate their fair values and are BHERAMEES WU T EEEE:
denominated in the following currencies:
As at As at

31 March 2025 30 June 2024
WIEZARE RIZTWF
=A=+—H ~NA=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000
F#Ex FET
HK$ BIT 14,357 6,436
RMB AR 61,472 24,515
MOP JBP9IT - 1,247
75,829 32,198
Details of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arisen from NEBAZZHMEBWRBEEEZ
other receivables, risk management and the expected credit ERPE-BSEELTEERE S BB
loss assessment are disclosed in Note 3. Z BRI EE -
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19 INVENTORIES

The inventories net of provision are as follows:

19 7F&

HBEzFEadT !

As at As at

31 March 2025 30 June 2024
MZE_HE A B _pOE
=RA=+—H ~NBZ=Z+H

HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
Inventories =78 1,069,901 728,097

\

As at 31 March 2025, the Group recognised inventory
provision of HK$6,046,000 (30 June 2024: HK$4,774,000),
resulted in inventory provision charge amounting to
HK$1,274,000 (year ended 30 June 2024: HK$1,306,000)
included in ‘cost of sales’ in the consolidated income
statement.

Accounting policy for inventories
Inventories, comprise finished goods, are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Eﬁ‘:’;_ﬁfﬁ B=+—H8> &8’
SIF B 56,046,000 T (T ZPO5X
H +H : 4,774,000 7T) » BERFEE
#HRI21,274,0008 7T (BE_Z /<
B =+HLEEE : 1,306,000/ 7T) » {5t
ARGEBERZIHENZ -

T?‘“E’J sHEUR

S (BiERMM) THIEm A EE R 2R
@TEEE%Z?TEE%?'JEE RLAER A S A
THZEE -FAIBRFENENAREE
BRREPZEAEERERZ I EHE
EA-

20 HBEUWARIE

As at As at

31 March 2025 30 June 2024
WIEZRE RIZTTNOFE
=A=+—H ~NAB=1+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FEx

Trade receivables B 5 EWERTE 69,016 40,917
Less: Allowance for impairment B BB EWRBEREEE

of trade receivables (500) (52)

68,516 40,865
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20

166

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group’s sales comprised mainly cash sales and credit
card sales to retail customers and sales to licensees.
Concessionaire sales through department stores, sales
through e-commerce platforms and are generally on credit
terms up to 60 days (80 June 2024: Up to 30 days). The
ageing of trade receivables,based on invoice date, is as
follows:

20

B 5 EUERTE (48)
FAEEHEFRORHTERRZRE
HERERAFHERNRBBHZHE -
BEBERAHERERTFAHEEZ
EEH—REZ60H (CTEZMFRA
=+8 : &%%30R) - BHEUEREZHE
FHEZEREWMT ¢

As at As at

31 March 2025 30 June 2024

WIEZRE RIZTOFE

=RA=+—H ~NA=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

T#ET FHT

0 - 30 days 0ZE30H 52,152 35,002
31 - 60 days 31E60H 7,411 1,696
61 - 90 days 61E90H 4,768 2,333
Over 90 days BiE0H 4,685 1,886
69,016 40,917

Less: Allowance for impairment B B EWRIEREEE

of trade receivables (500) (52)
68,516 40,865

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
fair values and are denominated in the following currencies:

BEZRUREZRABEEEAAEE
A WL EEEHE ¢

As at As at

31 March 2025 30 June 2024

WIEZHRE RIZTWF

=RA=+—H ~NA=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAT FAT

HK$ BT 538 844
RMB AR 67,978 40,021
68,516 40,865

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure expected credit losses which use a lifetime
expected loss model for all trade receivables. The Group
does not hold any collateral for its trade receivables. Details
of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arisen from trade
receivables, risk management and the expected credit loss
assessment are disclosed in Note 3.

The provision and reversal of provision for impaired
receivables was charged and credited to the consolidated
income statement. Amounts charged to the allowance
account are generally written off when there is no

expectation of recovering the amount.

AEEBBEBYBREERFORME
LAt ERREERE ERfEE S
FEUSRIER A RRREREREE - k&
I #E L 2 B 7 B U AR IR R A R 1R
meoREEMAR B RWRIAESL
zEERR EREERAREEBRE
Sl Z FFIB MY s3I BR

SR RO ERER KRB Z BHETH R
RERmRBRILSA - ERHAA G
EIREEERNGRZ SR ZSREBR
T LA o
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21

22

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 RERREZLEY
As at As at
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
WIEZRE RIZTNOFE
=BA=+—H ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Total cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEBYELE 53,340 31,918
Maximum exposure to credit risk EeEERR 50,398 29,350

The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents
approximate their fair values and are denominated in the
following currencies:

REMFESEYIRASEEAEATE
BE DR TEREHE ¢

2025 2024

—E-HE —EOF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#Ex FET

HKS$ BT 26,270 18,119
RMB AR 26,308 11,113
UsD E7T 68 223
MOP P IT 694 2,463
53,340 31,918

As at 31 March 2025, the cash and cash equivalents
mainly denominated in RMB, amounting to approximately
HK$26,162,000 (30 June 2024: HK$10,349,000), are held
by the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland. The conversion
of RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by Mainland government.

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED

R_EBE_REF=ZR=+—H FTEU
ANRBFEZRESRESEEBYYH
26,162,000 T (ZE _ME B =+
H :10,349,00078 7T) J5 H A5 B 52 Ao ith
ZHBABBE BZEUARKE
ZERIRE A INE BEST AR T8
T2 INEE HIFRB R 3R o

B 5 B (1IRIA « HthE{IARIE &
stRIAER Bl E

As at As at

31 March 2025 30 June 2024
RISRE RKIZTME
=A=+—H ~NB=1+H

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FA5T T8

Trade payables B ENIRIE 26,774 31,359
Deposits from customers and licensees KERPAMEEZEE 24,098 27,341
Salaries and welfare payables P Fr & R @ 46,732 47,166
Other payables HhpEJiR1E 25,594 49,890
Accrued expenses === 787 970
123,985 156,726
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23

168

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the trade payable approximate their
fair values and are denominated in the following currencies:

8 2 EIIRIA  HE(IARIE - FE
stRIER EWEE (8)

BEZRMNRERASEAHERAFEM
A DERUTERHE :

2025 2024

“EZRE =B _pUAE

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#Ex FET

HK$ BT 6,148 9,413
RMB AR 20,623 21,046
Usb E7T 3 =
26,774 31,359

The ageing of trade payables, based on invoice date, is as
follows:

BZRMIRAERERAIZRENT :

As at As at

31 March 2025 30 June 2024

HRIEBZHRE RIZTTAFE

=B=+4+—H NAZ=+H

HK$’000 HK$’'000

F#ET FET

0 - 30 days 0ZE30H 26,692 28,779
31 -60 days 31E60H 60 2,478
61 - 90 days 61E90H - 50
Over 90 days BiBo0H 22 52
26,774 31,359

The carrying amounts of the trade payables, other payables,
accruals and deposits received approximate their fair values.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
(@) Share capital

As at 31 March 2025
RZE-REE=R=1+—-H

23

B ENERIE  EM B ARIE - Bt
BHREKRZEZREELZE R AER
=)

Bz 7s B2 B {9 s (B
(@) Bezs

As at 30 June 2024
RZE_MFE A=+H

No. of shares’000 HK$'000 No. of shares'000 HK$'000
BB T TERT ROEETE TET
Authorised: AT
Ordinary shares of SREE.IBTZ
HK$0.001 each LR 200,000,000 200,000 200,000,000 200,000
Preference shares of SREE0.001ETZ
HK$0.001 each BEK 30,000,000 30,000 30,000,000 30,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
Ordinary shares of SREE.001BTZ
HK$0.001 each BER 269,672 270 269,672 270
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23 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 23 ReARERiEE @)
(Continued)
(b) Share premium (b) BRIPEE
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#T THET
As at 31 March/30 June R=B=+—8/
~A=+H 845,033 845,033
24 RESERVES 24 f{#fE
Investment PRC
Contrioution Share  revaluation Exchange Statutory Other  Accumulated
surplus option reserve reserve reserves reserves losses Total
BE g
BRRR e Bl EREE R HitnEee RitEiE e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn TER TEn FEn TEn TER FEn FEn
(Note (i) (Note (i)
(GE) (GE0)

Year ended 30 June 2024 HE-ZT-_MEARA=+AH
Ji:3::4

Asat 1 July 2023 RI2Z=%+tF—H 117,040 1,529 (6,008) (12,394) 33,156 (252,408) (917,940)  (1,037,026)
Loss attributable to equity holders FAREREE AEEES

of the Company - - - - - - (135,316) (135,316)
Exchange differences on translation of BB EBNEREE

foreign operations - - - 1,071 - - - 1,071
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EWA / (§518) 458 - - - 1,071 - - (135,316)  (134,245)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERRAT - - 6,008 (555) - - (6,008) (555)
Capital contribution by a shareholder ~ —ZREZFE - - - - - 12,018 12,018
Lapse of share options BRERY - (230) - - - = 230 =

- 230) 6,008 (555) - 12,018 (5,778) 11,463
A 30 June 2024 RIE-mEAA=+A 117,040 1,299 - 11,678) 33155 (240390 (1,050,034  (1,159,808)
Period ended 31 March 2025 HECTCREE=RA=+-A
la 7]

Asat 1 July 2024 RZB-mELE-A 117,040 1,299 - (11,878) 33,155 (240,390) (1,059,034) (1,159,808)
Comprehensive loss 25
Loss attributable to equity holders KARRREAAEESR

of the Company - - - - - - (94,864) (94,864)
Exchang difierences on translation of BERIEBNERER

foreign operations - - - (14,503) = = = (14,503)
Total comprehensive loss 2EAGHA - - - (14,503) - - (94,884) (109,367)
At 31 March 2025 RoECREZAZ+-A 117,040 1,299 . (26,381) B455  (40390)  (1153898)  (1,269,175)
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24 RESERVES (Continued)

170

Notes:

(U]

(ii)

Statutory reserves are non-distributable, and the transfers of these
funds are determined by the Board of Directors of the relevant
Mainland subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in Mainland.

Other reserves comprises:

a)

A debit amount approximately of HK$213,605,000 represents
the difference between the fair value of the consideration
paid and the carrying amount of the net assets attributable to
the additional interest in China Gold Silver Group Company
Limited (“CGS”);

A debit amount approximately of HK$38,803,000 represents
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration (net of transaction cost) received for disposal of
partial interest in CGS on 6 June 2014 and proceeds received
from issuance of convertible bonds due in 2019 (“CB 2019”),
and (i) the aggregate amount of the carrying amount of the net
assets attributable to the disposed interest in CGS; and

A credit amount of approximately HK$12,018,000 represents
the amount of the Group’s liabilities taken up and waived by a
shareholder of the Company during the year ended 30 June
2024.

24 (3 (

st

@

(ii)

3DG Holdings (International) Limited £ Z & & H (%) BRAR

=
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58 £ 88#9213,605,00078 7074 BT
REATFEETESREFARAF
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FEZIREERNER
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ZEZ—MENANBEEFESR
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25 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 25 URR{pAEBRZ{HEHZS

2009 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme at the
special general meeting held on 23 January 2009 by way of
an ordinary resolution (the “2009 Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible
persons for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Group. Eligible persons including but not limited to

—EThFERiESE
FRATBERZEZNE-AZ+=HE
TZRREFIARE EUBRRRERRZH
MBI ES S (ZEFhFMARE
st UBEERALHAERZE
MEBEE MR R IEM -5 8%
ATBREEFERETEERR -EF

the Group’s shareholders, directors, employees, business BE-EBBEM - FRAKMEE -—ZF
partners, customers and suppliers. 2009 Share Option NEERESIEN_ZE—NLF—A

Scheme was lapsed on 22 January 2019 and since then, no
share option could be granted thereunder.

As at 31 March 2025, the number of options which remain
outstanding under the 2009 Share Option Scheme was
875,000 (30 June 2024: 875,000) which, if exercise in
full, representing 0.32% (30 June 2024: 0.32%) of the
share capital of the Company. The exercise period for the
remaining outstanding share options to be exercised before
11 January 2028.

Movements in the number of share options granted to the
directors and consultants of the Group and their related
weighted average exercise prices under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme as follows:

T+ ZHRB BIEAFRILESER
Bk

A TETHEE=ZA=+—H “EZTAh
FHERESTEIBE NI RTHE B
218 %4875,00000 (ZE_NEB=+
H : 875,00013) » (HEEHITE QIS
RAEATIRAZ20.32% (ZZZHEN
B=+H :0.32%) o8k NEAR{THERER
B OEHTR B NE—B+—H
BIfTME

RIS SRAEBRMHBET S EE
FERER 2 B RS E &AM
TETEEZEHNT :

Weighted
average exercise

Number of price per share
share options option
FRERE
Z In#EFEs
FRREHE THE
Outstanding as at 1 July 2023 KRB =F+tH—H
RITEE 1,050,000 3.232
Lapsed during the year RERB LM (87,500) 3.232
Cancelled during the year RENEHE (87,500) 3.232
Outstanding as at 30 June 2024 and RIE_WEAB=1+HK
31 March 2025 “E"HF=ZHR=+—H
RATEE 875,000 3.232
Exercisable as at 30 June 2024 and 31 A ZEIWEARB=1THK
March 2025 _E_RFE=A=+—H
Bl FATME 875,000 3.232
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

2020 Share Option Scheme

In view of the expiry of 2009 Share Option Scheme on
22 January 2019, the Company adopted a share option
scheme at the annual general meeting held on 23 June
2020 by way of an ordinary resolution (the “2020 Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to eligible persons for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group. Eligible persons including but not
limited to the Group’s shareholders, directors, employees,
business partners, customers and suppliers.

Pursuant to the 2020 Share Option Scheme, the Board
may grant options to the eligible persons to subscribe for
the Company’s shares for a consideration of HK$1 for each
lot of share options issued. The exercise price is to be
determined by the Board and shall not less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
for the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.

Pursuant to 2020 Share Option Scheme, the Scheme
Mandate Limit is not permitted to exceeded 154,671,601
shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of adoption 2020 Share
Option Scheme. As a result of completion of the capital
reorganisation of the Company in 2021, the maximum
number of share options available for issue under the 2020
Share Option Scheme was adjusted to 15,467,160 shares,
representing approximately 5.74% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this annual report.

25

HinHBRZ MRS (@)

—E_TFEREE
BER_ETNEBRESFENR N
F-RA-+ZHEm XABVERZF

TEFERAITZHRETZRRBEAX
g LB RRAREZ T RN ERES
2 (ZEZTFREkEE) - UBE
BERATHAEE SRMIUBETERIE
HERHEM - SER AT BEERR
RAEERR -EF -EE EHFBH
B PR AHER

BE_S_TFRRESE EFgH
AEERALTRHABBEART RN Z
BrE REABHERHZBREE
T IRERBEFEETE BRFE
RTIIN=FBZRSER (ERBRHN
R BRI PR 3 2 B B B RFA
WWTHE ()ERATDRMEEZREA
AR EERAEBMIFAEHZSHR
BRARFEHWRHE ; kiii&28 K5
EfEe

RIS T ERESE TR
[REET1518:18154,671,6010% » IHE F R
M_EEFEREAIHPEARRE
BIIRA1I0% BN ARTR _E_—
FREBRAEE —E-FERES
ZIE T aH B ITHEBREHRE LIRAE
F15,467,1608% » h AR BV R A F R H
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25 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 25 LB AERZ (IS (4B)

(Continued)

2020 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Subject to the issue of a circular and the approval of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting and/or
such other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules
from time to time, the Board may refresh the limit at any time
to 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date
of approval by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2020 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares
issue from time to time.

No option may be granted to any person if the total number
of shares of the Company already issued and issuable to
him under all the options granted to him in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant exceeding
1% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of
grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit
shall be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company
and the approval of the shareholders in a general meeting.
The participant and his associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) are abstained from voting and/or other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.
Options granted to substantial shareholders of independent
non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must
be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
twenty-one days inclusive of the day on which such offer
was made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option
to the Company on acceptance of the offer for the option
grants is HK$1.00 per option. The period during when an
option may be exercised will be determined by the Board at
its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
more than 10 years from the date of grant. The 2020 Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on the date of its adoption (i.e. 23 June 2020).
Accordingly, the remaining life of the 2020 Share Option
Scheme is approximately 6 years.

No share option was granted during the period ended 31
March 2025 and year ended 30 June 2024 under the 2020
Share Option Scheme.
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D AEHBENZRE BEREETRDIE
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26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 26 IRIEFRIFIR
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities FIERIBE EMBIERIBEEBEZ 2N
is as follows: I
As at As at
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
WIEZRE RIZTTOF
=BA=+—H NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Deferred income tax assets: RIS EE ©
— Deferred income tax assets to be —RiB@12EA BB
recovered after more than 12 months U BB iR AT 1SR
BE 29,992 25,906
Total deferred income tax assets BEFREMARE 20992 25,906 _
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities (Note) EIERIBE EILHE (D) (7,069) =
Net deferred income tax assets RILFTISIFEE 22,923 25,906
Deferred income tax liabilities: IRIEFTISINEE !
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be —RiBE1I2EBBE
recovered after more than 12 months U [E] BV IR IEFT 1SR
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, g% (45905  (40746)
Set-off of deferred tax assets (Note) FIERIBE EIKiH (5 7,069 =
Net deferred income tax liabilities EIEFRSIF AR (38,836) (40,746)

Note:
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable

right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.

The net movements on the deferred income tax account are

FMysE
ERFIRHAARMIEE E R 8 EREE T RITHER

BIBFERR R4S 57 2R B — IR B 1 BRAR R B - IRIEAR IR
EERGED T

EIEFTISIRER 2 HEFRRUT ¢

as follows:
Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
BE #H=E
ZE"hHEF bl 112 = 5
=RA=+—H ANA=Z1H
IEEARS IFFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET TAET
At 1 beginning of period/year RHR, 4] (14,840) (19,221)
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated freEmx G0 EtA
income statement (Note 10) (FzE10) (1,073) 4,381
At end of period/year HERER (15,913) (14,840)
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26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 26 RIEFRTSIR (@)
The gross movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities BREREEERBBERFERNZE B
during the year, without taking into consideration the (FETRIRHERMBFZ e ERE N 2 45
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as BR) WIF
follows:
(a) Deferred tax liabilities (@) EEREER
Fair value
adjustment on
Right-of-use intangible
assets assets Total
BREEZ
EREER [RERE @
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FAET FERT
At 1 July 2023 R-EZ=FtA—H = (42,016) (42,016)
(Charged)/credited to REBEmE (IR /FA
the consolidated
income statement S 1,270 1,270
At 30 June 2024 and RZFZMEXA=TER
1 July 2024 “Z_mELA—H - (40,746) (40,746)
(Charged)/credited to RiREREE (06 /A
the consolidated
income statement (7,069) 1,910 (5,159
At 31 March 2025 R-B_EF=A=+-H (7,069) (38,836) (45,905)
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26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets

Provision

Lease  ontrade and

liabilities - other receivable

BaRAM

HERR ERRERH

HK$'000 HK$'000

FiER TR

26

IRIEFRISIR (48)
(b) ERIEIRTAEE
Provision
Unused on staff benefits ~ Provision on
Tax losses in the PRC inventories Others Total
FEA FE&T
AR BHEE HEBRE Hftr &3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin TiEn Tén TiEn Tén

At1 July 2023 RZE-Z%tA-A =
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated ~ &ABHZT A/ (05
income statement —

8

15,100 3,578 899 3210 22,79

4219 (1) 259 (1,366) 31

At30June2024and 1July 204  RZF-MEAR=+AR
ZE-MmELA-H =
Credlted/(charged) to the consolidated & ABZ&TA/ (15

income statement 7,580

67

19,319 3577 1,158 1,844 25,906

(4,630) 164 133 2 4,086

At 31 March 2025 RZEZEEZA=+-H 7,580

7%

14,689 3,741 1,201 2616 29,092

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
tax losses carried forward to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profit is probable. As at 31 March 2025,
the Group had potential unrecognised deferred tax
assets amounting to HK$212,867,000 (30 June
2024: HK$202,904,000) in respect of tax losses to
be carried forward against future taxable income.
Cumulative tax losses of HK$1,202,360,000 (30 June
2024: HK$1,156,413,000) can be carried forward
indefinitely; cumulative tax losses of HK$70,470,000
(30 June 2024: HK$63,527,000) will expire (if not
utilised) within the next five years.

Accounting policy on deferred income tax are

B REE EE 2 RIE
E1ERR BB EEAHERE
BB EAREN RmEIR -
RN_EBE_RFE=B=+—H" &
EEAEEABIRIERBEE
212,867,000/ 7T (Z = M4
A=A : 202,904,000 7T)
TR T & E LGN H B ER
MBAZRIBER  RstRIEE
#81,202,360,000%& 7T (Z = I
FRNA=+H :1,156,413,0007%
7o) A ERHIASE ; RtRIERE
70,470,000 7T (ZE _MEH
=-+H : 683,527,000/ 7T) 8@
B BB R EEANE W

EIAEFTISHR & 5T R B MY 5E 108

disclosed in Note 10. gEo

27 BANK BORROWINGS 27 SRITEM
As at As at
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
MRIEZHRE RIZTTWF
=B=+—H ~B=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
Bank borrowings, secured RTER AEF 21,807 =

176

As at 31 March 2025, bank borrowings approximately of

HK$21,807,000 were secured by corporate guarantees
given by Luk Fook.

The interest rates of bank borrowings are 1.75% (30 June

2024: Nil) per annum. The carrying amounts of the bank
borrowings approximate their fair values, as the impact
of discounting is not significant due to their short-term
maturities.

RIE_RAFE=R=+—H RTEXR
#921,807,000/8 ST A/~ fBIRH VA B #E
RVEIE R

RITEMAERNERD1.75% (Z“F M
FRA=1H:#| -HRRTEREDR
A MIREEAK FHIEHRE S
BEAREEE
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 28 HREHBSHEMIA
CATEGORIES
The Group holds the following financial instruments: AEBFBEUTEMIA !
As at As at

31 March 2025 30 June 2024
WIEZRE RIZTTOF
=BA=+—H NAZ=+H

Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FAET
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost BEHM At E
CERMEE
— Trade receivables —B S ERIRIE 20 68,516 40,865
— Deposits and other receivables — ¥ & R Bt FE U 18
(excluding prepayments and value- ARIE (R BIETEN
added tax recoverable) BRIE K AJ Wi [o] 1%
BER) 22,128 12,832
- Cash and cash equivalents —“RERAEEE 21
) 53,340 31,918
Financial liabilities E AR
Liabilities at amortised cost BEIEM AT E 2
al
— Trade payables, other payables, — B S ERIE 22
accruals and deposits received HiETIRE
(excluding staff cost payables and FEST R IB R B
value-added tax payables and e (FEIEEN
accrued expenses) BT AKEN
BERUKEST
%) 75,329 107,161
— Bank borrowings —iRITE™M 27 21,807 =
~ Lease liabilities —HEAaR& 16 87,206 59,812
— Loans from a fellow subsidiary ——RERRWE 29(a)
REIZE 1,373,846 912,591
Liabilities at fair value through BN ER AT
profit or loss ZaE
- Gold loans form a fellow ——BEBERMBAT  29()
subsidiary ZERTEM 693,651 498,087
The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the AEBEARMEMTASERRERMES
financial instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum HmeoRNBmEHER EEEERMRS L
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period MR ESMEEZREE

is the carrying amount of each class of financial assets
mentioned above.
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29 LOANS FROM FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES
Loans from fellow subsidiaries

178

29 FRKMBATZER
(@) RARMBARZERM

As at As at
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
RIEZRE RIZTTNF
=B=+4+—H NA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
iz FAT FET
Unsecured loans from fellow BRMBABZ 0]
subsidiaries mIRIRE™M 1,373,846 912,591
Carrying amounts repayable: FETFUIEREE ¢
- Repayable on demand — BRERER 13,275 13,287
- Repayable after one year — —FRMER 100,000 100,000
113,275 113,287
Carrying amounts of loans BERERERFRR
that contain a repayment ZERZEREE
on demand clause (shown GRS REEME)
under current liabilities)
— Repayable on demand — BEXREE 1,260,571 799,304
1,373,846 912,591
Less: Amounts due within one 8 : R —SF 2 W3 HE
year and shown under W AR E
current liabilities B2 IR (1,273,846) (812,591)
Amounts shown under FNAIERBEEZ
non-current liabilities I8 100,000 100,000

Notes:

U

(i)

As at 31 March 2025, the loans from fellow subsidiaries
of approximately HK$113,275,000 (30 June 2024:
HK$113,287,000) are unsecured and interest-free. Except
for an amount of HK$100,000,000 (30 June 2024:
HK$100,000,000) which was mutually agreed by the Group
and the lender not to be repaid within one year, the remaining
amount of HK$13,275,000 (30 June 2024: HK$13,287,000)
was repayable on demand.

In addition, as at 31 March 2025, the loans from fellow
subsidiaries of approximately HK$1,260,571,000 (30 June
2024: HK$799,304,000), which contained repayment on
demand clause, were unsecured, interest bearing ranging at
1-year China Loan Prime Rate (“China LPR”) plus 0.05% to
1-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (‘HIBOR”) plus
0.55% per annum (30 June 2024: same) and repayable within
one year.

The amounts due are based on as if the repayment on
demand clause was exercised by the lender.

MI5E

0] R_E_RAE=ZR=+—H'@
AMBAT ZEMA113,275,000
B (ZTEZ@mEAA=+H:
113,287,0007870) BEIEIFREE ©
F%100,000,000/% 7t (ZZ ZMU&FEXA
=8 : 100,000,000 ) &£ A £
BEFRANESRAEHFAR—FRE
BN HER13,275,00058 70 (ZZE Y
FENB=1+H :13,287,00058 7T) 7Bi%
TREE

o > RZBE_FEE=B=+—
H-RAaHBASZERY
1,260,571,000/ 7t (ZZZMERA
=18 : 799,304,000 7T) HA AR
ERERET AEIER RFERE
N1 EFHERTHREFZE (T
BEERHISHMEFZE]) MN0.05% =1
BRAEERTAERS ((EBRT
F¥FS)) H10.55% (ZEZPOEXN
B=+8:#8R) s EREN—FR
Bigo

(i EAREDRBRERATERE
REGEFRRTETE
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29 LOANS FROM FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES 29 FEZRMBATZER @&
(Continued)
(b) Gold loans from a fellow subsidiary (b) —FHRRMBAGRNZEEEMN
As at As at
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
RIEZRE RIZTTHNF
=BA=+—H ANA=Z1H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 FET FAET
Carrying amounts of gold loans B &2 EREE KR
that contain a repayment on ZEEERZREE
demand clause shown (shown — GRS ARENERE)
under current liabilities)
— Repayable on demand — BREREE 0] 693,651 498,087

Note:

U

The amounts due are based on as if the repayment on
demand clause was exercised by the lender.

As at 31 March 2025, the gold loans represent
financial liabilities contracted with Luk Fook Holdings
Company Limited, a fellow subsidiary of the Company,
where the Group is required to repay a sum that is
equal to the market price of 28,489 oz (30 June 2024:
27,526 0z) of gold. The gold loans, which contained
repayment on demand clause, were unsecured,
interest bearing at fixed rate of 0.72% to 4.23% per
annum (30 June 2024: 0.68% to 0.78%).

The gold loans are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. During the period ended 31

5T

EARENEBREFATERE
REBIERMERE ©

RIE_REZ/A=+—H &%
EFEERNATRZWE AT N
BEBRERAT L ZBH NS
RiEE AhAEEBEE—FR
FH28,4804 8 (ZE _MF<A
=+H:27,52648)) 2emEZ
NE-ZEEHSERESREKRE
BEF HABIKE - LEEEF
KO.72%E4.23% (ZF_IUE N
B=+H:068%%E0.78%) st B &
BIRERER

BTEMRESRERREATFE
B BHE_E_AF=-RA=1+—

March 2025 and year ended 30 June 2024, the net HIEHEBAREEZSEZMHERA
unrealised losses on gold loan are summarised as —tHLEEE SE8RRERG
follows: BIFRAM AT
Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 80 June 2024
_H _+ =] 7 \ﬁ _-I— =
LEHARS IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TF#ET FAET
Net unrealised losses on gold loans &&= B R EIRE IR FEE 169,968 54,128
Accounting policies of gold loans
ETEMZ BFHE

Gold loans to be repaid by cash are designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
as the gold loans form part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives. Gold loans to be
repaid by physical gold are classified as liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

RUREEENESEEBN®
AREFABREZNEREE BN
BELEEERES —ENZ @R
AXTTETAZGHED R IUE
RRTEENESBEIEAR
AnEFABRRNER
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29 LOANS FROM FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES 29 RREMBATZER (&

(Continued)

(b) Gold loans from a fellow subsidiary (b) —HRRZRMBATRZEEER
(Continued) (&)
Gain or losses on gold loans are recognised in the HEEENNERHBEEREGIE
consolidated income statement. The net fair value mARAER iR S IEm KRBT
gain or loss recognised in the consolidated income NAEWESNEBEEFELNEIE
statement does not include any interest charged on ERORIEEBERNF]E

these liabilities.

Gold loans due to be settled within twelve months RERESFHE+TZEARNIBEE
after the reporting period are classified as current NESEERSBEARBE R
liabilities.
30 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 30 FERERER
FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash used (a) BRPTEMRAIEIBEKEPIAZIR
in operations: FHIER
Period ended Year ended
31 March 30 June
2025 2024
8E e
—EZHE —EE
=BA=+—H ANA=1H
LEHARS IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ERT FET
Loss before income tax PREFISIAAIES 1B
— Continuing operations —FEREERE (196,784) (215,683)
- Discontinuing operations —BRIEREER - 2,660
(196,784) (213,023)
Adjustment for MUTEEEHRE
Provision for slow moving inventories HIHEEEE (FE19)

(Note 19) 1,274 1,306
Change in Fair value of derivatives MERESHRARNTELR

embedded in Convertible Bonds Z AT EEE = (413
Net unrealised losses on gold loans BEENARERGERFE

(Note 29(b)) (K 5E29(b)) 169,968 54,128
Bank interest income (Note 9) RITH S WA (M1EE9) (80) (3,007)
Finance costs (Note 9) FEER (k) 32,754 88,123
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) &, & E# Y (13117) 7,639 5,090
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- -BEMRBITE

equipment (Note 15) (Hizx15) 11,586 9,239
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE (16)

(Note 16) 29,514 03,589
Interest income for rental deposits HEHEMF BEWA (724) 422)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant  HEYE -BEREZEZ

and equipment (W) /K548 (192) 80
Net exchange (gain)losses ER Wm) EiREE (15,329) 5,274
Written off of property, plant and equipment Hi#5473E « ik = Kz 32 16 3,028 85
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HENBARZ W _ (11,140)
Gain on lease termination AER W= (916) =
Provision for impairment losses on THEEREBRER

financial assets 451 S
Provision for impairment losses on ERAREERESBEE

right-of-use assets (Note 16) (FzE16) 4,889 =
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30 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 30 FZEWEZHRER @)

FLOWS (Continued)

(a) Recondiliation of loss before income tax to cash used (a) PFRPAGMRAIEIBEKEMA IR
in operations: (Continued) SHER . (@
Period ended Year ended
31 March 30 June
2025 2024
HE BE
—¥-HE  —zomg
=B=+—H ANA=1H
LEHARS IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ERT FHET
Provision for impairment losses on ¥ KRB &
property, plant and equipment B R EREEE
(Note 15) (MFE15) 5,590 -
Operating profit (loss) before working EEBTEFFSE BT
capital changes (K518) 52,668 (41,091)
Increase in inventories FEIENN (343,946) (210,323)
Increase in trade receivables, deposits, B EWERIE %% AN
prepayments and other receivables SRIE R At W ERIBIE I (72,519) (26,787)
Decrease in right of return assets and REIEEEMEEERMN
refund liabilities, net BER/FEE (1,578) 798
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables, B S5 EMIRE HMEN
other payables, accruals and IRIEFESTAIE
contract liabilities aHamE (Rl /8Em (13,326) 14,877
Increase in employee benefit obligations 18 218F &£ M 487 1,252
Net cash used in operations EEMAZIRERE (378,214) (261,274)
(b) Significant non-cash transactions (b) EXIERERS

During the period ended 31 March 2025, the Group
had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities approximately of HK$68,851,000
and HK$67,998,000 respectively, in respect of
lease arrangements for properties (year ended 30
June 2024: HK$66,984,000 and HK$65,618,000

BE_Z_AE=HA=+—HI
HE AEEMYEREZTHS
EREFAEFTHAHEERES

BEDHA468,851,0008 T &
67,998,000 (BEZE_Z& 1
FRNB=1+HLEFE DA

respectively). 66,984,000/ 7T % 65,618,000
L) °
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) MEIFBHEENEEBEHIK

financing activities

As at As at
31 March 30 June
2025 2024
iy 7
—E-RE Sy ==
=A=+—H NA=1+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Gold loans from a fellow subsidiary —RBIRIRMBATZ
=EER 693,651 498,087
Bank borrowings fE TE™M 21,807 -
Loans from fellow subsidiaries BRMBATZER 1,373,846 912,591
Lease liabilities %HE;%% 87,206 59,812
2,176,510 1,470,490
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30 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 30 FEHERER @)
FLOWS (Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) METHEENEBHIR &)
financing activities (Continued)
Gold loans Loans
from from
Interest Bank a fellow Lease fellow
payable borrowings  subsidiary liabilities subsidiaries Total
—HR%
MBAR A%
TR ZRELEH HBARE
ERFE  EftffE =EER HEAE Z8® st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TR TERT THERT F#ET TERT
As at 1 July 2024 RZE_NE+A—H 19,915 - 498,087 59,812 912,591 1,490,405
- Interest paid -BEfFIE - - - - (2,872 (2,872)
— New bank and other —INLRITREMEE
borrowings raised - 21,806 - - - 21,806
— Proceeds from gold loans ——BRZIRBATMN
from a fellow subsidiary ReE7EEERHE
with cash settlement A - - 19,779 - - 19,779
- Proceeds from loans from ~-FAzKBARZ
fellow subsidiaries EXFEHE - - - - 423,434 423,434
~ Repayment of lease liabilties, -BEHERE
including related interests BIEHEREFE - - - (31,629) - (31,629)
Total change from financing cash FEREFHELEHME
flows - 21,806 19,779 (31,629) 420,562 430,518
Net unrealised losses on —Fﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁ@ N=ipd
gold loans from a felow subsidiary B EFKEREHE
/?%,E - - 169,968 - - 169,968
Interest expenses HEHEY - 1 4,39 4,230 24,068 32,693
Early termination of lease REKIHE - - - (13,236) - (13,236)
Addition of lease liabilities A E?ﬂﬁ =X - - - 67,998 - 67,998
Reclassffication of interest and other  E#i ) 1B AFIE
payables (19,915) - 1,423 - 19,217 725
Exchange realignment ERBEMAR - - - 31 (2,592 (2,561)
As at 31 March 2025 gt o %3
ZA=+-H - 21,807 693,651 87,206 1,373,846 2,176,510
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30 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (Continued)

(c)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities (Continued)

30

(c)

ZERE

Liabilties from financing activities

N-T=1X
NILEE

= (@)
MEZHEENRRER (B

HEIHELNAR
Loan from
anon-
Gold loans Loans  controling
from from  shareholder Amount
Interest Bank afelow Lease fellow ofa dueto  Convertiole
payables  borrowings  sbsidiary liabiies  subsidiaries  subsidlary  a director bonds Total
—f
-HBE% A% HELT
#7  HWEAT WELE —LEER -4
EFRIE B8 788X MEBE  /BX RE/ER  EERE URRES 5t
HK$000  HK$O00  HK$O00  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$00  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEn  TErn  TExr  TEn  TEr  TEx  TEn  TErn  TEn
As at1 July 2023 R-B-zgtA-B 7983 1715211 - 158 S 00000 a3M a9 1930389
- Interest paid -BfifI8 - 6T0%) - - - - - - 67,090
~New bank and other ~IERTREMES
borrowings raised - 51,500 - - - - - - 51,500
- Advance from a director ——HEEDY - - - - - - 2,055 - 2,055
- Proceeds fom gold loans ~~ ——BFZHBEATZ
from a fellow subsiciary ESETMETE - - 443959 = = = = - W399
- Proceeds fom loans from ~~ ~FIZIEAFZ
fellow subsidiaries i = - - - 814966 - - - 814966
-Repaymentof barkand ~ —BEFTREMES
other borrowings - (1,840,500) - - - - - - (1,840,500
- Repayment of lease labiities, —EEREAE:
including related! interests BERHHE - = - (337) = = = - 3
Total change from financing  BER &R ELE M
cash flows o (856000  M3950 (3375 814966 - 20 - 18489
Change in fair value of TAREFRAR
derivatives embedded in fT&I8/Z
convertile bonds NFEES - - - - - - - 93 3
Net unrealised losses on —HRzNEASz RS
qold loans a felow subsidlay ~~ EFAREREEFH - - 54128 = = = = - 518
Interest expenses HSEY - 63684 1423 3,112 18,492 - 49 1363 88,128
Reclassified to “bank ENNEEIROREE)
borrowings” - 84,500 - - - - - (84,500) -
Reclassfication upon WEEETNAENDE
completion of the acquisition - (10,000 - - 110000 (100,000 - - -
Addtion of lease liabiites FEHESE - - - 65618 - - - - 65618
Linbifties waived RELEL - y . - (2018 - - - (209
Setflement with consideraon  £ZHEMBATZ
on disposal of subsidiaries B (6947) - - - (12) - (1,937) - (8,896)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT - 73 - (1,152) - - (3639) - (5,501)
Coupon interest acoruedand  FEst 2 B R ALM
included in other payables R 1310 = = = = = = (1,310 -
Interest accrued at RZE_=FtF-AE
1.July 2023 and SIS REt ARAE
included in other payables 3B (3692 3623 - - - - 69 - -
Interest accrued at RIZZMERA=+HH
30 June 2024 and 5
included in other payables FEREA
EftERTE 19,915 - (149 - (1849 - - - -
Exchange realignment ERBAZ 12366 (219) - (258) (345) - 6 (3,004) 2.540)
As at 30 June 2024 RZE-mEXA=+A 19915 - 498,087 59,812 912,591 - - - 1,490,405
Annual Report 2024/25 &3 183



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%= -<H

Wi [

RATS R 5L

31 COMMITMENTS

184

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

i
(a) BAEIE

As at As at
31 March 30 June
2025 2024
W IS
- e “BTE
=RB=+—H ~BE=+H
HK$’000 HK$ 000
F#ET FAET
Contracted but not provided for: BERJAERIEL B
— property, plant and equipment —WE BB R E 19 509
Total capital commitments contracted B s]4IBRIEHBEE 2
but not provided for B AR IEAEEE 19 509

As at 31 March 2025 and 30 June 2024, there are
no capital commitments which are authorised but not
contracted for.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had entered into
properties lease agreements in respect of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of HK$5,090,000 (30 June
2024: HK$22,062,000) which are contracted but not
yet commenced.

Commitments under short-term leases

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had commitments
under short-term leases of HK$5,089,000 (30 June
2024: HK$569,000) which will be recognised as an
expense in the forthcoming consolidated income
statement.

RIE_RAF=B=+—HKZ=
ETUERB=TH IEEEE
BRETNZ BEAREKE

A ZEHE=A=+—H =&
ESECHERAREERTEESRE
5,090,000/ 7t (ZE ZHERA
=-+H : 22,062,000 7T) 5] IL4)
X EWZE > BB ECTAMER
REFEG -

(b) EHAFRE KR
R_EBE_RAF=A=+—H’'%&
EBZEEHEERIES,089,000
B (CE_WNEANA=Z+H
569,000 7T) 5L BN T 88 2 47

SEERANEDARES
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The ultimate holding company of the Company is Luk Fook
(Control) Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI.

32

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group has the
following related party transactions during the period/year
ended 31 March 2025 and 30 June 2024:

BEALZRS
ARBRRERAT H75E () AR
AT —RIR BB L BB M AL
AFo

BRAGREMBREEAMEEHIFLR
RN FAEERBE_S_RLE=A
=t —HERZEZMERAB=THLH
B/ EERETNIBRELRS !

(a) Significant related party transactions (@) EXBAEALTIZS
Relationship Nature Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
A% 3= HK$’000 HK$’'000
BE_S-EF 8F_T_MF
=B=+—H ~NAB=1+H
IEHARS IFFE
F#T TFHETT
A director of the Company (note (i) Interest expense - 49
KRB —RRESE (FEEH)) FERX
Shareholders of the Company Coupon interest of - 1,310
(note (ii)) convertible bonds
AT (B () R ESFZER
Fellow subsidiaries of the Company  Purchase of gold and 24,277 17,183
(note (iii)) jewellery products
KABERMBE LT EEEi) EEESHEEH
Purchase return of gold - 2
and jewellery products
EBOESHEE
License and service fee 144 94
FEr RIS &
Repayment of lease 7,456 5,113
liabilities
BEHEEAE
Specialty fee 192 156
Subcontracting fee 90 63
PANE—
Sale service fee 326 68
tHE R B
Interest expense on 24,068 18,492
other loans
HMEMA S
Interest expense on 4,394 1,423
gold loans
\\\\\\ ‘IT}\}FU aﬁ%fi
Interest income on 42 62
rental deposits
HEEeNHEWA
Sale of Jewellery 483 -
HEKE
Photo shooting fee 217 -
nEE
Rental incom 1,131 -
A ON
Sale of fixed Assets 371 -
HEBEEE
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group has the
following related party transactions during the period/year

186

AR e TSR M 5T

32

REALZRS (R
PR AR B TS IR R H A S E R S 0
RPN FEEREE
= +—HRIBZMERE=+HLLH

TEBTHRFE=HAH

ended 31 March 2025 and 30 June 2024: (Continued) B/ EEATIBEESRS | (@)
(a) Significant related party transactions (@ EFEKXBEALIZS (B)
(Continued)
Relationship Nature Period ended Year ended
31 March 2025 30 June 2024
A% 3= HK$’000 HK$’'000
BE_TRF FE_T_UF
=B=+—H ~B=+H
IEHARS IFFE
T#T FHET
Fellow subsidiaries of a Purchase of gold and - 38,225
non-controlling shareholder jewellery products
of a subsidiary (note (iii))
—HER B ARz —%IEERIEER EERSKEEH
ZFERWE LB (B 5E(ii)
Purchase return of gold - 1
and jewellery products
BOoESHEE
License and service fee - 69
e RS &
Repayment of lease - 4,610
liabilities
BEHEaE
Sale of jewellery - -
HEHRE
Specialty fee - 43
Subcontracting fee - 24
nEE
Sale service fee - 57
HERBEE
Interest expense on - 869
other loan
HMEMAEMAXZ
Interest income on - 59
rental deposits
HEEENMEWA
A company in which a director of the  License and service fee 2,790 1,651
Company has beneficial interest
(note (iv))
KRB —HESHEEAET FEr e R RS &
—EraE (iEkiv)
A company in which a director of a License and service fee - 1,366
subsidiary has beneficial interest
(note (iv))
—BRBRrRE—%EEHE e RIS &
EmiEms —BAE FEkv)
3DG Holdings (International) Limited £ Z &£ H (F %) AR AF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%= -<H

N

RATS R M 5L

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group has the
following related party transactions during the period/year
ended 31 March 2025 and 30 June 2024: (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Significant related party transactions
(Continued)

Notes:

i) The abovementioned director was a former director of the
Company pursuant to his resignation as an executive director
of the Company on 9 February 2024.

ii) Upon the completion of the acquisition by Luk Fook in
February 2024, the abovementioned shareholders ceased as
shareholders of the Company.

iii) Upon the completion of the acquisition by Luk Fook in
February 2024, the abovementioned fellow subsidiaries of a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company
became fellow subsidiaries of the Company and categorised
as transactions with fellow subsidiaries of the Company on the
above table.

iv) Prior to the appointment as an executive director of the
Company on 19 January 2024, the abovementioned director
was a director of a subsidiary of the Company.

As at 31 March 2025, the intermediate holding
company of the Company issued financial guarantee
amounting to HK$280,000,000 (30 June 2024:
HK$550,000,000) to banks in respect of banking
facilities granted to the Group.

Key management compensation
Directors are key management personnel of the
Company whose remuneration is disclosed in Note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

32

REALZR S (R

PR AR A BT IR R H A S R P S 0
2R FEERBE_S-HE=A
S+—BRZBZMEAB=1HILH
B EEATHRESRS @

(@) EAREALZS @

MIEE

i REIREER _S-WE-AAH
BRELRRARDNTES REEAE
ABFIESE-

i HARR_-_ZZME_AKETN
%> PR ETEARATRE-

i) BAER_Z_ME_F KB
%> FMAAT BB AT 2 IEE
BREEZRAMBATMRAERAT
ZRAMBAT MR ERFBEAHR
ENBIRRMBABIZR5

iv) RIZEZWNE—B+hBEZEA
ERNBRTESF EMEETAER
B—RMBARZES-

A _E_RE=Z/B=+—HER
BFEERAGMAERER Y
RITREQRTEZYFERS
51280,000,0007 7T (ZZ — 4K
H=-+H : 550,000,000/ 7T) °

b) FEEEASME
EERARNBTEEEBAS Hif
BB R 5 B B SRR M 1 4FR R o
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33 SUBSIDIARIES 33 fIEAE
At 31 March 2025, the Company had the following principal ACE_REFE=RA=+—H ' &KAFT =
subsidiaries: TERBARTUT -
Issued and
Place of Authorised fully-paid  Percentage of issued
incorporation/ ordinary ordinary share  ordinary share capital/
establishment ~ share capital/  capital/paid-up registered capital Attributable equity
Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Group interest held Principal activities
BEORAR AIEEREZERT
Y/ ERLEkEE/  LERRE/ LERREAMES
1 EATES L HhEE HRES ZER EihEEZRE  TEER
As at As at As at As at
31March ~ 30June 31March 30 June
2025 2024 2025 2024
R I R i
ZECRE CECME ZECRE CECME
=R A =R A
I+-B =tB I+-B =16
3D-GOLD Company Limited Hong Kong N/A HK$100 100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Investment holding
2EEERAT ¥ TEH 10077 REER
3D-GOLD Enterprises Development PRC US$62,854,300 US$62,854,300 100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Retaling and franchising
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. f 62,854,300 62,854300%TT operations of gold and
SEBEEEE (M) BRAT jewellery products in
Mainland China
RREREE R
AesEasnnRi
EE
3D-GOLD International Company Hong Kong N/A HK$2 100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Holding of trademark
Limited &3 TEH 28T BESE
2EEERERAT
3D-GOLD Jewellery (HK) Limited Hong Kong N/A HK$100 100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Retaling of gold and
SEBRE (58 ARAT &E TER 10087 jewellery products in Hong
Kong
REBZERTHRR
KEEH
3D-GOLD Management Services Hong Kong N/A HK$1 100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Provision of management
Limited Bk TER 1T senices
SEBEERKERAR RUEBERY
CGS BVI US$50,000 US$3,334 50% 50% 50% 50%  Investment holding
EEE EREYES 50,0007 3334%7 REZR
China Gold Siver (JV) Company Limited ~ BVI US$50,000 US$100 100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Investment holding
TEER (BB ARAR EBRUES 50000% 7 100%7 REZR
China Gold Silver (JV) HK Company Hong Kong N/A HK$100 100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Investment holding
Limited BE TER 10087 RERR
HEER (R %) EBERAR
188 3DG Holdings (International) Limited £ TS £ E (E[X) HRAF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

33 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

33 MIEAT @)

Issued and
Place of Authorised fully-paid  Percentage of issued
incorporation/ ordinary ordinary share  ordinary share capital/
establishment ~ share capital/ capital/paid-up registered capital Attributable equity
Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Group interest held Principal activities
BETRAR MIEARHEZERS
Y/ REEEREES/  EERRES/ LERRERRES
&% AT ES Yk itMEE BRES ZERM EtmEzZRE  TERH
As at Asat As at Asat
31March  30June 31March 30 June
2025 2024 2025 2024
i IS i R®
ZECRE “TONE ZBIRE CTONE
AR A8 =B AR
I+-B =t =B =tA
Gold Ocean Jewellery Company Limited ~ Macau MOP500,000 MOP500,000 100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Retaling of gold and
ERGEENERAR il 5000008M7 50000027 jewellery products in
Macau
REMZEESHRR
KEEH
Golden Zone International Limited BVI US$50,000 US$1 100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Investment holding
THERERAT EBEAHEE 50,000%7t 17 REER
Special Link Limited Hong Kong N/A HKS$1 100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Investment holding
BRERAE &5 &R %7 REZR
REEBHRERAR PRC RMB1,000,000 RMB1,000,000 100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Sales of jewellery
HE AR1,000,0007 AR #1,000,0007 HEHE
BRUE (BB BRAF PRC RMB,000,000 RMB1,000,000 100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Retaling & franchising
HE AR1,000,0007  AK%1,000,0007 operations of gold and
jewellery products in
Mainland China
RAPENRE RS
Reseasnnk
KEEH
BEHE B BRAR PRC RMB500,000 RMB500,000  100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Provision of management
HE AEM500000  AK500,0007 senvices
RIEEERE
FESE (B BRAE PRC RMB1,000,000 RMB1,000,000 100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Retaling & franchising
HE AR11,000,0007 AR #1,000,00070 operations of gold and
jewellery products in
Mainland China
RAE MR E R
REgERSHRR
KEHH
BESTEHERRAR PRC RMB5,000,000 RMB5,000,000 100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Sale of gold and jewellery
HE AE185,000,0007 AR #5,000,0007 BERGEHE
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33 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

33 MIEAT (@)

Issued and
Place of Authorised fully-paid  Percentage of issued
incorporation/ ordinary ordinary share  ordinary share capital/
establishment ~ share capital/  capital/paid-up registered capital Attributable equity
Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Group interest held Principal activities
BETRAR APEARFEZERS
AL/ REREkEES/  LERRE/ LERREARES
28 HUREBHE &S BRES ZERM EftazRE  TEER
As at As at As at Asat
31March  30June 31March 30 June
2025 2024 2025 2024
i IS i R®
ZECRE “TONE ZBIRE CTONE
=R 7A =R 7A
=+-B =tH =+-H =1H
BEEEBEHRABRAR PRC RMB5,000,000  RMB5,000000  100% 100% 500%* 50%"  Retaling & franchising
HE ABR5,000,0007 AR %5,000,0007 operations of gold and
jewellery products in
Mainland China
RARENFE RS
CEHERSNRR
KEAH
BEEEEHMRHBRAR PRC RMB5,000,000 RMB5,000,000 100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Design and wholesales
HE AE5,000,0007  ARH5,000,0007T of gold and jewellery
products
EEMRRAEEHRT
Jgind
BREE (K3 ARAE PRC RMB500,000 RMB500,000  100% 100% 509%* 50%*  Provision of management
HE ARH500000c  AR500,0007T senices
RIESERY
BRAGE (B BRAT PRC RMB500,000 RMB500,000 100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Provision of management
HE ARH500000c  AR500,0007T senices
RICSERE
BERE (Ut BRAF PRC RMB500,000 RMB500,000 100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Retaling of gold and
HE AE#500000t  ARM500,0007 jewellery products in
Mainland China
RAEREEESHR
RAKEE
BERE {8 BRAF PRC RMB500,000 RMB500,000 100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Provision of management
HE AE#500000t  ARM500,0007 senvices
RICEERE
EERE (ER) BRAF PRC RMB500,000 RMB500,000  100% 100% 50%* 50%"  Provision of management
HE ARH500000c  AR500,0007T senices
RIESERY
* The entities are the wholly owned subsidiaries of CGS and regarded as ZEBRATESRZ 2BMBABLRRIFEE

subsidiaries of the Group.

EEZWBRAR -
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33 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

33 MIEAT @)

Note: P 5T
0] Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non-controlling 0] BHE_Z_RAE=ZA=+—HIPH &&E
interests for the period ended 31 March 2025 are set out below: BEEAFERERZIB AT EH
FINE -
CGS
RE & IR
Percentage of equity interest directly held by FERERERTAEZRET DT
non-controlling interests 50%
Loss for the period allocated to non-controlling interests DEFIEERER 2 HAREE (FET)
(HK$'000) 104,822
Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests at the PIRE B2 IE TR R Rt 4 ik (FA7T)
reporting date (HK$'000) (363,626)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of
CGS on a standalone basis for the period ended 31 March 2025. The

amounts disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

TRITHE_SE_HEE=A=+—HL
HEPESE B MBEENEE NS

EEANRER AR B E A 2 25E

CGS

FEEIR

For the period ended
31 March 2025

BE_Z-RF

=A=+—HLH™E

HK$’000

FEBT

Revenue WA 711,541
Net loss FEE1E (209,644)
Total comprehensive loss 2 HEEIBREE (238,051)
Current assets TRENE E 1,404,982
Non-current assets FEmEEE 309,232
Current liabilities mEaE 2,157,613
Non-current liabilities FERBERE 283,852
Net cash outfiow from operating activities EEEH R M FEE (354,297)
Net cash inflow from financing activities ME TN IRERAFE 447,356
Net increase in cash and bank balances RERIREEEBY 2L NNFE 21,371
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34 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 34 FRFEZEEEER
As at As at
31 March 30 June
2025 2024
iy B
—EZRE —EmF
=BA=+—H NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FTExT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERHEE
__Investments in subsidiaries EEWBAS 170807 170,397 _
Current assets REEE
Other receivables and deposits HihnEWRIBR BN IZS 289 200
Cash and cash equivalents HWEKRIREEEY 115 64
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 404 264
Total assets HEE 170,801 170,661
EQUITY Wi
Capital and reserve attributable to the ZEAFEEZFEA
equity holders of the Company FE(L B A B (1
Share capital [N 270 270
Share premium 1w B 845,033 845,033
Reserves (Note (i) BE (X)) (835,153) (1,971,192)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 10,150  (1,125,889)
LIABILITIES afR
Current liabilities mENEfE
Other payable, accruals and deposit HhpE(JBRIE ~ FEST
received MR B WiZE 1,632 22 144
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEIH B AR FIE 145,019 9,174
Loans from fellow subsidiaries BRNBABIZER 14,000 767,145
Gold loans from a fellow subsidiary —HRAREBARZ
B EX - 498,087
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 160,651 1,296,550
Total equity and liabilities Rakafes 170,801 170,661
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the KPNBIZEEBERITHESFZN_Z
Board of Directors on 24 June 2025 and was signed on its THEHEABZIHOH#M AL KR THE
behalf by the following directors: ERRE
Mr. Wong Ho Lung, Danny Ms. Cheung Irene
=S RIS L
Director Director
EX EFE
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34 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 34 FRFZEEAER (@
(Continued)
Note: B 5E
0] The reserves movement of the Company is as follows: 0] KATIEEEBMT -

Share Investment

Contributed Other option revaluation Exchange  Accumulated
surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
RUER Hittis  BREEE REEMER ERfE BHEH At

HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TER TR TR TER TER TiEn TER

At 1 July 2023 RZB-=FtA-A 117,040 - 1,529 (6,008) (15,589) (896,455) (799,483)
Loss for the year FEESE - - - - - (1,188,109 (1,188,109)
Exchange difference arising on translation BEELZERZE - - = o 4,382 o 4,382
Total comprehensive income/(expense) REERERR/ (%)

for the year et - - - - 4,382 (1,188,109) (1,183,727)
Release upon disposal of equity instruments at I ERATEF AR 2 ERE

FvTOC! T TRRAEN - = = 6,008 - (6,008) -
Capital contribution by a shareholder —BRRZAE - 12,018 - - - - 12,018
Lapse of share options RN - - (230) - - 230 -
At 30 June 2024 RoB-mEABZ+A 117,040 12,018 1,299 5 (1200 (2090342  (1,971,192)
A1 July 2024 RoE-mELA-A 117,040 12,018 1,299 . 1200 (200342 (1,971,192
Proft for the year KEERT - - - - - 9,707 9,707
Exchange difference arising on translation BEEEZERER - - - - (14,130) - (14,130)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEERANGRE - - - - (14,130) 9,707 (4,423)
Deem contribution RIEHE - 1,140,462 - - - - 1,140,462
At 31 March 2025 RoB-REZA=+-7 HT00 1,162,480 1,209 - (25337 (208063 (835153

Annual Report 2024/25 ££3k 193



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=PAN
ZIZI

N

RATS R 5L

35 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
35.1 Principles of consolidation

194

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated balance sheet respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

35 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

35.1 Principles of consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss of
control as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest results
in an adjustment between the carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests
to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss
of control, joint control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRS Accounting Standards.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture
or an associate is reduced but joint control
or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

(b)
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e IR

35 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

35.2 Business combinations

35 HthBEEXEHHREE (B

35.2 £ S #

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred;

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business,

° equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
net identifiable assets. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:
° consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

35 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

35.2 Business combinations (Continued)

35 HthBEEXEHHRHE (B

35.2 EHEH (&)

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are
less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets
of the business acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity
or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in consolidated
income statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

35.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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35 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

35.4 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-makers. The executive
directors and senior management, who make
strategic decisions, have been identified collectively
as the chief operating decision-makers, who are
responsible for allocating resources and assessing the
financial performance and positions of the operating
segments.

198

35.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The functional currency
of the certain of its subsidiaries of the Company
is HK$. The Company’s primary subsidiaries
are incorporated in the PRC and for these
subsidiaries, RMB is the functional currency. The
Group’s presentation currency is HKS.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised within
‘other losses, net’ in the consolidated income
statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘finance income, net’.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in consolidated income statement on
a net basis within ‘other gain, net’.
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(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

35 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

35.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

()  assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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35 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

35.6 Investments and other financial assets

200

(a)

(b)

3DG Holdings (International) Limited £ Z &£ H (F %) AR AF

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

(a)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

35 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

35.6 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(c)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in consolidated income statement.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group classified
its debt instruments as financial assets at
amortised cost.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in ‘other losses, net’, together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented in separate line item in the
consolidated income statement.

(c)
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35 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

35.6 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

202

(c)

(d)

3DG Holdings (International) Limited £ Z &£ H (F %) AR AF

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in
“other losses, net” in the consolidated income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

(c)

(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

35 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

35.7 Derivative financial instruments which do

35 HthBEEXEHHRHE (B

35.7 A EMFHAEEEZ

not qualify for hedge accounting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty. There is no offsetting
of financial instruments as at 31 March 2025 and 30
June 2024.

35.8 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group
holds the trade and other receivables with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment.

See Note 18 and Note 20 for further information about
the Group’s accounting for other receivables and
trade receivables, respectively and see Note 3(a)(iv) for
a description of the Group’s impairment policies for
trade and other receivables.
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35 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

35.9 Cash and cash equivalents

204

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

35.10 Trade and other payables

35.11

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are carried initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

35 HthBEEXEHHREE (B

359 HERREEEY

REaReRERT ReRRS
SENOETERS SRLIE
K72 R R E 1 =188 S P9 Bl
A HtERE B RRE 5]
W ERADNeERe AEE
BB AR FEA

35.10 B 5 R H thfE(FARIA

35.11

3DG Holdings (International) Limited £ Z &£ H (F %) AR AF

BSBMREENABETBRE
PRHEEEBERMIERRS
EEZNREF - HEZ REME
MERERE-—FHIN—FR &
ERUEEBEBSKEBERN X
T AREARBERE TR &
FRBEETEY]

B8R EME B S AR
EREER  Eie U IR A S 5
R o

26N

ERPT B RANE FARREER
A WSS H R A5
iR FRISTRIR (0FRR 7 ) B8
CEEMmEBZEREE gUE
R EZNERHBEAEREGE
m AR PR o

RBISTREMINER &
B8 53 S P B BR B 1R B AE 1R 4R e X
Ry hE 50 2 E MBI 57 A s o IR UL 1R
nh ZBERERNERRER T
BUESE - fid #5381 R AR D 8P A
RMERAERRIZI BB R
R RBMERFNRAMRIBRE S
B> MAERREARRE 2 BAFR Y S



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

35 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 35 HthBEEXTHBRHEE @
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

35.11 Borrowings (Continued) 3.1 B (&

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in consolidated income statement.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

35.12 Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

(b) Profit sharing and bonus plans
Provisions for profit sharing and bonus plans are
recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate
of the obligation can be made.
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35 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

35.12 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)

(d)

206 3DG Holdings (International) Limited £ Z &£ E (H %) BRAH

Pension obligations

Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) which is registered under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held in a separately administered fund. The
MPF Scheme is generally funded by payments
from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
the employer’s voluntary contribution forfeited
from the MPF Scheme by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.

Mainland

As stipulated by rules and regulations in
Mainland, the Group contributes to state-
sponsored retirement schemes for its relevant
employees in Mainland. The state-sponsored
retirement schemes are responsible for the
entire post-retirement benefit obligations payable
to the retired employees.

The Group’s contributions to the state-
sponsored retirement schemes are expensed as
incurred and are fully and immediately vested in
the employees.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long
service amounts payable on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the
amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods.

(c)

(d)

35 HthBEEXEHHREE (B

3b.12 EEEH (@

BUHERE

5E
AEBHT-RERMRA
Mt ABEERANEE (TR
®5HE) CSEIEREEFE
R HI M A T8 2 5T BRG) )
e BEESHEZEETS
DB EBRZETRFE -’
REstElzET—REAREE
RAEBE(

AEERBETEFHZ
MR EER 8 > W R0
BHMEREEFRIR L E
ZRERWZBEETEE
T ERMEHRINR -

Ayt
REBERHIRAKRIRG » &
EAHEARAMESDER
B Z RN BIHR - ZE
BEREBRNABAEERE
TRERKEESIZERIK
‘EMNZEE-

AEBMBERKEB 2 RIRET
SR ELER 8 WA
ReHRBES -

FEBGRBEEE (BERK
PNEETERTIREER
LR ERZNERARSEZ
BEERAEREENERER
8 1E BRI LAF 52 AR 75 TR A
ZARIRAER]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

35 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

35.12 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

The long service payment liabilities are assessed
by using the projected unit credit method by
a qualified actuary. The cost of providing the
long service payment liabilities is charged to the
consolidated income statement so as to spread
the costs over the service lives of employees.

The long service payment liabilities are
discounted to determine the present value
and reduced by entitlements by employees
accrued under the Group’s defined contribution
retirement scheme that is attributable to
contributions made by the Group. The
reductions are deemed as contributions from
employees which are linked to service and
hence, the contributions reduce service cost.
The Group attributes the contributions from
employees to periods of service on a straight-
line basis. Actuarial gains and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are credited or charged
to other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise, respectively. Changes in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments
are recognised immediately in profit or loss as
past service costs.

35.13 Interest income
Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the consolidated income statement as
interest income.

(d)

35 HthBEEXEHHRHE (B

3b.12 EEEH (@

€-))
RERBZEE/RAIAY
BEMEStNEMLERE
- XN ERMRBEARE
ZHAERGEERmERFH
B> UER AR EBE Z R
BEHAED

RIRBcaEBBMRE
ERE WAEAFERM
TR S 45 S B T 2R AR IR
SHETRSNEERZ#
) o o 4548 7% £2 AR 75 1R R
By R B R0 FIE > HEUR D
RBMAE - REBBERE
W B B st ABRTEH -
KERABRKEERREEM
EENBEEED DR AR
B EERENEMES
W i o [l 5t BIE 5T 50 48 Bl
BRNERENEBREN

ERRFBEA

35.13 FIE WA

R ERAF AT EIZ BN
K EZETHEENNBWAR

4= A
iz

BmREDSBFE WA

Annual Report 2024/25 &3 207



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N

35

208

AR e TSR M 5T

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 35 HMBEEXTHBERBE (@)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

35.13 Interest income (Continued)

35.13 FIB WA (48)

Interest income is presented as finance income
where it is earned from financial assets that are held
for cash management purposes. Any other interest
income is included in “finance income”. For the year
ended 30 June 2024, interest income amounting to
approximately HK$3,006,000 were reclassified from
“other Income” to “finance income” to align with the
presentation and disclosure for the current period.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction
of the loss allowance).

35.14 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the

General and specific borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

35.14
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

35 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

35.16 Share based payments

35 HthBEEXEHHRHE (B

35.16 WA B (R B BERE(T TR

The Group operates an equity-settled, share based
compensation plan, under which the Group receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
options granted is recognised as an employee benefits
expense with a corresponding increase in equity.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

° including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense during the
period between service commencement period and
grant date.
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35 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

210

35.16

35.17

35.18

Share based payments (Continued)

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (and share premium).

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity
accounts

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses. Where there
are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole.
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is an entity’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the entity
has received consideration.

35.16

35.17

35.18
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Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. CHEUNG lIrene (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung
Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Director
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. SZE Yeung Kuen

Mr. CHAN Raymond

Dr. LAM Ki Wai, Lianne

Dr. CHOW Kwoon Ho, Simon

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him, Paul

LEGAL ADVISERS

Baker & Mckenzie

Jones Day

Cleary Gottlieb Steen & Hamilton (Hong Kong)
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REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS

Units 06-11, 15th Floor

Metropole Square

No. 2 On Yiu Street

Shek Mun, Shatin

New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2954 3688

Fax: (852) 2954 3689

E-mail: enquiry@3dg-group.com

Website: 3dg-group.com

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Hang Seng Bank Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited
United Overseas Bank Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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